MARINEMAX INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 12/14/2006 For Period Ending 9/30/2006

Address 18167 US 19 N SUITE 499
CLEARWATER, Florida 33764
Telephone 813-531-1700
CIK 0001057060
Industry Retail (Specialty)
Sector Services
Fiscal Year 09/30
powered 8y EINGA ROnline

hitpiherwew_edgar-online.com/
D Copyright 2005. All Rights Reservad
Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Onlines Terms of Use.







Table of Contents

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For fiscal year ended September 30, 2006

Commission File Number 1-14173

MarineMax, Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Girart

Delaware 58-3496957

(State of Incorporation) (I.LR.S. Employer
Identification No.)

18167 U.S. Highway 19 North
Suite 300

Clearwater, Florida 33764
(727) 531-1700

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number,
including area code, of principal executive offices

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Exchange Act:

Title of Each Clas: Name of Each Exchange on Which Register:

Common Stock, par value $.001 per share New York Stock Exchange
Rights to Purchase Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stoc

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢iie Exchange Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405eoB#turities Act. Ye
O No M

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the
Securities Act. Yedd No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdid months (or for such shorter period that tiyésteant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject th filing requirements for the past 90 days. Y#s No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of regidtsaknowledge, in definitive proxy or informatiotesements incorporated by
reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amerent to this Form 10-K.OO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlexge accelerated filer, an accelerated filed, vom@raccelerated filer.
See definition of “accelerated filer and large deeded filer” in Rule 12B-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated Fileid Non-accelerated fileE&d

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Aatgs O No
%}

The aggregate market value of common stock helddmaffiliates of the registrant (16,925,391 shabased on the
closing price of the registrant’s common stockegmrted on the New York Stock Exchange on Marc2806, which was
the last business day of the registrant’s mostticeompleted second fiscal quarter, was $567 1383, For purposes of this
computation, all officers, directors, and 10% beénelf owners of the registrant are deemed to bigaaéfs. Such determinati
should not be deemed to be an admission that dtichrs, directors, or 10% beneficial owners arefact, affiliates of the
registrant.

As of November 30, 2006, there were outstandin§1B001 shares of registrant’'s common stock, parevg.001 per
share.

Documents Incorporated by Referenct



Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy stant for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholdeesiacorporated by
reference into Part Il of this report.




MARINEMAX;, INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS 1
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 23
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENT 34
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 34
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 38
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDEF 38
PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDEF
MATTERS AND ISSUER REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITI 39
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 40
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION:! 41
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 48
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 49
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 49
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE. 49
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 51
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRA! 51
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 51
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANMANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 51
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONE 51
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICE 51
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 52
SIGNATURES 54
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F-1
EX-23.1
EX-31.1
EX-31.2
EX-32.1
EX-32.2

Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on ForrK 18at are not purely historical are forward-loakin
statements within the meaning of applicable sdesrlaws. Forward-looking statements include statem
regarding our “expectations,” “anticipation,” “imtons,” “beliefs,” or “strategies” regarding thetfire. Forward-
looking statements relating to our future econop@dormance, plans and objectives for future opamat and
projections of revenue and other financial itenad #ire based on our beliefs as well as assumptiande by and
information currently available to us. Actual résutould differ materially from those currently mipiated as a
result of a number of factors, including those désed in Item 1A. Risk Factol
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PART I

Item 1. Business

Introduction

Our Company

We are the largest recreational boat dealer itUthited States. Through 88 retail locations in Alaba Arizona
California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, FlariGeorgia, Maryland, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevadiayw
Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahomhoge Island, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texad/Jtid we
sell new and used recreational boats, includingsulee, and fishing boats, with a focus on premivamds in each
segment. We also sell related marine productsydiicy engines, trailers, parts, and accessoriesddition, we
arrange related boat financing, insurance, anchdeig service contracts; provide repair and maimesaervices;
offer boat and yacht brokerage services; and, wéreadable, offer slip and storage accommodations.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Ragt@oWhaler, Meridian, and Hatteras recreationatdand
yachts, all of which are manufactured by Brunswickporation. Sales of new Brunswick boats accoufae
approximately 59% of our revenue in fiscal 2006uri&awick is the world’s largest manufacturer of marproducts
and marine engines. We believe our sales repraséanexcess of 13% of all Brunswick marine salesluding
approximately 40% of its Sea Ray boat sales, dwing2006 fiscal year. Through operating subsidsrive are a
party to dealer agreements with Brunswick covetirgge products and we are the exclusive dealexabf i our
geographic markets.

We are the exclusive dealer for Italy-based Fer@tiup for Ferretti Yachts, Pershing, Riva, Apreae) and
Mochi Craft mega-yachts, yachts, and other reaygatiboats for the United States, Canada, the Basaamd
Mexico. We also are the exclusive dealer for Bentia the United States (excluding the Florida peuia and
certain portions of New England), Canada, and thieaBnas.

We commenced operations as a result of the MartB98 acquisition of five previously independent
recreational boat dealers. Since that time, we hageired 20 additional previously independenteational boat
dealers, two boat brokerage operations, and tweaéulice yacht repair operations. We capitalizah@nexperience
and success of the acquired companies in ordestablesh a new national standard of customer seiu
responsiveness in the highly fragmented retailibgahdustry. As a result of our emphasis on prembrand boats,
our average selling price for a new boat in fi206 was approximately $116,000, an increase of ftab fiscal
2005, compared with the industry average calen@@b 2elling price of approximately $31,000 basedhoistry
data published by the National Marine Manufactufessociation. Our stores, which operated at leashanths,
averaged approximately $17.1 million in annual satefiscal 2006. We consider a store to be ormaare retail
locations that are adjacent or operate as ong/eRtit the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006)aslerevenue of
$1.2 billion, operating income of $84.0 million,danet income of $39.4 million. Our same-store salereased
approximately 7% in fiscal 2006 and has averaggdeqimately 12% for the last five years.

We adopt the best practices developed by us andaguired companies as appropriate to enhancebdity &
attract more customers, foster an overall enjoybhb#ging experience, and offer boat manufacturtatsies and
professional retail distribution and a broad gepbiapresence. We believe that our full range ofises, nohaggle
sales approach, prime retail locations, premiundpcbofferings, extensive facilities, strong marragat and team
members, and emphasis on customer service anthstitin before and after a boat sale are competétvantages
that enable us to be more responsive to the ndexgsting and prospective customers.

The U.S. recreational boating industry generatgd@apmately $37.3 billion in retail sales in calem@005,
including sales of new and used boats; marine mtsgdsuch as engines, trailers, equipment, andsacotes; and
related expenditures, such as fuel, insurance,idgc&torage, and repairs. Retail sales of newused boats,
engines, trailers, and accessories accounted fooripately $28.9 billion of these sales in 2005dzhon industry
data from the National Marine Manufacturers Asstam The highly fragmented retail boating indusggnerally
consists of small dealers that operate in a simgieket and provide varying degrees of merchandigiragfessional
management, and customer service. We believe thay small dealers are finding it increasingly difli to make
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the managerial and capital commitments necessaghi@ve higher customer service levels and upggskems
and facilities as required by boat manufacturetsdemanded by customers. We also believe that mealgrs lack
an exit strategy for their owners. We believe tHaséors contribute to our opportunity.

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the natilm@ding recreational boat dealer. Key elementsuof
operating and growth strategy include the following

< emphasizing customer satisfaction and loyalty l®ating an overall enjoyable boating experienceirméog
with a negotiatio-free purchase process, superior customer servidep@mier facilities

« achieving efficiencies and synergies among ouraijers to enhance internal growth and profitahil
« emphasizing employee training and developm
« offering additional products and services, inclgdihose involving higher profit margin

 pursuing strategic acquisitions to capitalize ugmnconsolidation opportunities in the highly fraemted
recreational boat dealer industry by acquiring tidal dealers and related operations and improtheq
performance and profitability through the implenatinn of our operating strategie

« opening additional retail facilities in our exiggiand new territories
« promoting national brand name recognition and tlaeihMax connectior
« expanding our Internet retail operations and mange

« emphasizing the “best practices” developed by ascam acquired dealers as appropriate throughaut ou
dealerships

 operating with a decentralized approach to theatmral management of our dealerships;

« utilizing technology throughout operations, whigltifitates the interchange of information and ermean
cros«-selling opportunities throughout our compa

Development of the Company; Expansion of Business

MarineMax was founded in January 1998. MarineMaglftf however, conducted no operations until the
acquisition of five independent recreational bazdldrs on March 1, 1998, and we completed ourlmtiblic
offering in June 1998. Since the initial acquisiBan March 1998, we have acquired 20 additionadeaional boat
dealers, two boat brokerage operations, and tweséulice yacht repair operations. Each of our aegudealers is
continuing its operations under the MarineMax nam@ wholly owned operating subsidiary of our conypa

We continually attempt to expand our business lbyiding a full range of services, offering exteresand
high-quality product lines, maintaining prime rétatations, pursuing the MarineMax Value Priceesapproach,
and emphasizing the highest level of customer serand customer satisfaction.

We also evaluate opportunities to expand our ojpeErmby acquiring recreational boat dealers to espaur
geographic scope; expanding our product lines; iogemew retail locations within our existing teorites; and
providing new products and services for our custsme
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Acquisitions of additional recreational boat deslepresent an important strategy in our goal tmeoe our
position as the nation’s leading retailer of reticeeal boats. The following table sets forth infation regarding the
businesses that we have acquired and their gedgraggions.

Acquired Companies

Bassett Boat Company of Flori

Louis Del[Homme Marint

Gulfwind USA, Inc.

Gulfwind South, Inc.

Harrison’s Boat Center, Inc. and
Harrison’s Marine Centers of Arizona,
Inc.

Stovall Marine, Inc.

Cochran’s Marine, Inc. and C & N
Marine Corporatior

Sea Ray of North Carolina, In

Brevard Boat Compan

Sea Ray of Las Veg:

Treasure Cove Marina, Inc

Woods & Oviatt, Inc.

Boating World

Merit Marine, Inc.

Suburban Boatworks, Inc

Hansen Marine, Inc

Duce Marine, Inc.

Clark’s Landing, Inc. (selected New
Jersey locations and operatio

Associated Marine Technologies, Ir

Gulfwind Marine Partners, Inc

Seaside Marine, Inc

Sundance Marine, Inc

Killinger Marine Center, Inc. and
Killinger Marine Center of Alabama,
Inc.

Emarine International, Inc. and Steven
Myers, Inc.

Imperial Marine

Port Jacksonville Marin

Port Arrowhead Marina, Inc

Great American Marina(1

Surfside— 3 Marina, Inc.

(1) Joint venture

Acquisition Date

March 199!
March 199!
March 199!
March 199!

March 199!
April 1998

July 199¢

July 199¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
October 199
February 199
March 199
April 199¢
August 199
December 19¢

April 200C
January 20C
April 2002
July 200:
June 200

September 20(

October 200
June 200
June 200

January 20C

February 200

March 200!

Geographic Regior

Southeast Florid

Dallas and Houston, Tex.
West Central, Florid
Southwest Florid:

Northern California and Arizon
Georgia

Minnesots

North and South Carolir
East Central Florid
Nevada

Northern Ohic
Southeast Florid
Dallas, Texa:
Southern New Jerse
Central New Jerse
Northeast Florid:
Utah

Northern New Jerse
Southeast Florid
West Florids
Southern Californii
Colorado

Northwest Florida and Alaban

Southeast Florid

Baltimore, Marylanc

Northeast Florid:

Missouri, Oklahom:

West Floride

Connecticut, Maryland, New York, Rhode
Island

Apart from acquisitions, we have opened 20 newilrgizations in existing territories, excluding g®opened
on a temporary basis for a specific purpose. We mlsnitor the performance of our retail locations &lose retail
locations that do not meet our expectations. Baseithese factors, we have closed nine retail lonatsince March
1998, excluding those opened on a temporary base $pecific purpose.
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As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequeptigage in discussions with various recreationat bealers
regarding their potential acquisition by us. Inection with these discussions, we and each patexttquisition
candidate exchange confidential operational arehfifal information, conduct due diligence inquiriasd consider
the structure, terms, and conditions of the poséatiquisition. In certain cases, the prospectogpissition candidat
agrees not to discuss a potential acquisition aith other party for a specific period of time, gsams an option to
purchase the prospective dealer for a designated guring a specific time, and agrees to takeradh#ons
designed to enhance the possibility of the acdaisisuch as preparing audited financial informatmd converting
its accounting system to the system specified byPatential acquisition discussions frequently taleee over a
long period of time and involve difficult busingssegration and other issues, including in somesamanagement
succession and related matters. As a result oé thed other factors, a number of potential acqorstthat from
time to time appear likely to occur do not resnlbinding legal agreements and are not consummated.

In addition to acquiring recreational boat deaberd opening new retail locations, we also add nendyxt
lines to expand our operations. The following tad#és forth various product lines that we have dddeur existin

locations:

Product Line Fiscal Yeal Geographic Region

Boston Whale 1997 West Central Florida; Stuart, Florida; Dallas, T

Hatteras Yachts Florida (excluding the Florida panhandle) and dstiion

rights for products over 82 feet for North and $out

199¢ America, the Caribbean, and the Bahal

Boston Whale 199¢ Ohio

Boston Whale 200( North Palm Beach, Floric

Baja 2001 Houston, Texas and Las Vegas, Nev

Meridian Yachts Florida, Georgia, North and South Carolina, Neveder
200z Ohio, Minnesota, Texas, and Delaw

Grady White 200z Houston, Texa

Hatteras Yacht 200z Texas

Boston Whale 200¢ North and South Carolir

Century 200¢ North and South Carolir

Ferretti Yachts, Pershing, Riva,

Apreamare, and Mochi Cre 200¢ United States, Canada, the Bahamas, and M

Bertram United States (excluding the Florida peninsula and
200¢ portions of New England), Canada, and the Baha

Princecraft California, Delaware, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesota,
200¢ New Jersey, Ohio, and Tex

Baja 200t Tempe, Arizona, Colorado, Dallas, Texas, and |

Boston Whale 200t Houston and Dallas, Tex

Tracker Marine 200t Las Vegas, Nevac

Azimut 200¢ Northeast United States from Maryland to Ma

Atlantis 200¢ Northeast United States from Maryland to Ma

Cabo 200¢ Cape Haze, Clearwater, Destin, and Naples, Fl¢

Laguna 200¢ Florida, New Jersey, New Yol

As we add a brand, we believe we are offering aaiign for our existing customer base or fillingap in our
product offerings. As a result, we do not beligvat new product offerings will compete with or cératize the
business generated from our other prominent brands.

We plan to continue to expand our business thraagjuisitions in new geographical territories, néwes
openings in existing territories, and new prodired. In addition, we plan to continue to expartkeoservices,
including conducting used boat sales; offering yactu boat brokerage services; offering our custsrites ability
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to finance new or used boats; offering extendedieeicontracts; arranging insurance coverage, distuboat
property, credit-life, accident, disability, andsoalty coverage; selling related marine produatduding engines,
trailers, parts, and accessories; providing maariea and repair services at our retail locationkseadrstand-alone
service facilities; and expanding our ability t@yide slip and storage accommodations.

We maintain our executive offices at 18167 U.S.Higy 19 North, Suite 300, Clearwater, Florida 3376
our telephone number is (727) 531-1700. We wererparated in the state of Delaware in January 1898ss the
context otherwise requires, all references to “MeMax” mean MarineMax, Inc. prior to its acquisgitiof five
previously independent recreational boat dealelarnch 1998 (including their related real estatepanies) and ¢
references to the “Company,” “our company,” “weyis;” and “our” mean, as a combined company, MariagM
Inc. and the 20 recreational boat dealers, two bazkterage operations, and two full-service yaeptir operations
acquired to date (the “acquired dealers,” and togrewvith the brokerage and repair operations, ‘afieg
subsidiaries” or the “acquired companies”).

Our website is located atww.MarineMax.com. Through our website, we make available free afrgh our
annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reportd-orm 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K, auxyg
statements, and any amendments to those repedsoiilfurnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 16{dhe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These reportsieadable as soon as reasonably practicable atter w
electronically file those reports with the Secestand Exchange Commission. We also post on owsiteghe
charters of our Audit, Compensation, and Nomind@ugporate Governance Committees; our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, Code of Business ConducEémds, and Code of Ethics for the CEO and Sefioancial
Officers, and any amendments or waivers theretth;agny other corporate governance materials contagpby
SEC or NYSE regulations. These documents are absitable in print to any stockholder requestingpaycfrom ou
corporate secretary at our principal executiveceti
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BUSINESS

General

We are the largest recreational boat dealer ititited States. Through 88 retail locations in Alala Arizona
California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, FlariGeorgia, Maryland, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevadew
Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahomho&e Island, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texad/Jtaig we
sell new and used recreational boats, includingguiee boats (such as sport boats, sport cruigeng,yachts, and
yachts), and fishing boats, with a focus on premiwemds in each segment. We also sell related marimducts
including engines, trailers, parts, and accessdrieaddition, we arrange related boat and yactarfting, insuranc
and extended service contracts; provide repaimagidtenance services; offer boat and yacht brokesagvices;
and, where available, slip and storage accommausatio

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Ragt@oWhaler, Meridian, and Hatteras recreationatband
yachts. Sales of new Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Matjdind Hatteras recreational boats and yachtls,afachich is
manufactured by Brunswick Corporation, accountedafiproximately 59% of our revenue in fiscal 20BBunswick
is the world’s largest manufacturer of marine piidiand marine engines. We believe our sales rexpiexs in
excess of 13% of all Brunswick marine sales duang2006 fiscal year. Our principal operating sdlssies are a
party to dealer agreements with Brunswick covetirgge products and are the exclusive dealer of lsoats in its
geographic market. We also have the right to sattédas Yachts throughout the state of Floridal(elag the
Florida panhandle) and the state of Texas, asasdlhe distribution rights for Hatteras productsra®2 feet for
North and South America, the Caribbean, and theaBals. We have distribution rights for Meridian Yisdm most
of our geographic markets, excluding Arizona, @atifa, Colorado, Nevada, and Utah. We are the ekawealer
for Italy-based Ferretti Group for Ferretti YacH®®rshing, Riva, Apreamare, and Mochi Craft megahitgs yachts,
and other recreational boats for the United St&asada, the Bahamas, and Mexico. We also areithesere
dealer for Bertram in the United States (excludhmegyFlorida peninsula and certain portions of Newl&nd),
Canada, and the Bahamas. We are also the exchlsaler for Cabo Yachts throughout the state ofiéloWe are
the exclusive dealer for Italy-based Azimut-Ben&ftoup for Azimut and Atlantis mega-yachts, yachts] other
recreational boats for the Northeast United Stites Maryland to Maine.

U.S. Recreational Boating Industry

The total U.S. recreational boating industry getegt@approximately $37.3 billion in retail salesalendar
2005, including retail sales of new and used reimeal boats; marine products, such as engindiergaparts, and
accessories; and related boating expenditures,asufifel, insurance, docking, storage, and repRetail sales of
new boats, engines, trailers, and accessories atmbtor approximately $28.9 billion of such sale2005. Retall
recreational boating sales were $17.9 billion mldte 1980s, but declined to a low of $10.3 hillio 1992 based ¢
industry data published by the National Marine Masturers Association. We believe this decline atsbuted to
several factors, including a recession, the Gulf Vead the imposition throughout 1991 and 1992 lofkary tax on
boats sold at prices in excess of $100,000. Therjubax was repealed in 1993 and, with the excepmfol998 and
2003, retail recreational boating sales have irseéa&very year since.

The recreational boat retail market remains higtdgmented with little consolidation having occurte date
and consists of numerous boat retailers, most alwdwre small companies owned by individuals thrate in a
single market and provide varying degrees of merdising, professional management, and customeicgeihve
believe that many boat retailers are encounteringeased pressure from boat manufacturers to inegeir levels
of service and systems, increased competition fewger national retailers in certain product linasgl, in certain
cases, business succession issues.

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the natitmading recreational boat dealer. Key elementsuofstrategy
include the following:

Emphasizing Customer Satisfaction and Loyaltye seek to achieve a high level of customerfsation
and establish long-term customer loyalty by crepéin overall enjoyable boating experience
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beginning with a negotiation-free purchase procé&sfurther enhance and simplify the purchase E®by
helping to arrange financing and insurance at etailrlocations with competitive terms and streaedi
turnaround. We offer the customer a thorouglvater orientation of boat operations where avadlaht well a
ongoing boat safety, maintenance, and use senmandrdemonstrations for the customer’s entire fanvilg
also continue our customer service after the saledding and sponsoring MarineM@&etawaysgroup
boating trips to various destinations, rendezvatbeyings, and on-the-water organized events teiggaur
customers with pre-arranged opportunities to ettj@ypleasures of the boating lifestyle. We alsceandr to
provide superior maintenance and repair servidésn through mobile service at the customer’s viptand
with extended service department hours and emeyganeice availability, that minimize the hassléboat
maintenance.

Emphasizing Best PracticesWe emphasize the “best practices” developed ndsour acquired dealers
as appropriate throughout our locations. As an @@mve follow a no-haggle sales approach at e&oluo
dealerships. Under the MarineMax Value-Price apgrpae sell our boats at posted prices, generally
representing a discount from the manufacturer’'gsated retail price, thereby eliminating the anegbf price
negotiations that occur in most boat purchaseadtition, we adopt, where beneficial, the bestfres
developed by us and our acquired dealers in tefrosation, design, layout, product purchases, teaiance
and repair services (including extended servicasand mobile or dockside services), product mixpleyee
training, and customer education and services.

Achieving Operating Efficiencies and Synergiad/e strive to increase the operating efficiencitand
achieve certain synergies among our dealershipedier to enhance internal growth and profitabilitye
centralize various aspects of certain administeafiinctions at the corporate level, such as acaayrfinance,
insurance coverage, employee benefits, marketiraegic planning, legal support, purchasing astridiution,
and management information systems. Centralizatidhese functions reduces duplicative expenses and
permits the dealerships to benefit from a levedasle and expertise that would otherwise be ureailto eac
dealership individually. We also seek to realizet@avings from reduced inventory carrying costs essult of
purchasing boat inventories on a national leveldinetting boats to dealership locations that canemmeadily
sell such boats; lower financing costs throughavadit sources; and volume purchase discountsebates for
certain marine products, supplies, and advertisihg. ability of our retail locations to offer theraplementary
services of our other retail locations, such asroffy customer excursion opportunities, providirgmenance
and repair services at the customer’s boat locasind giving access to a larger inventory, incredise
competitiveness of each retail location. By ceittiiad) these types of activities, our store manageaxse more
time to focus on the customer and the developmethiedr teams.

Emphasizing Employee Training and Developmenb. promote continued internal growth, we devote
substantial efforts to train our employees to usidard our core retail philosophies, which focusraking the
purchase of a boat and its subsequent use as {i@ssknd enjoyable as possible. Through our Matane
University, or MMU, we teach our retail philosopsi® existing and new employees at various locatam
online, through MMU-online. MMU is a modularizeddaimstructorled educational program that focuses or
retailing philosophies and provides instructionsoich matters as the sales process, customer sdféite
accounting, leadership, and human resources.

Offering Additional Products and Services, Inclglifhose Involving Higher Profit MarginsWe plan to
continue to offer additional product lines and &= throughout our dealerships or, when appragriat
selected dealerships. We are offering throughoutlealerships product lines that previously havenbeffered
only at certain of our locations. We also may abtdditional product lines through the acquisitadn
distribution rights directly from manufacturers ahe acquisition of dealerships with distributiéeghts. We
have increased our used boat sales and yacht bgekeervices through an increased emphasis on these
activities, cooperative efforts among our dealgrshand the use of the Internet. We also plan mtirmae to
grow our financing and insurance, parts and accessservice and boat storage businesses to lsettez our
customers and thereby increase revenue and improf¥igability of these higher margin businesses.

Pursuing Strategic AcquisitionsWe capitalize upon the significant consolidatigportunities available
in the highly fragmented recreational boat dealdustry by acquiring independent dealers and
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improving their performance and profitability thghuthe implementation of our operating strategi¢s
primary acquisition focus is on well-establisheighhend recreational boat dealers in geographiketamot
currently served by us, particularly geographic kets with strong boating demographics, such assaméhin
the coastal states and the Great Lakes region.|S@eray seek to acquire boat dealers that, whdatéml in
attractive geographic markets, have not been ahiealize favorable market share or profitabilindahat can
benefit substantially from our systems and opegaginategies. We may expand our range of produoes]i
service offerings, and market penetration by adogicompanies that distribute recreational boatipeb lines
or boating-related services different from thosecweently offer. As a result of our consideralvidustry
experience and relationships, we believe we arépesitioned to identify and evaluate acquisiti@mdidates
and assess their growth prospects, the qualityedf mnanagement teams, their local reputation witomers,
and the suitability of their locations. We believe are regarded as an attractive acquiror by besleds
because of (1) the historical performance and sperence and reputation of our management teahinie
industry; (2) our decentralized operating strategyich generally enables the managers of an aajdizaler tc
continue their involvement in dealership operatjd8% the ability of management and employees ddi@aquiret
dealer to participate in our growth and expansiwaugh potential stock ownership and career advaané
opportunities; and (4) the ability to offer liquigito the owners of acquired dealers through theipt of
common stock or cash. We have entered into an agmgeregarding acquisitions with the Sea Ray Davigif
Brunswick. Under the agreement, acquisitions of Bap dealers will be mutually agreed upon by us $eal
Ray with reasonable efforts to be made to inclubalance of Sea Ray dealers that have been suaicasdf
those that have not been. The agreement provideS#a Ray will not unreasonably withhold its corige any
proposed acquisition of a Sea Ray dealer by usesiuto the conditions set forth in the agreemastiurther
described in “Business — Brunswick Agreement Retatd Acquisitions.”

Opening New Facilities.We intend to continue to establish additionagitéacilities in our existing and
new markets. We believe that the demographics oégisting geographic territories support the opgrof
additional facilities, and we have opened 20 newilréacilities, excluding those opened on a tenappbasis
for a specific purpose, since our formation in Jagu998. We also plan to reach new customers gifirou
various innovative retail formats developed byaush as mall stores and floating retail faciliti®sir mall stor:
concept is unique to the boating industry and sgieed to draw mall traffic, thereby providing espee to
boating for the non-boating public as well as digpig our new product offerings to boating enthsisia
Floating retail facilities place the sales facilityith a customer reception area and sales offam@®r anchored
to a dock in a marina and use adjacent boat slipssplay our new and used boats in areas of higiirtg
activity. We continually monitor the performanceaufr retail locations and close retail locatiorest ttho not
meet our expectations or that were opened for eifgppurpose that is no longer relevant. Since ¢hat998,
we have closed nine retail locations, excludingséhopened on a temporary basis for a specific gerpo

Promoting Brand Name Recognition and the Marinelaxinection. We are promoting our brand name
recognition to take advantage of our status asdltien’s only coast-to-coast marine retailer. T8iisitegy also
recognizes that many existing and potential custeiwho reside in Northern markets and vacation for
substantial periods in Southern markets will prédgpurchase and service their boats from the saatie
known company. We refer to this strategy as therfiMaMax Connection.” As a result, our sighage enspftes
the MarineMax name at each of our locations, and¢eveluct national advertising in various print artider
media.

Utilization of the Internet. Our web initiativewww.MarineMax.com provides customers with the ability
to learn more about our company and our produats Website generates direct sales and providestotes
with leads to potential customers for new and usmats and brokerage services. We also plan to expan
ability to offer financing and parts and accessode our website.

Operating with Decentralized ManagementVe maintain a generally decentralized approac¢heo
operational management of our dealerships. Thentieteed management approach takes advantage of th
extensive experience of local managers, enabliag tto implement policies and make decisions, irolyithe
appropriate product mix, based on the needs dbttae market. Local management authority also feste
responsive customer service and promotes long-temmunity and customer relationships. In addittbe,
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centralization of certain administrative functiatghe corporate level enhances the ability ofllat@nagers to
focus their efforts on day-to-day dealership openatand the customers.

Utilizing Technology Throughout OperationdVe believe that our management information systenich
currently is being utilized by each operating sdiasy and was developed over a number of yearsigfiro
cooperative efforts with a common vendor, enhancesbility to integrate successfully the operagioh our
operating subsidiaries and future acquired dealdrs.system facilitates the interchange of inforomaand
enhances cross-selling opportunities throughoutompany. The system integrates each level of tipason
a company-wide basis, including purchasing, inventeeceivables, financial reporting, budgetingd aales
management. The system also provides sales repmges with prospect and customer information tids
them in tracking the status of their contacts withspects, automatically generates followeoprespondence
such prospects, facilitates the availability of tsac@ompany-wide, locates boats needed to satisficplar
customer requests, and monitors the maintenanceeamite needs of customers’ boats. Our repre$esdat
also utilize the computer system to assist in girapcustomer financing and insurance packagesntamagel
use a web-based tool to access essentially alidinahand operational data from anywhere at angtim

Products and Services

We offer new and used recreational boats and cehatine products, including engines, trailersigamnd
accessories. While we sell a broad range of newuard boats, we focus on premium brand produceddiition,
we assist in arranging related boat financing, riaisce, and extended service contracts; providerhaattenance
and repair services; provide boat brokerage sesvared offer slip and storage accommodations.

New Boat Sales

We primarily sell recreational boats, includinggsare boats and fishing boats. The principal przdwe offer
are manufactured by Brunswick, the leading worléidanufacturer of recreational boats, including Baa
pleasure boats; Boston Whaler and Laguna fishirgshdleridian Yachts; Cabo Yachts; and Hatterash¥adn
fiscal 2006, we derived approximately 59% of owereue from the sale of new boats manufactured lm®&wvick.
We believe that we represented in excess of 138 of Brunswick’s marine product sales during thatiod. We
also sell mega-yachts, yachts, and other recrestimats manufactured by Bertram and the Italy-th&saretti
Group, including Ferretti Yachts, Pershing, Rivardamare, and Mochi Craft. Certain of our deal@shiso sell
luxury yachts, fishing boats, and pontoon boatvigier by other manufacturers, including Italy-bageimut.
During fiscal 2006, new boat sales accounted fpr@pmately 70.9% of our revenue.

We offer recreational boats in most market segméitishave a particular focus on premium qualigagure
boats and yachts as reflected by our fiscal 20@6ame new boat sales price of approximately $1 06,80 increase
of 12% from fiscal 2005, compared with an estimahellistry average calendar 2005 selling price pfaximately
$31,000 based on industry data published by theNgtMarine Manufacturers Association. Given @adtions in
some of the more affluent, offshore boating aragkhé United States and emphasis on high levetsistbmer
service, we sell a relatively higher percentagkanafe recreational boats, such as mega-yachtstsyamtd sport
cruisers. We believe that the product lines weraife among the highest quality within their respecmarket
segments, with well-established trade-name reciognéind reputations for quality, performance, atytirsy.
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The following table is illustrative of the rangedaapproximate manufacturer suggested retail pange of ney
boats that we offer, but is not all inclusive:

Manufacturer Suggested

Product Line and Trade Name Overall Length Retail Price Range
Motor Yachts
Hatteras Motor Yacht 64 to 10( $ 3,000,000 to $10,000,0+
Ferretti 46 to 8¢ 1,100,000 to 7,500,0+
Azimut 43 to 11t 790,000 to 10,600,0+
Convertibles
Hatteras Convertible 50 to 9( 2,300,000 to 7,000,0++
Bertram 36 to 67 500,000 to 3,500,0¢+
Cabo 32 to 5: 450,000 to 1,700,0+
Pleasure Boats
Sea Ray 17 to 6( 21,000 to 2,500,0(
Meridian 35 to 5¢ 300,000 to 1,600,0(
Fishing Boats
Boston Whale 11 to 3: 8,000 to 210,0C
Laguna 18 to 2« 25,000 to 55,0C
Specialty Boats & Yachts
Pershinc 50 to 11! 1,600,000 to 13,000,0+
Riva 33to 11! 600,000 to 9,000,0(+
Apreamare 25 to 5! 350,000 to 2,000,0+
Mochi Craft. 44 to 7¢ 1,200,000 to 4,600,0+

Motor Yachts. Hatteras Yachts, Ferretti Group, and Azimut hreé of the worlds premier yacht builders. T
motor yacht product lines typically include stafettee-art designs with live-aboard luxuries. Thettelas series
offers a flybridge with extensive guest seatingjered aft deck, which may be fully or partially &sed, providing
the boater with additional living space; an elegaibn; and multiple staterooms for accommodatibestetti is
known for its European styling, speed, performaaog, offers luxurious salon/galley arrangementsrantiple
staterooms with private heads. Azimut yachts amwmnfor their Americanized open layout with Italidasign,
powerful performance, and accuracy. The luxuriowsriors are accented by windows and multiple aconodation:
that have been cleverly designed for comfort.

Convertibles. Hatteras Yachts, Bertram Yachts, and Cabo Yaaietshree of the world’s premier convertible
yacht builders and offestate-of-the-art designs with live-aboard luxuri@envertibles are primarily fishing vessels,
which are well equipped to meet the needs of elvemrtost serious tournament-class competitor. TheHa series
features interiors that offer luxurious salon/gaerangements, multiple staterooms with privatedseand a
cockpit that includes a bait and tackle centehtftsc, and freezer. The Bertram series featureiargethat offer
spacious living room and salon/galley arrangementstiple staterooms with private heads, and a pib¢kat
includes storage for big catches, ample prep ame) sink area, live-bait storage, and stand-ugtage. The
Cabo series are known for spacious cockpits anelsadaility to essentials, such as bait chestswiéhs, bait prep
centers, and tackle lockers. Cabo interiors offegance, highlighted by teak woodwork, halogentlighy and ampl
storage areas.

Pleasure Boats. Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats target bettukury and the family recreational boat
markets and come in a variety of configurationstih each customer’s particular recreational bogdityle. Sea Ray
sport yachts and yachts serve the luxury segmethieafecreational boating market and include tofhetlineliving
accommodations with a salon, a fully equipped gabed multiple staterooms. Sea Ray sport yachtsyanhts are
available in cabin, bridge cockpit, and cruiser gledSea Ray sport boat and sport cruiser modeldesigned for
performance and dependability to meet family reftweal needs and include many of the features and
accommodations of Sea Ray’s sport yacht and yaolefs. Meridian sport yachts and yachts are knawthieir
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solid performance and thoughtful use of space @6b-degree views and spacious salon, galley, aterebm
accommodations. Meridian sport yachts and yacletsweailable in sedan, motoryacht, and pilothousdetso All
Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats feature custnumentation that may include an electronickpge;
various hull, deck, and cockpit designs that cafuihe a swim platform, bow pulpit, and raised begdgnd various
amenities, such as swivel bucket helm seats, loseges, sun pads, wet bars, built-in ice chestsrefreshment
centers. Most Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure beatare Mercury or MerCruiser engines.

Fishing Boats. The fishing boats we offer, such as Boston Whate Laguna, range from entry level models
to advanced models designed for fishing and waterts in lakes, bays, and off-shore waters, withircawith
limited live-aboard capability. The fishing boagpically feature livewells, in-deck fishboxes, radithers, rigging
stations, cockpit coaming pads, and fresh and atdtwvashdowns.

Specialty Boats.Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, and Mochi Craft spgcimats and yachts are known for
exceptional quality, design, and innovation andcamesidered premium products in their respectiggrsmnts. The
Pershing series is considered a perfect blendghf pérformance, luxury, and the comfort of perfebtended
interior space. The Riva series is considered bgdalwho want the best, expect the best, and lvbdist as the
luxury boat of choice. The Apreamare series is iclmmed one of the most exciting and most desirakpgess
cruisers on the market with an unparalleled Eurngkssign. The Mochi Craft series is an old-styleteation that
rediscovers the natural lines of the 1950s.

Used Boat Sales

We sell used versions of the new makes and modelsfier and, to a lesser extent, used boats of otlages
and models generally taken as trade-ins. Durirgafi2006, used boat sales accounted for approxiynbfe0% of
our revenue, and approximately 75% of the usedshwatsold were Brunswick models.

Our used boat sales depend on our ability to scustgply of high-quality used boats at attracgiviees. We
acquire substantially all of our used boats throaggtomer trade-ins. We intend to continue to iaseeour used
boat business as a result of the increased avéyadfi quality used boats generated from our exjiag sales
efforts, the increasing number of used boats treatv&ll-maintained through our service initiativear ability to
market used boats throughout our combined deafersttivork to match used boat demand, and the expmriof
our yacht brokerage operations. Additionally, sabgally all of our used boat inventory is postedour web site,
www.MarineMax.com which expands the awareness and availabilityuofpooducts to a large audience of boating
enthusiasts.

At most of our retail locations, we offer the SemyR egacy warranty plan available for used Sealitafs less
than six years old. The Legacy plan applies to epetifying used Sea Ray boat, which has passé&dpoiht
inspection, and provides protection against faibfrenost mechanical parts for up to three yearsbéleve that the
Sea Ray Legacy warranty plan, which is only avéddbr used Sea Ray boats purchased from a Sedd&dgr,
enhances our sales of used Sea Ray boats by nogiyatrchasers of used Sea Ray boats to purchasérom a
Sea Ray dealer and motivating sellers of Sea Raishio sell through a Sea Ray dealer.

Marine Engines, Related Marine Equipment, and Boagj Accessories

We offer marine engines and propellers, substangdll of which are manufactured by Mercury Mariae,
division of Brunswick. We sell marine engines amndgellers primarily to retail customers as replaeats for their
existing engines or propellers. Mercury Marine imioduced various new engine models that redugaen
emissions to comply with current Environmental Betibn Agency requirements. See “Business — Enwiremtal
and Other Regulatory Issues.” An industry leadeafmost six decades, Mercury Marine specializes in
state-of-the-art marine propulsion systems andssoeees. Many of our operating subsidiaries haeslvecognized
by Mercury Marine as “Premier Service Dealers.”sTtiesignation is generally awarded based on meegirigin
standards and qualifications.
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We also sell related marine parts and accessaniading oils, lubricants, steering and controdtgyns,
corrosion control products, engine care, mainteeaand service products (primarily Mercury Marin@sicksilver
line); high-performance accessories (such as pieypgland instruments; and a complete line of Ingaticcessories,
including life jackets, inflatables, and water gpaquipment. We also offer novelty items, suchkrags, caps, and
license plates bearing the manufacturer’s or dsdi@go.

The sale of marine engines, related marine equipraed boating accessories accounted for approglgnat
2.9% of our fiscal 2006 revenue.

Maintenance, Repair, and Storage Services

Providing customers with professional, prompt nexiiaince and repair services is critical to our sefests anc
contributes to our profitability. We provide mainsace and repair services at most of our retadtions, with
extended service hours at certain of our locatibmaddition, in many of our markets, we providehit®
maintenance and repair services at the locatidgheo€ustomer’s boat. We believe that this servararoitment is a
competitive advantage in the markets in which wapete and is critical to our efforts to provide@uble-free
boating experience. To further this commitmentgeéntain of our markets, we have opened stand-atwietenance
and repair facilities in locations that are morawanient for our customers and that increase théadility of such
services. We also believe that our maintenanceepair services contribute to strong customer iaiahips and
that our emphasis on preventative maintenance aalityjservice increases the potential supply of-waintained
boats for our used boat sales.

We perform both warranty and non-warranty repaivises, with the cost of warranty work reimburseactie
manufacturer in accordance with the manufactusggganty reimbursement program. For warranty work,
Brunswick reimburses a percentage of the dealessegl service labor rates, with the percentagengdepending
on the dealer’'s customer satisfaction index raéind attendance at service training courses. Wegaldre majority
of our warranty revenue from Brunswick productsBasnswick products comprise the majority of progusold.
Certain other manufacturers reimburse warranty vabik fixed amount per repair. Because boat maturirs
permit warranty work to be performed only at authed dealerships, we receive substantially alhefwarranted
maintenance and repair work required for the neatdwe sell. The third-party extended warranty i@ts we
offer also result in an ongoing demand for our reaiance and repair services for the duration ofeaha of the
extended warranty contract.

Our maintenance and repair services are performenanufacturer-trained and certified service teciamis. In
charging for our mechanics’ labor, many of our destiips use a variable rate structure designeeflect the
difficulty and sophistication of different types i&pairs. The percentage markups on parts aresslynbased on
manufacturer suggested prices and market condittordifferent parts.

At many of our locations, we offer boat storagesees, including in-water slip storage and insidd autside
land storage. These storage services are offermuhgtetitive market rates and includeseason and winter storay

Maintenance, repair, and storage services accotiotegpproximately 4.9% of our revenue during fis2@06.
This includes warranty and non-warranty services.

F&I Products

At each of our retail locations, we offer our cumtgs the ability to finance new or used boat puseland to
purchase extended service contracts and arrangeiree coverage, including boat property, crefiit And
accident, disability, and casualty insurance cayei@ollectively, “F&I").

We have relationships with various national mapneduct lenders under which the lenders purchasad re
installment contracts evidencing retail sales aftb@nd other marine products that are originayeastin
accordance with existing pre-sale agreements betwgand the lenders. These arrangements peritatraseive a
portion of the finance charges expected to be éavnehe retail installment contract based on &taof factors,
including the credit standing of the buyer, thewaimpercentage rate of the contract charged toulger, and the
lender’s then current minimum required annual paiage rate charged to the buyer on the contracs. Th
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participation is subject to repayment by us ifllger prepays the contract or defaults within agieged time
period, usually 90 to 180 days. To the extent nexglby applicable state law, our dealerships aened to
originate and sell retail installment contractsfining the sale of boats and other marine products.

We also offer third-party extended service congactder which, for a predetermined price, we pre
designated services pursuant to the service camjtadelines during the contract term at no addaicharge to the
customer above a deductible. While we sell all heats with the boat manufacturer’s standard huitavay of
generally five years and standard engine warrahgyenerally one year, extended service contracigige
additional coverage beyond the time frame or safpkee manufacturer's warranty. Purchasers of imexds
generally are able to purchase an extended seswitteact, even if the selected boat is no longeeed by the
manufacturer’s warranty. Generally, we receiveeafée arranging an extended service contract. vexgtired
services under the contracts are provided by ugaittfor by the third-party contract holder.

We also are able to assist our customers with pip@runity to purchase credit life insurance, aeotdand
disability insurance, and property and casualtyriasce. Credit life insurance policies providefgpayment of the
boat financing contract if the purchaser dies witike contract is outstanding. Accident and disshitisurance
policies provide for payment of the monthly contralligation during any period in which the buysdisabled.
Property and casualty insurance covers loss or garwathe boat. We do not act as an insurance boolagent or
issue insurance policies on behalf of insurers. Négjever, provide marketing activities and othéates services t
insurance companies and brokers for which we reciarketing fees. One of our strategies is to gaaéncreased
marketing fees by offering more competitive insweaproducts.

During fiscal 2006, fee income generated from Fé&dducts accounted for approximately 3.2% of ouermie.
We believe that our customers’ ability to obtaimgetitive financing quickly and easily at our deskeps
complements our ability to sell new and used bd&fs also believe our ability to provide customelstad
financing on a “same-day” basis gives us an adganteer many of our competitors, particularly seall
competitors that lack the resources to arrangefireicing at their dealerships or that do not geteesufficient
volume to attract the diversity of financing sowtleat are available to us.

Brokerage Services

Through employees or subcontractors that are lembbsat or yacht brokers, we offer boat or yacbkérage
services at most of our retail locations. For a wassion, we offer for sale brokered boats or yadrgsng them on
the “BUC” system, and advising our other retaildtions of their availability through our integrateasimputer
system and posting them on our web sitew.MarineMax.comThe BUC system, which is similar to a real estate
multiple listing service, is a national boat or ilisting service of approximately 900 brokers miained by
BUC International. Often sales are co-brokeredhht commission split between the buying andreglirokers.
We believe that our access to potential used haabmers and methods of listing and advertisingotosrs’
brokered boats or yachts is more extensive thapisal among brokers. In addition to generatingeraue from
brokerage commissions, our brokerage servicesesmiable us to offer a broad array of used boatscintg without
increasing related inventory costs. During fisda0@, brokerage services accounted for approximatéBs of our
revenue.

Our brokerage customers generally receive the $aghelevel of customer service as our new and beed
customers. Our waterfront retail locations enabevater demonstrations of an on-site brokered lat.
maintenance and repair services, including moleiteise, also are generally available to our brojereustomers.
The purchaser of a Sea Ray boat brokered througlsasan take advantage of MarineMaatawaysweekend ar
day trips and other rendezvous gatherings and te+rvesents, as well as boat operation and safetynses. We
believe that the array of services we offer argueiin the brokerage business.

Retail Locations

We sell our recreational boats and other marindymrts and offer our related boat services throghegail
locations in Alabama, Arizona, California, Colora@mnnecticut, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Maryland
Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New Ybitrth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Island, South
Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah. Each retaitibn generally includes an indoor showroom (idieig some
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of the industrys largest indoor boat showrooms) and an outsidefaredisplaying boat inventories, a business e
to assist customers in arranging financing andrarste, and maintenance and repair facilities.

Many of our retail locations are waterfront progston some of the nation’s most popular boaticgtions,
including the Delta Basin, Newport Harbor, and MissBay in California; Norwalk Harbor in Connecttcmultiple
locations on the Intracoastal Waterway, the Atta@itean, Biscayne Bay, Boca Ciega Bay, Naples Baxt o the
Gulf of Mexico), Tampa Bay, and the CaloosahatdRizer in Florida; Lake Lanier and Lake Altoona ie@gia;
Chesapeake Bay in Maryland; Leech Lake and th€i®ix River in Minnesota; Lake of the Ozarks, TaRleck
Lake, and the Mississippi River in Missouri; BaraeBay, the Delaware River, the Hudson River, Lidkpatcong,
Little Egg Harbor, and the Manasquan River in Newsdy; Great Sound Bay, the Hudson River, and Hgtan
Harbor in New York; the Intracoastal Waterway inrflicCarolina; Lake Erie in Ohio; Grand Lake in Gidana;
Myrtle Beach in South Carolina; and Clear Lake, . &onroe, and Lake Lewisville in Texas. Our watarfrretail
locations, most of which include marina-type fdigk and docks at which we display our boats, asfyeaccessible
to the boating populace, serve as in-water showspamd enable the sales force to give customerdiate in-
water demonstrations of various boat models. Mbsuo other locations are in close proximity to @rat

We plan to reach new customers by expanding inloeations through various innovative retail formatsch
as mall stores and floating retail facilities. @uall store concept is unique to the boating induatrd is designed to
draw mall traffic, thereby providing exposure taling to the non-boating public as well as dispigydur new
product offerings to boating enthusiasts. Floatitgil facilities place the sales facility, wittcastomer reception
area and sales offices, on or anchored to a doaknarina and use adjacent boat slips to displeyamel used boats
in areas of high boating activity.

Operations
Dealership Operations and Management

We have adopted a generally decentralized appitoaitte operational management of our dealershigsleN
certain administrative functions are centralizethatcorporate level, local management is primagbkponsible for
the day-to-day operations of the retail locatideech retail location is managed by a store managey,oversees
the day-to-day operations, personnel, and finapaéormance of the individual store, subject ® dlirection of a
district manager, who generally has responsibititythe retail locations within a specified geodrapregion.
Typically, each retail location also has a staffigieting of a sales manager, an F&I manager, & pad service
manager, sales representatives, maintenance aaid teghnicians, and various support personnel.

We attempt to attract and retain quality employaesur retail locations by providing them with ongp
training to enhance sales professionalism and ptdcwwledge, career advancement opportunitiesinvétarger
company, and favorable benefit packages. We maiatédrmal training program, called MarineMax Unisigy or
“MMU,” which provides training for employees in @kpects of our operations. Training sessionselckat our
various regional locations covering a variety qfits. MMU-online offers various modules over the Interneghty
trained, professional sales representatives ammportant factor to our successful sales effortese sales
representatives are trained at MMU to recognizerttportance of fostering an enjoyable sales prodessducate
customers on the operation and use of the boadgoaassist customers in making technical and dedggisions in
boat purchases. The overall focus of MMU is to lear core retailing values, which focus on custosssvice.

Sales representatives receive compensation prim@rib commission basis. Each store manager imaesh
employee with incentive bonuses based on the pedioce of the managed dealership. Maintenance gadf re
service managers receive compensation on a saary With bonuses based on the performance of their
departments. Our management information systemiges\each store and department manager with dadpdial
and operational information, enabling them to mamtiheir performance on a daily, weekly, and montidsis. We
have a uniform, fully integrated management infdrarasystem serving each of our dealerships.
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Sales and Marketing

Our sales philosophy focuses on selling the plessaf the boating lifestyle. We believe that thigaal
elements of our sales philosophy include our appgaétail locations, our no-hassle sales approlaighly trained
sales representatives, high level of customer sgreimphasis on educating the customer and thensests family
on boat usage, and providing our customers wittodppities for boating. We strive to provide supeustomer
service and support before, during, and after #he s

Each retail location offers the customer the opputy to evaluate a large variety of new and useatdin a
comfortable and convenient setting. Our full-sesvietail locations facilitate a turn-key purchasgrgcess that
includes attractive lender financing packages,reldd service agreements, and insurance. Many aktait
locations are located on waterfronts and marin&gtwattract boating enthusiasts and enable custoto®perate
various boats prior to making a purchase decision.

We sell our boats at posted value prices that gdgeepresent a discount from the manufacturarggested
retail price. Our sales approach focuses on custesrgice by minimizing customer anxiety associatét price
negotiation.

As a part of our sales and marketing efforts, vge alrticipate in boat shows and in-the-water salests at
area boating locations, typically held in Januargt Rebruary, in each of our markets and in cettations in clos
proximity to our markets. These shows and eversarmally held at convention centers or marinaf) area
dealers renting space. Boat shows and other offeit@otions are an important venue for generatagssorders.
The boat shows also generate a significant amduntayest in our products resulting in boat salfsr the show.

We emphasize customer education through one-oredneation by our sales representatives and, at some
locations, our delivery captains, before and atsale, and through in-house seminars for theeefatinily on boat
safety, the use and operation of boats, and pratkrobnstrations. Typically, one of our delivery teéps or the
sales representative delivers the customer’s boat tarea boating location and thoroughly instrtietscustomer
about the operation of the boat, including hand#aetructions for docking and trailering the bokd. enhance our
customer relationships after the sale, we leadsapdsor MarineMaetawaysgroup boating trips to various
destinations, rendezvous gatherings, and on-therwaganized events that promote the pleasurdwedidating
lifestyle. Each company-sponsored event, plannddeshby a company employee, also provides a félera
medium for acclimating new customers to boating @mables us to promote actively new product oftezito
boating enthusiasts.

As a result of our relative size, we believe weehavcompetitive advantage within the industry bipgeable to
conduct an organized and systematic advertisingrvearéteting effort. Part of our marketing effortlides an
integrated prospect management system that trhekstatus of each sales representative’s contétttayprospect,
automatically generates follow-up corresponderaeijifates company-wide availability of a partiaubmat or other
marine product desired by a customer, and tragksnintenance and service needs for the custoineats

Suppliers and Inventory Management

We purchase substantially all of our new boat inegndirectly from manufacturers, which allocatevnigoats
to dealerships based on the amount of boats saldebgiealership. We also exchange new boats whitkr atealers t
accommodate customer demand and to balance inyentor

We purchase new boats and other marine-relatedipt®ffom Brunswick, which is the world’s largest
manufacturer of marine products, including Sea Bagton Whaler, Baja, Cabo, Hatteras, Princecaafd,
Meridian. We also purchase new boats and othemmaeiated products from other manufacturers, @inty
Azimut, Bertram, Century, the Ferretti Group, Gratliite, Sea Pro, and Tracker Marine. In fiscal 2G@fes of
new Brunswick boats accounted for approximately 58%ur revenue. No other manufacturer accountednfure
than 10% of our revenue in fiscal 2006. We beliewveSea Ray boat purchases represented approxyrd@g4 of
Sea Ray’s new boat sales and in excess of 13% Bfuaiswick marine product sales during fiscal 2006
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Through operating subsidiaries, we have enter@dagteements with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prisduc
The dealer agreements with the Sea Ray divisidrafiswick do not restrict our right to sell any Sy product
lines or competing products. The terms of the demdeeement appoints a designated geographicabtgrfor the
dealer, which is exclusive to the dealer as lonthaslealer is not in breach of the material obildges and
performance standards under the agreement and&&atRen current material policies and prograniigfidng
notice and the expiration of any applicable cunéqas without cure.

The dealer agreement with Ferretti Group and Berttaes not restrict our right to sell any Ferr@ttoup and
Bertram product lines but has certain restrictigaiating to competing products. The dealer agre¢mgpoints us ¢
the exclusive dealer for the retail sale, dispémyd servicing of designated Ferretti Group andrBertproducts and
repair parts currently or in the future sold byredr Group and Bertram in the designated geograpléas.

Upon the completion of the Surfside-3 acquisitior,became the exclusive dealer for Azimut-Benettiup’s
(Azimut) product line of Azimut. The Azimut dealagreement provides a geographic territory to prentiog
product line and to network with the appropriaierdiele through various independent locations dedag for
Azimut retail sales.

Arrangements with certain other manufacturers neagrict our right to offer some product lines imta
markets.

We typically deal with each of our manufacturetsieo than the Sea Ray division of Brunswick, urater
annually renewable, noexclusive dealer agreement. Manufacturers genegathblish prices on an annual basis
may change prices in their sole discretion. Manufaes typically discount the cost of inventory after inventory
financing assistance during the manufacturers’ slemsons, generally October through March. To oliaver cost
of inventory, we strive to capitalize on these nfanturer incentives to take product delivery durihg
manufacturers’ slow seasons. This permits us to gacing advantages and better product availghilitring the
selling season.

We transfer individual boats among our retail lawad to fill customer orders that otherwise migike
substantially longer to fill from the manufactur&his reduces delays in delivery, helps us maxinmizentory
turnover, and assists in minimizing potential ot@ck or out-of-stock situations. We actively monitar inventory
levels to maintain levels appropriate to meet curamticipated market demands. We are not bounzmbhtractual
agreements governing the amount of inventory tleatrwst purchase in any year from any manufacthtegrthe
failure to purchase at agreed upon levels maytréasthe loss of certain manufacturer incentiveg pérticipate in
numerous end-of-summer manufacturer boat showghwhanufacturers sponsor to sell off their remanin
inventory at reduced costs before the introduotibnew model year products, typically beginningliry.

Inventory Financing

Marine manufacturers customarily provide interessistance programs to retailers. The interesttassis
varies by manufacturer and may include periodsex financing or reduced interest rate programs.ifiterest
assistance may be paid directly to the retaileéherfinancial institution depending on the arrangata the
manufacturer has established. We believe thatioan€ing arrangements with manufacturers are stdnalihin the
industry.

In March 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EbFEhe Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB
revised certain provisions of its previously reathenclusions on EITF 02-16, “Accounting by a Custo
(Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideratiorc&eed from a Vendor” (EITF 02-16), and providediiéidnal
transitional guidance. We determined that EITF 82ripacts the way we account for interest assistagceived
from vendors beginning after July 1, 2003 with teerewal of and amendments to our dealer agreeméhtshe
manufacturers of our products. EITF 02+h6st significantly requires us to classify interassistance received frc
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costratated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstaisse against
our interest expense incurred with our lenders.

Our revolving credit facility currently provides usth a line of credit with assdtased borrowing availability -
up to $500 million for working capital and invengdinancing and an additional $20 million for tradnal floorplan
borrowings, all of which are determined pursuard tworrowing base formula. The credit facility reqa
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us to satisfy certain covenants, including mairitejra tangible net worth ratio. The credit facildyrrently matures
in May 2011, with two one-year renewal options rarimy. The credit facility was last amended in J@686 to
extend the terms and increase the borrowing avkiyab

As of September 30, 2006, we owed an aggregat82if.$ million under our revolving credit faciliths of
September 30, 2006, our revolving credit facilitpyided us with an additional available borrowirapacity of
approximately $130.0 million. Advances on the filgidccrued interest at a rate of 6.8% as of Sepésr@0, 2006.
We were in compliance with all covenants in thelitgcas of September 30, 2006.

Management Information System

We believe that our management information systenich currently is being utilized by each of oureogating
subsidiaries and was developed over a number of yeeough cooperative efforts with the vendor,ardes our
ability to integrate successfully the operation®wif operating subsidiaries and future acquisitifeslitates the
interchange of information, and enhances crosggatipportunities throughout our company. The sysigegrates
each level of operations on a company-wide basididing purchasing, inventory, receivables, finaheporting
and budgeting, and sales management. The systditesne to monitor each dealership’s operatiorsder to
identify quickly areas requiring additional focusdao manage inventory. The system also providies sa
representatives with prospect and customer infaomahat aids them in tracking the status of tleeintacts with
prospects, automatically generates follow-up cgwadence to such prospects, facilitates the avkitijabf a
particular boat company-wide, locates boats nesulsdtisfy a particular customer request, and mosnihe
maintenance and service needs of customers’ bBatspany representatives also utilize the systeassist in
arranging financing and insurance packages. Inl@ctd002, Brunswick acquired the vendor of our ngen@ent
information system.

Brunswick Agreement Relating to Acquisitions

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick are paitiean agreement extending through December 2G5 t
provides a process for our continued growth thrathghacquisition of additional Sea Ray boat dedleatdesire to
be acquired by us. Under the agreement, acquisitb®ea Ray dealers will be mutually agreed upoansband Sea
Ray with reasonable efforts to be made to inclubalance of Sea Ray dealers that have been suglcasdfthose
that have not been. The agreement provides thaR8gavill not unreasonably withhold its consenatty proposed
acquisition of a Sea Ray dealer by us, subjedigabnditions set forth in the agreement. Amongiothings, the
agreement provides for us to provide Sea Ray withsiness plan for each proposed acquisition, dhictphistorica
financial and fiveyear projected financial information regarding #uguisition candidate; marketing and adverti
plans; service capabilities and managerial and ge&asonnel; information regarding the ability bétcandidate to
achieve performance standards within designatadgserand information regarding the success ofpoevious
acquisitions of Sea Ray dealers. The agreementals#emplates Sea Ray reaching a good faith detation
whether the acquisition would be in its best irgetmsed on our dedication and focus of resouncéseoSea Ray
brand and Sea Ray'’s consideration of any advefsetetthat the approval would have on the resulimgtory
configuration and adjacent or other dealers salddfze absence of any violation of applicable lawgghts grante:
by Sea Ray to others.

Dealer Agreements with Brunswick

Brunswick, through its Sea Ray division, and wegtigh our principal operating subsidiaries, ardiggaito
Sales and Service Agreements relating to Sea Radupts extending through December 2015. Each skthealer
agreements appoints one of our operating subsdias a dealer for the retail sale, display, andcseg of
designated Sea Ray products, parts, and accessoriestly or in the future sold by Sea Ray. Eaealer agreeme
designates a designated geographical territorthivdealer, which is exclusive to the dealer ag Emthe dealer is
not in breach of the material obligations and penfance standards under the agreement and SeatRey’surrent
material policies and programs following notice &mel expiration of any applicable cure periods withcure. Each
dealer agreement also specifies retail locatiomi;inthe dealer may not close, change, or add ttowt the prior
written consent of Sea Ray, provided that Sea Ray mot unreasonably withhold its consent. Eacheteal
agreement also restricts the dealer from sellidgegising (other than in recognized and estabfishe
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marine publications), soliciting for sale, or offey for resale any Sea Ray products outside itgdey without the
prior written consent of Sea Ray as long as siméatrictions also apply to all domestic Sea Ralats selling
comparable Sea Ray products. In addition, eacledagteement provides for the lowest product pritesged by
Sea Ray from time to time to other domestic Seadeajers, subject to the dealer meeting all thairements and
conditions of Sea Ray'’s applicable programs anditite of Sea Ray in good faith to charge less&rmgsrto other
dealers to meet existing competitive circumstanimegynusual and non-ordinary business circumstgnmmefor
limited duration promotional programs.

Among other things, each dealer agreement reqtiieedealer to

devote its best efforts to promote, display, adsertand sell Sea Ray products at each of itd tetaitions in
accordance with the agreement and applicable |

display and utilize at each of its retail locati@igns, graphics, and image elements with Sea Ray’s
identification that positively reflect the Sea Rmage and promote the retail sale of Sea Ray pteg

purchase and maintain at all times sufficient inegnof current Sea Ray products to meet the ressen
demand of customers at each of its locations amdetet Sea Ray’s applicable minimum inventory
requirements

maintain at each retail location, or at anotheeptable location, a service department that isqnigstaffed
and equipped to service Sea Ray products promptlypeaofessionally and to maintain parts and suppte
service Sea Ray products properly on a timely b

perform all necessary product rigging, installatiand inspection services prior to delivery to pasers in
accordance with Sea Ray’s standards and perfortrsptes services of all Sea Ray products sold by dades
and brought to the dealer for servi

provide or arrange for warranty and service workSea Ray products regardless of the selling dealer
condition of sale

exercise reasonable efforts to address circumstanaghich another dealer has made a sale to gmali
retail purchases who permanently resides withirdgeders territory where such sale is contrary to thersg
deale’s Sales and Service Agreeme

provide appropriate instructions to purchasersmm to obtain warranty and service work from thelee:

furnish product purchasers with Sea Ray'’s limitedranty on new products and with information and
training as to the safe and proper operation aridtereance of the product

assist Sea Ray in performing any product defectraoall campaigns

achieve sales performance in accordance with fairaasonable standards and sales levels estabhighe
Sea Ray in consultation with the dealer based cioffa such as population, sales potential, mataates
percentage of Sea Ray products sold in the teyrdompared with competitive products sold in theitry,
local economic conditions, competition, past shistory, number of retail locations, and other salec
circumstances that may affect the sale of Sea Ra&jupts or the dealer, in each case consistent with
standards established for all domestic Sea Ragdestlling comparable produc

provide designated financial information that atghful and accurate

conduct its business in a manner that preservesmmahces the reputation and goodwill of both Saddd
the dealer for providing quality products and segsi

maintain the financial ability to purchase and n&iimon hand and display Sea I's current product mode
maintain customer service ratings in compliancé\8ita Ra’s criteria;

comply with those dealer’s obligations that mayirbposed or established by Sea Ray applicable to all
domestic Sea Ray deale
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« maintain a financial condition that is adequateatisfy and perform its obligations under the agreset;

« achieve within designated time periods or maintagior dealer status (which is Sea Ray’s highest
performance status) or other applicable certif@@atequirements as established from time to tim&d&gy Ra
applicable to all domestic Sea Ray deal

 notify Sea Ray of the addition or deletion of aatail locations

« sell Sea Ray products only on the basis of SeaRalished applicable limited warranty and makether
warranty or representations concerning the limitadranty, expressed or implied, either verballynor
writing;

 provide timely warranty service on all Sea Ray pigid presented to the dealer by purchasers in dacoe
with Sea Ray’s then current warranty program applie to all domestic Sea Ray dealers selling coatpar
Sea Ray products; al

» provide Sea Ray with access to the dealer’s boo#tsecords and such other information as Sea Rgy ma
reasonably request to verify the accuracy of theamty claims submitted to Sea Ray by the dealdr wi
regard to such warranty clairr

Sea Ray has agreed to indemnify each of our deadmisst any losses to third parties resulting f&ea Ray’s
negligent acts or omissions involving the desigmanufacture of any of its products or any breaclt bf the
agreement. Each of our dealers has agreed to infjfeBea Ray against any losses to third partiesltiag from the
dealer’s negligent acts or omissions involvingdealer’s application, use, or repair of Sea Raylpets, statements
or representation not specifically authorized bg Bay, the installation of any after market comps@r any othe
modification or alteration of Sea Ray products, ang breach by the dealer of the agreement.

Each dealer agreement may be terminated

« by Sea Ray, upon 60 days prior written noticehéf dealer fails or refuses to place a minimum stackrder
of the next model year’s products in accordanch vatuirements applicable to all Sea Ray dealansrgdly
or fails to meet its financial obligations as thmcome due to Sea Ray or to the d¢'s lenders

* by Sea Ray or the dealer, upon 60 days writtercadti the other, in the event of a breach or defauthe
other with any of the of the material obligatiopsrformance standards, covenants, representations,
warranties, or duties imposed by the agreemerteBea Ray manual that has not been cured withdtag®
of the notice of the claimed deficiency or withimesmsonable period when the cure cannot be condplete
within a 60-day period, or at the end of the 60-gdasiod without the opportunity to cure when thasma
constitutes bad faitt

« by Sea Ray or the dealer if the other makes a flaatl misrepresentation that is material to theagrent or
the other engages in an incurable act of bad 1

« by Sea Ray or the dealer in the event of the irsaly, bankruptcy, or receivership of the otl

* by Sea Ray in the event of the assignment of theemgent by the dealer without the prior writtensemt of
Sea Ray

« by Sea Ray upon at least 15 days’ prior writtericean the event of the failure to pay any sums aiue
owing to Sea Ray that are not disputed in gooth;faitd

« upon the mutual consent of Sea Ray and the d¢

Employees

As of September 30, 2006, we had 2,182 employe@802f whom were in store-level operations an@®2
whom were in corporate administration and managénvée are not a party to any collective bargairaggeement
and are not aware of any efforts to unionize ouplegees. We consider our relations with our empésy® be
excellent.
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Trademarks and Service Marks

We have registered trade names and trademarkgheitt.S. Patent and Trademark Office for variounes
including “MarineMax,” “MarineMax Getaways!,” “ManeMax Care,” “Delivering the Dream,” “MarineMax
Delivering the Boating Dream,” “Newcoast Financsarvices,” “MarineMax Boating Gear Center,” and “fvien
on Water.” We have registered the name “MarineMaxhe European Community. We have a trademark
application pending with the U.S. Patent and Traalér®ffice for “Value Price.” We have trade namelan
trademark applications pending in Canada for varimames, including “MarineMax,” “MarineMax Valuei€,”
“Value-Price,” “Delivering the Dream,” “Selling aridelivering the Dream,” “Selling the Dream,” andH& Water
Gene.” There can be no assurance that any of #pgdizations will be granted.

Seasonality and Weather Conditions

Our business, as well as the entire recreatioreip industry, is highly seasonal, with seasopnaiétrying in
different geographic markets. Over the three-yegiod ended September 30, 2006, the average re¥entie
quarters ended December 31, March 31, June 3G epigmber 30 represented approximately 18%, 25%, aad
25%, respectively, of our average annual revenith the exception of Florida, we generally real&gnificantly
lower sales and higher levels of inventories amated short-term borrowings, in the quarterly pesiending
December 31 and March 31. The onset of the pubkd &Bnd recreation shows in January stimulatesdades and
allows us to reduce our inventory levels and reélateort-term borrowings throughout the remaindeheffiscal
year.

Our business is also subject to weather patterhighwnay adversely affect our results of operatidizs
example, drought conditions (or merely reducedfadlifevels) or excessive rain, may close areaihgdbcations o
render boating dangerous or inconvenient, therebaiting customer demand for our products. In tddij
unseasonably cool weather and prolonged winteritond may lead to a shorter selling season inagetbcations.
Hurricanes and other storms could result in disomgtof our operations or damage to our boat iroréezd and
facilities, as was the case during fiscal 2005 2006 when Florida and other markets were affecyedumerous
hurricanes. Although our geographic diversity kely to reduce the overall impact to us of adveveather
conditions in any one market area, these conditidh€ontinue to represent potential, material @cbe risks to us
and our future financial performance.

Environmental and Other Regulatory Issues

Our operations are subject to extensive regulasopervision, and licensing under various fedetake, and
local statutes, ordinances, and regulations. Wihdédelieve that we maintain all requisite licensed permits and
are in compliance with all applicable federal, st@nd local regulations, there can be no assuthateve will be
able to maintain all requisite licenses and perniite failure to satisfy those and other regulateguirements
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigmncial condition, and results of operatiofise adoption of
additional laws, rules, and regulations could &dlave a material adverse effect on our businessoWafederal,
state, and local regulatory agencies, includingQbeupational Safety and Health AdministrationQ@HA, the
United States Environmental Protection Agency, BAEand similar federal and local agencies, haxisdiction
over the operation of our dealerships, repair itéedl, and other operations with respect to matach as consumer
protection, workers’ safety, and laws regardinggetion of the environment, including air, watandasoil.

The EPA has various air emissions regulations fitlb@ard marine engines that impose more strictsans
standards for two-cycle, gasoline outboard marimgirees. Emissions from such engines must be reduged
approximately 75% over a nine-year period beginmiity the 1998 model year. The majority of the @maiul
marine engines we sell are manufactured by Mermasine. Mercury Marine’s product line of low-emisai
engines, including the OptiMax, Verado and otherrfstroke outboards, have already achieved the ERrandated
2006 emission levels. Any increased costs of primguengines resulting from EPA standards or thbilita of our
manufacturers to comply with EPA requirements, dddve a material adverse effect on our business.

Certain of our facilities own and operate undergubstorage tanks, or USTs, for the storage of vario
petroleum products. The USTs are generally subjefetderal, state, and local laws and regulatibas tequire
testing and upgrading of USTs and remediation afaminated soils and groundwater resulting frorkiteg
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USTs. In addition, if leakage from company-owneaperated USTs migrates onto the property of otlveesmay
be subject to civil liability to third parties foemediation costs or other damages. Based on ie&texperience, we
believe that our liabilities associated with US$tieg, upgrades, and remediation are unlikely ietemmaterial
adverse effect on our financial condition or opeagatesults.

As with boat dealerships generally, and parts @andce operations in particular, our business imgslthe use,
handling, storage, and contracting for recyclingligposal of hazardous or toxic substances or waisteluding
environmentally sensitive materials, such as motipwaste motor oil and filters, transmission fluantifreeze,
freon, waste paint and lacquer thinner, batteselents, lubricants, degreasing agents, gasamdiesel fuels.
Accordingly, we are subject to regulation by fediestate, and local authorities establishing resmients for the us
management, handling, and disposal of these misteria health and environmental quality standaadd,liability
related thereto, and providing penalties for violas of those standards. We are also subject ts, lasdinances, ar
regulations governing investigation and remediatiboontamination at facilities we operate to whied send
hazardous or toxic substances or wastes for tredtmezycling, or disposal.

We do not believe we have any material environnidiafailities or that compliance with environmentaivs,
ordinances, and regulations will, individually arthe aggregate, have a material adverse effestiohusiness,
financial condition, or results of operations. Hek soil and groundwater contamination has beemvkrto exist
at certain properties owned or leased by us. We h#o been required and may in the future be redto remove
aboveground and underground storage tanks congdi@inardous substances or wastes. As to certaiurof
properties, specific releases of petroleum have beare in the process of being remedied in aecoare with state
and federal guidelines. We are monitoring the @od groundwater as required by applicable statdfedwtal
guidelines. In addition, the shareholders of thguared dealers have indemnified us for specificiemmental
issues identified on environmental site assessnpanfsrmed by us as part of the acquisitions. Wantam
insurance for pollutant cleanup and removal. Theecage pays for the expenses to extract pollufamts land or
water at the insured property, if the dischargspelisal, seepage, migration, release, or escape pbllutants is
caused by or results from a covered cause of Wesnay also have additional storage tank liabifisurance and
“Superfund” coverage where applicable. In additicertain of our retail locations are located onematys that are
subject to federal or state laws regulating navigalaters (including oil pollution prevention), isnd wildlife, and
other matters.

Two of the properties we own were historically ussdyasoline service stations. Remedial action regpect
to prior historical site activities on these prdjeesr has been completed in accordance with fedeiktate law.
Also, two of our properties are within the boundarof a “Superfund” site, although neither propésg been nor is
expected to be identified as a contributor to tetamination in the area. We, however, do not belibat these
environmental issues will result in any materiabliities to us.

Additionally, certain states have required or amesidering requiring a license in order to opeeatecreational
boat. While such licensing requirements are noeetqd to be unduly restrictive, regulations magaisage
potential first-time buyers, thereby limiting fueusales, which could adversely affect our busirfesancial
condition, and results of operations.

Product Liability

The products we sell or service may expose us tengial liabilities for personal injury or propertiamage
claims relating to the use of those products. Hiisatly, the resolution of product liability clainteas not materially
affected our business. Our manufacturers genaraiytain product liability insurance, and we maimtird-party
product liability insurance, which we believe todmequate. However, we may experience legal clairascess of
our insurance coverage, and those claims may noovered by insurance. Furthermore, any significtaitms
against us could adversely affect our businesantial condition, and results of operations andltéss negative
publicity. Excessive insurance claims also couiiliein increased insurance premiums.
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Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadidition to facing competition generally from restien
businesses seeking to attract consumers’ leisme=dind discretionary spending dollars, the reaeatiboat
industry itself is highly fragmented, resultingiimense competition for customers, quality produlstat show
space, and suitable retail locations. We rely ¢tergain extent on boat shows to generate salesin@bility to
participate in boat shows in our existing or taegemarkets could have a material adverse effeouobusiness,
financial condition, and results of operations.

We compete primarily with single-location boat @égaland, with respect to sales of marine equipnpamts,
and accessories, with national specialty marineest@atalog retailers, sporting goods stores naask merchants.
Dealer competition continues to increase based®uality of available products, the price andigaif the
products, and attention to customer service. Tises@nificant competition both within markets wariently serve
and in new markets that we may enter. We competadh of our markets with retailers of brands aitb@nd
engines we do not sell in that market. In addite®yeral of our competitors, especially thosersgltioating
accessories, are large national or regional chhatshave substantial financial, marketing, anéotkesources.
However, we believe that our integrated corponafi@structure and marketing and sales capabilitiescost
structure, and our nationwide presence enable csrnpete effectively against these companies. frsales of
used boats is an additional significant sourceoofietition.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information concegieach of our executive officers:

m @ Position

William H. McGill Jr. 63 Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive
Officer, and Directo

Michael H. McLamb 41 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary, and Directt

Kurt M. Frahn 38 Vice President of Finance and Treaslt

Jack P. Ezze 36 Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer, and Cofiar

Edward A. Russe 46 Vice President of Operatiol

Michael J. Aiello 50 Vice Presiden

Anthony M. Aisquith 39 Vice Presiden

William H. McGill Jr. has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Maviag since January 23, 1998 and as
the Chairman of the Board and as a director ofconnpany since March 6, 1998. Mr. McGill servedtesRresider
of our company from January 23, 1988 until Septar8h@000 and re-assumed the position on July 0220
Mr. McGill was the principal owner and presidentGidlfwind USA, Inc., one of our operating subsi@ar from
1973 until its merger with us.

Michael H. McLambhas served as Executive Vice President of our cosnpamce October 2002, as
Chief Financial Officer since January 23, 1998Sasretary since April 5, 1998, and as a directamurfcompany
since November 1, 2003. Mr. McLamb served as ViesiEent and Treasurer of our company from Jan2ayy
1998 until October 22, 2002. Mr. McLamb, a certiffgublic accountant, was employed by Arthur AndeisieP
from December 1987 to December 1997, serving neagntly as a senior manager.

Kurt M. Frahnhas served as Vice President of Finance and Treragliour company since October 22, 2002.
Mr. Frahn served as Director of Taxes and Acquisgiof our company from May 15, 1998 until OctoB2y 2002.
Mr. Frahn was employed by Arthur Andersen LLP fr6eptember 3, 1991 until May 15, 1998, serving most
recently as a tax consulting manager.

Jack P. Ezzelhas served as Vice President and Chief Accountiffiged of our company since October 22,
2002 and as Corporate Controller of our compangesitune 1, 1999. Mr. Ezzell served as AssistantrGiter from
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January 13, 1998 until June 1, 1999. Mr. Ezzeatkuified public accountant, was employed by ArtAndersen
LLP from August 1996 until January 1998, servingstmecently as a senior auditor.

Edward A. Russehas served as Vice President of Operations sinagelV2006. Mr. Russell has been a Vice
President of our company since October 22, 2002 Rvssell has served as the Regional Manager dflouda
operations since August 1, 2002. Prior to that, Rirssell served as the District President for cemt@l and West
Florida operations from March 1998 until August@02. Mr. Russell was an owner and General Salewmlytr of
Gulfwind USA Inc., one of our operating subsidiariaow called MarineMax of Central Florida, fromB8#Quntil its
merger with our company in March 1998.

Michael J. Aiellohas served as Vice President of our company sicteb®r 22, 2002. Mr. Aiello has served as
the Regional Manager of the state of New Jerseysandunding areas since 1999 and was a principaépand
operator of Merit Marine Inc., one of our operatsupsidiaries, now called MarineMax of Mid-Atlantfoom 1985
until its merger with our company in March 1999.

Anthony M. Aisquitlhas served as Vice President of our company simseiber 1, 2003. Mr. Aisquith has
served as the Regional Manager of our Georgia,lifas Texas, and California operations since Augu2000,
March 1, 2002, March 15, 2003, and March 1, 208dpectively. Mr. Aisquith previously served as $tere
Manager of our Tampa, Florida location from Octobet997 until August 1, 2000 and as a salespéansoar
Clearwater, Florida location from June 18, 1995|@httober 1, 1997. Mr. Aisquith joined our compamy June 18,
1995 after 10 years of experience in the auto imgus

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our success depends to a significant extent ondbatinued popularity and reputation for quality dhe
boating products of our manufacturers, particularlgrunswick’'s Sea Ray, Meridian and Hatteras boatédis,
Ferretti Group’s Ferretti Yachts, Riva, Pershingna Bertram product lines and Azimut-Benetti Group’s
Azimut and Atlantis products.

Approximately 59% of our revenue in fiscal 2006ulésd from sales of new boats manufactured by Buicls
including approximately 45% from Brunswick’s SeayRivision and approximately 6% from Brunswick’s tiémas
Yacht division. The remainder of our fiscal 2008awue from new boat sales resulted from salesaufymts from a
limited number of other manufacturers, none of Wtaccounted for more than 10% of our revenue. Atweese
change in the financial condition, production eéfifecy, product development, management, marketgaceptance
and marketing capabilities of our manufacturerstipaarly Brunswick given our reliance on Sea Rilgridian,
and Hatteras, would have a substantial adversecinmmaour business. Additionally, given the revegeaerated by
each yacht and mega-yacht sale, any adverse chattgefinancial condition, production efficiengyioduct
development, management, marketplace acceptantenarketing capabilities of Ferretti Group would/déa
substantial adverse impact on our business.

To ensure adequate inventory levels to supporerpansion, it may be necessary for Brunswick ahdrot
manufacturers to increase production levels orcatima greater percentage of their production td s
interruption or discontinuance of the operation8afnswick or other manufacturers could cause @xperience
shortfalls, disruptions, or delays with respeché@ded inventory. Although we believe that adeqaklitenate
sources would be available that could replace aagufacturer other than Brunswick as a product sguhose
alternate sources may not be available at the dina@y interruption, and alternative products maylre available .
comparable quality and prices.

Through our principal operating subsidiaries, wérnaén dealer agreements with Brunswick covering Ray
products. Each dealer agreement has a multi-yeardaad provides for the lowest product prices cedrgy the Sea
Ray division of Brunswick from time to time to ottomestic Sea Ray dealers. These terms are stibject

« the dealer meeting all the requirements and canditof Sea R¢ s applicable programs; ai

« the right of Brunswick in good faith to charge keisprices to other dealel

« to meet existing competitive circumstanc
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 for unusual and nc-ordinary business circumstances
« for limited duration promotional progran

Each dealer agreement designates a designatecagbam territory for the dealer, which is exclesto the dealer as
long as the dealer is not in breach of the matebgations and performance standards under treeatent and Sea Ray’s
then current material policies and programs follmywotice and the expiration of any applicable @esods without cure.

Through certain of our operating subsidiaries, \8e aaintain dealer agreements with Hatteras cogdtlatteras
products. Each agreement allows Hatteras to rewises at any time, and such new prices will sugggrevious prices.
Pursuant to the agreement, we must bear any lasséscur as a result of such price changes andnoaecover from
Hatteras for any losses. In addition, certain afaperating subsidiaries may not represent manurfact or product lines that
compete directly with Hatteras without its priorittemn consent.

Upon the completion of the Surfside-3 acquisitir,became the exclusive dealer for Azimut-Benettiup’s product
line of Azimut. The Azimut dealer agreement progidegeographic territory to promote the produa And to network with
the appropriate clientele through various indepahtieations designated for Azimut retail sales.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with manutaers, other than the Sea Ray division of Brunkwimder renewable
annual dealer agreements. These agreements domtaircany contractual provisions concerning progwicing or required
purchasing levels. Pricing is generally establishieé model year basis, but is subject to chan¢fgeimanufacturer’s sole
discretion. Any change or termination of theserageaments for any reason could adversely affectymtoavailability and
cost and our financial performance.

Our operations depend upon a number of factors tétg to or affecting consumer spending for luxuryogds, such as
recreational boats.

Unfavorable local, regional, national, or globabeemic developments or uncertainties regardingréuticonomic
prospects could reduce consumer spending in thkatsawe serve and adversely affect our businesssi@oer spending on
luxury goods also may decline as a result of logarsumer confidence levels, even if prevailing emic conditions are
favorable. In an economic downturn, consumer digmrary spending levels generally decline, at timessilting in
disproportionately large reductions in the sal&ugtiry goods. Similarly, rising interest rates abhlve a negative impact on
the ability or willingness of consumers to finarmat purchases, which could also adversely affectbility to sell our
products and impact the profitability of our fin@and insurance activities. Local influences, saghorporate downsizing
and military base closings, also could adversdigcabur operations in certain markets. We mayrble to maintain our
profitability during any period of adverse econormanditions or low consumer confidence. Changdederal and state tax
laws, such as an imposition of luxury taxes on heat purchases, and stock market performance aigdd nfluence
consumers’ decisions to purchase products we affdrcould have a negative effect on our salesefample, during 1991
and 1992 the federal government imposed a luxuwptanew recreational boats with sales prices gesx of $100,000,
which coincided with a sharp decline in boatingusity sales from a high of more than $17.9 biliiothe late 1980s to a Ic
of $10.3 hillion in 1992.

General economic conditions and competitive facttinat impact the recreational boating industry calinhibit our
growth and negatively impact our profitability.

General economic conditions, consumer spendingmpett federal tax policies, interest rate levatsl #he cost and
availability of fuel can impact overall boat purska. Economic conditions in areas in which we dpeataalerships,
particularly Florida in which we generated 53%, 5%%d 46% of our revenue during fiscal years 2Q085 and 2006,
respectively, can have a major impact on our ofmerat We also believe that the level of boat puselsahas been adversely
affected by increased competition from other rettweal activities, perceived hassles of boat owmigrsand relatively poor
customer service and education throughout thel teat industry. Although our strategy addressesyntd these industry
factors and we have expanded our operations dperigds of stagnant or
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declining industry trends, the cyclical naturetod tecreational boating industry or the lack oflistdy growth could adverse
affect our business, financial condition, or reswolt operations in the future.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to tane to make successful acquisitions and to intatg the operations of
acquired dealers and each dealer we acquire in thtire.

Since March 1, 1998, we have acquired 20 recrealtiomat dealers, two boat brokerage operationstaadull-service
yacht repair facilities. Each acquired dealer oeléndependently prior to its acquisition by usir®uccess depends, in pi
on our ability to continue to make successful asitjons and to integrate the operations of acquileslers and each dealer
we acquire in the future, including centralizingta@ functions to achieve cost savings and pugspiiegrams and processes
that promote cooperation and the sharing of oppdi&s and resources among our dealerships. Wenwiglye able to
oversee the combined entity efficiently or to immpént effectively our growth and operating strategieo the extent that we
successfully pursue our acquisition strategy, esuiting growth will place significant additionatmiands on our
management and infrastructure. Our failure to paisiccessfully our acquisition strategies or opeeéfectively the
combined entity could have a material adverse effeour rate of growth and operating performance.

Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, and delays freqtly encountered in connection with rapid expansithrough
acquisitions could inhibit our growth and negatiweimpact our profitability.

Our growth strategy of acquiring additional reciaadl boat dealers involves significant risks. Tétimtegy entails
reviewing and potentially reorganizing acquiredibeass operations, corporate infrastructure andesystand financial
controls. Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, ardydefrequently encountered in connection with dagipansion through
acquisitions could inhibit our growth and negatwighpact our profitability. We may be unable tontiéy suitable acquisitio
candidates or to complete the acquisitions of aatds that we identify. Increased competition fayuasition candidates or
increased asking prices by acquisition candidagsg increase purchase prices for acquisitions telédveyond our financial
capability or to levels that would not result i tfeturns required by our acquisition criteria. Qisitions also may become
more difficult in the future as we acquire moretted most attractive dealers. In addition, we magoenter difficulties in
integrating the operations of acquired dealers withown operations or managing acquired dealefitaioly without
substantial costs, delays, or other operationéihancial problems.

We may issue common or preferred stock and indostantial indebtedness in making future acquisitidrne size,
timing, and integration of any future acquisitianay cause substantial fluctuations in operatinglte$rom quarter to
quarter. Consequently, operating results for argriga may not be indicative of the results that ineyachieved for any
subsequent quarter or for a full fiscal year. Thassuations could adversely affect the market@mf our common stock.

Our ability to continue to grow through the acqtiisi of additional dealers will depend upon varidastors, including
the following:

« the availability of suitable acquisition candidagé¢sttractive purchase prict

the ability to compete effectively for availablegacsition opportunities

« the availability of funds or common stock with dfmient market price to complete the acquisitio

the ability to obtain any requisite manufacturegovernmental approvals; a

« the absence of one or more manufacturers attemfatimypose unsatisfactory restrictions on us innemtion with thei
approval of acquisition:

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequeptigage in discussions with various recreatiooat bealers regarding
their potential acquisition by us. In connectiorthathese discussions, we and each potential atiQnisiandidate exchange
confidential operational and financial informati@monduct due diligence inquiries, and considersthecture, terms, and
conditions of the potential acquisition. In certaases, the prospective acquisition candidate agreieto discuss a potential
acquisition with any other party for a specificipdrof time, grants us an option to purchase tlosective dealer for a
designated price during a specific time, and agrees
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to take other actions designed to enhance thelplitysof the acquisition, such as preparing autlifi@ancial information and
converting its accounting system to the systemifipddy us. Potential acquisition discussions frextly take place over a
long period of time and involve difficult busineéssegration and other issues, including in somesasanagement
succession and related matters. As a result oé thed other factors, a number of potential acdqorstthat from time to time
appear likely to occur do not result in bindingdeggreements and are not consummated.

We may be required to obtain the consent of Brunskwand various other manufacturers prior to the agigition of other
dealers.

In determining whether to approve acquisitions, afiacturers may consider many factors, includingfmancial
condition and ownership structure. Manufacturess ahay impose conditions on granting their app®ial acquisitions,
including a limitation on the number of their dealéhat we may acquire. Our ability to meet maniufigss’ requirements for
approving future acquisitions will have a direcakieg on our ability to complete acquisitions affée our growth strategy.
There can be no assurance that a manufacturematiterminate its dealer agreement, refuse to retsegiealer agreement,
refuse to approve future acquisitions, or take oftetion that could have a material adverse effaabur acquisition program.

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick have ar@ment extending through June 2015 that provigesaess for
our continued growth through the acquisition ofiiddal Sea Ray boat dealers that desire to beiatjby us. Under the
agreement, acquisitions of Sea Ray dealers withbially agreed upon by us and Sea Ray with redd®mrdforts to be ma
to include a balance of Sea Ray dealers that hese successful and those that have not been. Teeragnt provides that
Sea Ray will not unreasonably withhold its congerany proposed acquisition of a Sea Ray dealeisbgubject to the
conditions set forth in the agreement. Among othings, the agreement provides for us to provide Bay with a business
plan for each proposed acquisition, including histd financial and five-year projected financiaformation regarding the
acquisition candidate; marketing and advertisiramp] service capabilities and managerial and gafonnel; information
regarding the ability of candidate to achieve penance standards within designated periods; amdrrtion regarding the
success of our previous acquisitions of Sea Raleded he agreement also contemplates Sea Rayimgagigood faith
determination whether the acquisition would beasrbest interest based on our dedication and fottesources on the Sea
Ray brand and Sea Ray’s consideration of any ae\edfscts that the approval would have on the tieguterritory
configuration and adjacent or other dealers saldgdfze absence of any violation of applicable lawgghts granted by Sea
Ray to others.

Our growth strategy also entails expanding our pcbtines and geographic scope by obtaining additidistribution
rights from our existing and new manufacturers. Mé&y not be able to secure additional distributights or obtain suitable
alternative sources of supply if we are unableltimim such distribution rights. The inability topand our product lines and
geographic scope by obtaining additional distrimutiights could have a material adverse effechergrowth and
profitability of our business.

Boat manufacturers exercise substantial control oair business.

We depend on our dealer agreements. Through degleements, boat manufacturers, including Brunsveg&rcise
significant control over their dealers, restrictitinto specified locations, and retain approvaltsgiver changes in
management and ownership, among other things. ditinaation of our dealer agreements with most rfeiurers,
including Brunswick, depends upon, among othergiour achieving stated goals for customer satisfaratings and
market share penetration in the market served &wpiplicable dealership. Failure to meet the custaatisfaction, market
share goals, and other conditions set forth indealer agreement could have various consequemodgiling the following:

« the termination of the dealer agreem:
« the imposition of additional conditions in subsegfugealer agreement
« limitations on boat inventory allocatior

 reductions in reimbursement rates for warranty waeKormed by the deale
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* |oss of certain manufacturer to dealer incentiog:
« denial of approval of future acquisitior

Our dealer agreements with certain manufactunecfyding Brunswick, do not give us the exclusiyghtito sell those
manufacturers’ products within a given geographécab. Accordingly, a manufacturer, including Bruitk, could authorize
another dealer to start a new dealership in prdyitoione or more of our locations, or an existitegler could move a
dealership to a location that would be directly petitive with us. These events could have a mdtadeerse effect on our
competitive position and financial performance.

The failure to receive rebates and other dealeréntives on inventory purchases could substantialigluce our margins.

We rely on manufacturers’ programs that providemives for dealers to purchase and sell particadat makes and
models or for consumers to buy particular boat makemodels. Any eliminations, reductions, limibats, or other changes
relating to rebate or incentive programs that htheeeffect of reducing the benefits we receive dantrease the effective
cost of our boat purchases, reduce our margingamgetitive position, and have a material adveffseon our financial
performance.

Our growth strategy may require us to secure sigeaht additional capital, the amount of which witlepend upon the
size, timing, and structure of future acquisitiorand our working capital and general corporate needs

If we finance future acquisitions in whole or inrpparough the issuance of common stock or seesritbnvertible into or
exercisable for common stock, existing stockholdghsexperience dilution in the voting power ofeihcommon stock and
earnings per share could be negatively impacted.ekitent to which we will be able or willing to user common stock for
acquisitions will depend on the market value of cammon stock from time to time and the willingneggotential sellers to
accept our common stock as full or partial consitien. Our inability to use our common stock assideration, to generate
cash from operations, or to obtain additional fagdihrough debt or equity financings in order tospe our acquisition
program could materially limit our growth.

Any borrowings made to finance future acquisitiongor operations could make us more vulnerablke downturn in our
operating results, a downturn in economic condgjar increases in interest rates on borrowingsatesubject to interest
rate fluctuations. If our cash flow from operatiaasnsufficient to meet our debt service requiratsgwe could be required
to sell additional equity securities, refinance ohligations, or dispose of assets in order to rogetebt service
requirements. In addition, our credit arrangementgain financial and operational covenants andrathstrictions with
which we must comply, including limitations on capbiexpenditures and the incurrence of additiondébtedness. Adequate
financing may not be available if and when we nited may not be available on terms acceptablestdrhe failure to obtain
sufficient financing on favorable terms and corudis could have a material adverse effect on owtlrprospects and our
business, financial condition, and results of ofiens.

Our current revolving credit facility provides adi of credit with asset-based borrowing availabiit up to $500 million
and allows us $20 million in traditional floorpl&orrowings. We have pledged various of our asgatkiding boat
inventories, accounts receivable, equipment, atdrés, to secure borrowings under our credit itgcWhile we believe we
will continue to obtain adequate financing fromders, such financing may not be available to us.

Our internal growth and operating strategies of apag new locations and offering new products invelvisk.

In addition to pursuing growth by acquiring boasldes, we intend to continue to pursue a stratégyawth through
opening new retail locations and offering new pidun our existing and new territories. Accompilighthese goals for
expansion will depend upon a number of factorduitiog the following:

« our ability to identify new markets in which we cabtain distribution rights to sell our existingamtditional product
lines;
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« our ability to lease or construct suitable fa@ktiat a reasonable cost in existing or new mar
« our ability to hire, train, and retain qualifiedrpennel;
« the timely integration of new retail locations irgristing operations

« our ability to achieve adequate market penetratdiavorable operating margins without the acqisiof existing
dealers; an

« our financial resource

Our dealer agreements with Brunswick require Bruds\& consent to open, close, or change retailtlona that sell Sea
Ray products, and other dealer agreements genemaitpin similar provisions. We may not be ablepen and operate new
retail locations or introduce new product linesaotimely or profitable basis. Moreover, the costsogiated with opening ne
retail locations or introducing new product lineayradversely affect our profitability.

As a result of these growth strategies, we exmeekpend significant time and effort in opening aeduiring new retail
locations and introducing new products. Our systgmacedures, controls, and financial resources moaye adequate to
support our expanding operations. The inabilityn@nage our growth effectively could have a matexiderse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of ofiena.

Our planned growth also will impose significant addesponsibilities on members of senior managemahtequire us
to identify, recruit, and integrate additional serievel managers. We may not be able to idertif, or train suitable
additions to management.

Our business, as well as the entire recreationabbng industry, is highly seasonal, with seasonglitarying in different
geographic markets. In addition, weather conditiongy adversely impact our business.

During the threerear period ended September 30, 2006, the aveeagaue for the quarterly periods ended Decembe
March 31, June 30, and September 30 represented 2B 32%, and 25%, respectively, of our averagmial revenues.
With the exception of Florida, we generally reakgnificantly lower sales in the quarterly periasling December 31 and
March 31. The onset of the public boat and reaweaghows in January stimulates boat sales and silewo reduce our
inventory levels and related short-term borrowittgsughout the remainder of the fiscal year. Owitess could become
substantially more seasonal as we acquire dedlat®perate in colder regions of the United States.

Weather conditions may adversely impact our opsgatésults. For example, drought conditions, redua@nfall levels,
and excessive rain may force boating areas to cdosender boating dangerous or inconvenient, thecartailing customer
demand for our products. In addition, unseasonady weather and prolonged winter conditions mayl o shorter selling
seasons in certain locations. Hurricanes and atioems could result in the disruption of our opiera or damage to our boat
inventories and facilities as was the case duiisgaf 2005 and 2006 when Florida and other markets affected by
numerous hurricanes. Many of our dealerships saltdto customers for use on reservoirs, therebjesting our business to
the continued viability of these reservoirs for thog use. Although our geographic diversity and foture geographic
expansion will reduce the overall impact on usafease weather conditions in any one market areativer conditions will
continue to represent potential material adversdesrio us and our future operating performance fesult of the foregoing
and other factors, our operating results in somaréuquarters could be below the expectationsawkstnarket analysts and
investors.

We face intense competition.

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadidition to facing competition generally from nooaling recreation
businesses seeking to attract discretionary spgratiars, the recreational boat industry itseliighly fragmented and
involves intense competition for customers, prodliistribution rights, and suitable retail locatipparticularly on or near
waterways. Competition increases during periodstagnant industry growth.
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We compete primarily with single-location boat aaland, with respect to sales of marine part®ssteies, and
equipment, with national specialty marine parts accessories stores, catalog retailers, sportinggstores, and mass
merchants. Competition among boat dealers is baiséide quality of available products, the price gallie of the products,
and attention to customer service. There is sicgnifi competition both within markets we currentyv@ and in new markets
that we may enter. We compete in each of our makih retailers of brands of boats and engineslavaot sell in that
market. In addition, several of our competitorqpezsally those selling marine equipment and acecesscare large national
regional chains that have substantial financiakkeigng, and other resources. Private sales of beatk represent an
additional source of competition.

Due to various matters, including environmentalagons, permitting and zoning requirements and cditigrefor
waterfront real estate, some markets in the Uritiades have experienced an increased waitinglishérina and storage
availability. In general, the markets in which werently operate are not experiencing any unusiffadulties. However,
marine retail activity could be adversely effecitednarkets that do not have sufficient marine aodage availability to
satisfy demand.

The availability of boat insurance is critical tour success.

The ability of our customers to secure reasonatibydable boat insurance that is satisfactory twégs that finance our
customer’s purchase is critical to our successo@ally, affordable boat insurance has been abl With the hurricanes
that have impacted the state of Florida and otrerkets over the past several years, insurancehatesescalated and
insurance coverage has become more difficult tainbAny difficulty of customers to obtain affordalboat insurance could
adversely affect our business.

We depend on income from financing, insurance, aextended service contracts.

A portion of our income results from referral felegived from the placement or marketing of varib8s products,
consisting of customer financing, insurance prosiuahd extended service contracts, the most significomponent of whic
is the participation and other fees resulting fraumn sale of customer financing contracts. Duriisgdl 2006, F&I products
accounted for approximately 3.2% of our revenue.

The availability of financing for our boat purchesand the level of participation and other feegeaive in connection
with such financing depend on the particular agesgrbetween us and the lender and the curreneraieonment. Lenders
may impose terms in their boat financing arrangdamedith us that may be unfavorable to us or outarasrs, resulting in
reduced demand for our customer financing progranaslower participation and other fees.

The reduction of profit margins on sales of F&I gwets or the lack of demand for or the unavailgbdf these products
could have a material adverse effect on our opeyatiargins.

We depend on key personnel.

Our success depends, in large part, upon the eongrefforts and abilities of our executive offiseAlthough we have ¢
employment agreement with certain of our execuifieers, we cannot assure that these or othensdixecpersonnel will
remain with us. Our expanding operations may requéto add additional executive personnel in tiheré. As a result of o
decentralized operating strategy, we also relyhemtanagement teams of our operating subsididmiesldition, we likely
will depend on the senior management of any sicguifi businesses we acquire in the future. Thedbds services of one
more of these key employees before we are ablgrahand retain qualified replacement personoaldtadversely affect
our business.

The products we sell or service may expose us temt@l liability for personal injury or property dmage claims relating
to the use of those products.

Manufacturers of the products we sell generallyntaén product liability insurance. We also mainttiind-party product
liability insurance that we believe to be adequdte. may experience claims that are not covered lblyat are in excess of
our insurance coverage. The institution of any ificant claims against us could subject us to daesagesult in higher
insurance costs, and harm our business reputattbrpatential customers.
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Environmental and other regulatory issues may impazir operations.

Our operations are subject to extensive regulasopervision, and licensing under various fedestake, and local
statutes, ordinances, and regulations. The faitusatisfy those and other regulatory requiremeatsgd have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condito results of operations.

Various federal, state, and local regulatory agesiéncluding OSHA or the EPA, and similar fedenadl local agencies,
have jurisdiction over the operation of our dedlars, repair facilities, and other operations, wiabpect to matters such as
consumer protection, workers’ safety, and laws maigg protection of the environment, including avwater, and soil. The
EPA recently promulgated emissions regulation®fdaboard marine engines that impose stricter eonissstandards for two-
cycle, gasoline outboard marine engines. Emisdiams such engines must be reduced by approxima@&dy over a nine-
year period beginning with the 1998 model year. agority of the outboard marine engines we salraanufactured b
Mercury Marine. Mercury Marine’s product line ofdeemission engines, including the OptiMax, Veradd ather four-
stroke outboards, have already achieved the EPAisdated 2006 emission levels. Any increased cdé§tgoducing engines
resulting from EPA standards or the inability of amanufacturers to comply with EPA requirementsilddave a material
adverse effect on our business.

Certain of our facilities own and operate USTstfar storage of various petroleum products. USTganerally subject
federal, state, and local laws and regulationsrétire testing and upgrading of USTs and remiediatf contaminated soils
and groundwater resulting from leaking USTSs. Initiold, we may be subject to civil liability to thirparties for remediation
costs or other damages if leakage from our ownexperated USTs migrates onto the property of others

Our business involves the use, handling, storawgcantracting for recycling or disposal of hazarsior toxic substanc
or wastes, including environmentally sensitive mate, such as motor oil, waste motor oil and fdtdransmission fluid,
antifreeze, freon, waste paint and lacquer thinbetteries, solvents, lubricants, degreasing aggasoline, and diesel fuels.
Accordingly, we are subject to regulation by fedlestate, and local authorities establishing ingetion and health and
environmental quality standards, and liability teththereto, and providing penalties for violatiefishose standards.

We also are subject to laws, ordinances, and régnfagoverning investigation and remediation aftemination at
facilities we operate or to which we send hazardousxic substances or wastes for treatment, texyor disposal. In
particular, the Comprehensive Environmental Respo@empensation and Liability Act, or CERCLA or fsarfund,”
imposes joint, strict, and several liability on

« owners or operators of facilities at, from, or tbigh a release of hazardous substances has occ
 parties who generated hazardous substances thatr@leased at such facilities; ¢
 parties who transported or arranged for the tramiafion of hazardous substances to such facili

A majority of states have adopted “Superfustitutes comparable to and, in some cases, morgesit than CERCLA. If w
were to be found to be a responsible party unddR@IEA or a similar state statute, we could be highdlé for all
investigative and remedial costs associated witltessing such contamination. In addition, clainsgihg personal injury or
property damage may be brought against us as i oéslleged exposure to hazardous substancelingsfrom our
operations. In addition, certain of our retail lboas are located on waterways that are subjefetderal or state laws
regulating navigable waters (including oil pollutiprevention), fish and wildlife, and other matters

Soil and groundwater contamination has been knavexist at certain properties owned or leased byMeshave also
been required and may in the future be requirgdnmove aboveground and underground storage tamitainmmg hazardous
substances or wastes. As to certain of our pragsrspecific releases of petroleum have been andine process of being
remediated in accordance with state and federdiejnes. We are monitoring the soil and groundwasarequired by
applicable state and federal guidelines. We alsp ma&e additional storage tank liability insuraacel “Superfund’toverag:
where applicable. Environmental laws and regulatiare complex and subject to frequent change. Ganga with amende
new, or more stringent laws or regulations, morietst
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interpretations of existing laws, or the futurectdigery of environmental conditions may require &ddal expenditures by L
and such expenditures may be material.

Two of the properties we own were historically ussdyasoline service stations. Remedial action reipect to prior
historical site activities on these properties b@sn completed in accordance with federal and EateAlso, two of our
properties are within the boundaries of a “Supetfigite, although neither property has been idettihs a contributor to the
contamination in the area.

Additionally, certain states have required or aresidering requiring a license in order to opeeatecreational boat.
These regulations could discourage potential buyleeseby limiting future sales and adversely affecour business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Fuel prices and supply may affect our business.

All of the recreational boats we sell are powergdliesel or gasoline engines. Consequently, amringgon in the supplh
or a significant increase in the price or tax amshle, of fuel on a regional or national basidabave a material adverse
effect on our sales and operating results. At wariimes in the past, diesel or gasoline fuel lEshdifficult to obtain. The
supply of fuels may be interrupted, rationing mayitnposed, or the price of or tax on fuels may ificantly increase in the
future.

We must evaluate goodwill and identifiable intandghassets for impairment annually and we would rgoize an
impairment loss if the carrying amount of goodwidr an identifiable intangible asset exceeds itsrfaalue.

Intangible assets and goodwill represent the exaedge purchase price of businesses acquiredtbediair value of the
net tangible assets acquired at the date of atignisiWe have determined that our most significaatiquired specifically
identifiable intangible assets are dealer agreesnaritich are indefinite-lived intangibles.

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets arecartted for in accordance with Statement of Findretaounting
Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” (SFAB),1dnd Statement of Financial Accounting Standatuols142,
“Goodwill and other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 148FAS 141 requires that all business combinatioigied after June 30,
2001 be accounted for using the purchase methadawfunting and identifiable intangible assets aeguin a business
combination be recognized as assets and reponpedately from goodwill. SFAS 142 requires that geildand indefinite-
lived intangible assets no longer be amortizedjrimsiead tested for impairment at least annualty\ehenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carmyahge may not be recoverable. If the carrying amiad an identifiable
intangible asset or goodwill exceeds its fair value would recognize an impairment loss. We meaanyepotential
impairment based on various business valuation adelbgies, including a projected discounted casW finethod. We
completed the annual impairment test during thetfoguarter of fiscal 2005, based on financial infation as of the third
quarter of fiscal 2005, which resulted in no impant of goodwill or identifiable intangible assels. date, we have not
recognized any impairment of goodwill or identifialintangible assets. Prior to the adoption of SAAS, all purchase price
in excess of the tangible assets acquired wasdedas goodwill and no identifiable intangible &sseere recognized.
Identifiable intangible assets and net goodwill anted to $94.1 million and $22.1 million, respeetiy as of September 30,
2006.

Impairment of the identifiable intangible assetgoodwill or regulatory action that changes theainpent testing
methodology, requires amortization, or a write-afffdentifiable intangible assets or goodwill magterially and adversely
affect the financial position of our company. Auetlon in net income resulting from the impairmehidentifiable
intangible assets or goodwill may have an advengact upon the market price of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock could be sudbj wide fluctuations as a result of many factors
Factors that could affect the trading price of ommmon stock include the following:

« variations in operating result
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the thin trading volume and relatively small pulfl@at of our common stocl
« the level and success of our acquisition progradhreaw store opening
* variations in san-store sales

« the success of dealership integrati

« relationships with manufacture!

» changes in earnings estimates published by ana

» general economic, political, and market conditic

« seasonality and weather conditio

« governmental policies and regulatio

« the performance of the recreational boat industiyaneral; an

« factors relating to suppliers and competits

In addition, market demand for smabpitalization stocks, and price and volume flutiares in the stock market unrela
to our performance could result in significant fluetions in market price of our common stock. Teefgrmance of our
common stock could adversely affect our abilitydise equity in the public markets and adversdlycaur acquisition
program.

The issuance of additional common stock in the fatuincluding shares that we may issue pursuanijation grants and
future acquisitions, may result in dilution in theet tangible book value per share of our commoncito

Our board of directors has the legal power andaiithto determine the terms of an offering of #sof our capital
stock, or securities convertible into or exchandee&dr these shares, to the extent of our sharasithorized and unissued
capital stock.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for fure sale.

As of September 30, 2006, there were outstandineR®3524 shares of our common stock. Substanadlilyf these
shares are freely tradable without restrictionustifer registration under the securities laws, ssleeld by an “affiliate” of
our company, as that term is defined in Rule 14dienthe securities laws. Shares held by affiliafesur company, which
generally include our directors, officers, and airfprincipal stockholders, are subject to theleekaitations of Rule 144
described below. Outstanding shares of common s$scled in connection with the acquisition of anguwred dealers are
available for resale beginning one year after #spective dates of the acquisitions, subject toptiamce with the provisions
of Rule 144 under the securities laws.

As of September 30, 2006, we had issued optiopsitthase approximately 2,364,538 shares of comitezk sinder our
1998 incentive stock plan and we issued 446,684e0¥50,000 shares of common stock reserved foaigs under our 19¢
employee stock purchase plan. We have filed atragjien statement under the securities laws tcstegthe common stock
be issued under these plans. As a result, shawgsdsinder these plans will be freely tradable authrestriction unless
acquired by affiliates of our company, who will figbject to the volume and other limitations of R14d.

We may issue additional shares of common stockefepred stock under the securities laws as pahgfacquisition we
may complete in the future. If issued pursuantri@fiective registration statement, these sharaergdly will be freely
tradable after their issuance by persons not atiitl with us or the acquired companies.

We rely on our operating subsidiaries.

We are a holding company, the principal assetsti¢hvare the shares of the capital stock or merhiygisterests of our
corporate or limited liability company subsidiari@gcluding the operating subsidiaries. As a hajdiempany without
independent means of generating operating reveveidepend on dividends and other
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payments from our subsidiaries to fund our obliyadiand meet our cash needs. Financial covenadés tuture loan
agreements of our subsidiaries may limit our subgis’ ability to make sufficient dividend or other payn&to permit us t
fund our obligations or meet our cash needs, inlevhoin part.

We do not pay cash dividends.

We have never paid cash dividends on our commak skdoreover, financial covenants under certaiowf credit
facilities restrict our ability to pay dividends.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may adversely affeptisting stockholders.

Our Stockholders’ Rights Plan may have the effécteterring, delaying, or preventing a change intaa that might
otherwise be in the best interests of our stocldrsldUnder the Rights Plan, we issued a dividerahefPreferred Share
Purchase Right for each share of our common steltklhy stockholders of record as of the close afriess on September 7,
2001.

In general, subject to certain limited exceptidhs, stock purchase rights become exercisable wipensan or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or a teaffer or exchange offer for 15% or more of oungnon stock is
announced or commenced. After any such event, ther stockholders may purchase additional sharesro€ommon stock
at 50% of the then-current market price. The righitscause substantial dilution to a person orugrdhat attempts to acquire
us on terms not approved by our board of direcffine. rights may be redeemed by us at $0.01 pek giochase right at any
time before any person or group acquires 15% oernbour outstanding common stock. The rights sthook interfere with
any merger or other business combination approyealibboard of directors. The rights expire on Astg28, 2011.

Certain provisions of our restated certificate afdorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may makehange in the
control of our company more difficult to completeyen if a change in control were in the stockholdemterest or might
result in a premium over the market price for thbares held by the stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws divitie board of directors into three classes of dimsctlected for
staggered thregear terms. The certificate of incorporation alsovides that the board of directors may authofiieeissuanc
of one or more series of preferred stock from timéme and may determine the rights, preferengegeges, and
restrictions and fix the number of shares of arghsseries of preferred stock, without any voteatioa by our stockholders.
The board of directors may authorize the issuan@eaderred stock with voting or conversion rigttiait could adversely
affect the voting power or other rights of the tesklof common stock. The certificate of incorpanatalso allows our board
of directors to fix the number of directors andiiovacancies on the board of directors.

We also are subject to the anti-takeover provisafrSection 203 of the Delaware General Corpordtiaw, which
prohibits us from engaging in a “business combardtivith an “interested stockholder” for a perioitloree years after the
date of the transaction in which the person becaménterested stockholdenihless the business combination is approve
a prescribed manner.

Certain of our dealer agreements could also mattifiicult for a third party to attempt to acquiaesignificant ownership
position in our company. In addition, the stocklerklagreement and governance agreement will have tbet ef increasin
the control of our directors, executive officemsgdgersons associated with them.

Our sales of Ferretti Group and Azimut product mag adversely affected by fluctuations in currencychange rates
between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.

Products purchased from the Italy-based Ferretiu@and Azimut are subject to fluctuations in thedsto U.S. dollar
exchange rate, which ultimately may impact theilrptéice at which we can sell such products. Assuit, fluctuations in the
value of the Euro as compared with the U.S. daollay impact the price points at which we can sedfitably Ferretti Group
and Azimut products, and such price points maybeotompetitive with other product lines in the \@ditStates. Accordingl
such fluctuations in exchange rates ultimately ingyact the
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amount of revenue, cost of goods sold, cash fland,earnings we recognize for the Ferretti GroupAzimut product lines
The impact of these currency fluctuations couldease, particularly as our revenue from the Fe@tiup and Azimut
products increase as a percentage of our totahuevaVe also could incur losses from hedging tretieas designed to
reduce our risk to fluctuation in exchange rates. a&nnot predict the effects of exchange rateuhitains or currency rate
hedges on our operating results. Therefore, iraitedases, we have entered into foreign currensly flaw hedges to reduce
the variability of cash flows associated with fiommmitments to purchase boats and yachts from tiigB@up.. We cannot
assure that our strategies will adequately pratacbperating results from the effects of excharage fluctuations.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We lease our corporate offices in Clearwater, BiriWe also lease 52 of our retail locations utekeses, many of which
contain multi-year renewal options and some of Wigicant us a first right of refusal to purchaseghaperty at fair value. In
most cases, we pay a fixed rent at negotiated.tatesibstantially all of the leased locations,are responsible for taxes,
utilities, insurance, and routine repairs and neaiahce. We own the property associated with 34 othail locations and
operate 2 additional locations as noted below.

The following table reflects the status, approxiesize, and facilities of our various retail locas as of the date of this

report.

Location

Alabama
Gulf Shores
Arizona
Tempe
California

Newport Beact

Oakland
Santa Ros
Sacramentt
San Diegc

San Diego (Shelter Islan

Lodi
Colorado

Denver

Grand Junctiol
Connecticut
Norwalk
Delaware

Bear

Square Operated

Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2)

Company owne: 4,00C Retail and servic 199¢

Company owne: 34,000 Retail and servic 199:
Retail only; 16 wet

Third-party lease 1,90C slips 200t
Retail and service;

Third-party leas¢ 17,70C 20 wet slips 198t

Company owne: 8,10C Retail and servic 199(

Company owne: 24,80( Retail and servic 199t

Third-party leas¢ 9,50C Retail and servic 200¢
Retail and service;

Third-party leas¢ 93C 20 wet slips 200t
Retail only; 15 wet

Third-party leas¢ 2,40C slips 199¢
Retail, service, and

Third-party leas¢ 16,40( storage 200z
Retail, service, and

Third-party lease 9,30C storage 198¢

Third-party leas¢ 7,00C Retail and servic 199/
Retail and service;

Third-party leas¢ 5,00C 15 wet slips 199t
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Waterfront

Newport Bay
Alameda Estuary
(San Francisco Bay

Mission Bay

Sacramento Rive

Norwalk Harbor

Between Delaware Bay
and Chesapeake B
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Location
Florida

Cape Haz:

Clearwatel
Cocoa

Coconut Grove
Dania

Destin

Ft Lauderdale (Pier 6¢

Fort Myers

Ft Walton Beacl
Key Largo
Jacksonville
Jacksonville
Miami

Miami

Naples

North Palm Beacl!
Pensacol;

Pompano Beac
Pompano Beac
Sarasot:

St, Petersburg(:
Stuart

Stuart
Tampa

Square Operated
Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2)
Retail, service, and
Company owne: 18,00( storage; 8 wet slip 197z
Retail and service;
Company owne: 42,000 20 wet slips 197:
Company owne: 15,00( Retail and servic 196¢
Retail only; 24 wet
Third-party leas¢ 2,00C slips 200z
Repair and service;
Company owne: 32,000 16 wet slips 1991
Retail only; 8 wet
Third-party leas¢ 2,20C slips 200t
Retail and service;
Third-party leas¢ 2,40C 12 wet slips 1971
Retail and service;
Third-party leas¢ 8,00C 18 wet slips 198:
Third-party leas¢ 4,80C Retail only 200s¢
Third-party brokerag: 75C Retail only 200z
Company owne: 15,00( Retail and servic 200¢
Retail only; 7 wet
Third-party leas¢ 1,00C slips 199t
Retail and service; |
Company owne: 7,20C  wet slips 198(
Service only; 11 wet
Company owne: 5,00C slips 200¢
Retail and service;
Company owne: 19,60C 14 wet slips 1997
Retail and service; 8
Company owne: 22,80C wet slips 199¢
Third-party leas¢ 24,30( Retail and servic 1974
Retail and service;
Company owne: 23,000 16 wet slips 199(
Retail and service;
Company owne: 5,400 24 wet slips 200t
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas¢ 26,50( storage; 15 wet slig 1972
Yacht service, 20
Joint venture 15,000 wet slips 200¢
Retail and service; 6
Company owne: 22,400 wet slips 200z
Retail and service;
Company owne: 6,70C 60 wet slips 199¢
Company owne: 13,10C Retail and servic 199t
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Waterfront

Intracoastal Waterwa

Tampa Bay

Biscayne Bay

Port Everglade
Destin Harbol
Intracoastal Waterwa

Caloosahatchee Riv

St Johns Rive
Little River
Little River
Naples Bay

Intracoastal Waterwa

Intracoastal Waterwa
Intracoastal Waterwa
Sarasota Ba

Boca Ciega Ba
Intracoastal Waterwa

Intracoastal Waterwa
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Location

Venice
Georgia

Allatoona
Buford (Atlanta)

Cumming (Atlanta

Forest Park (Atlante
Maryland

Baltimore
White Marsh

Joppa
Minnesota

Bayport
Oakdale

Rogers
Walker

Walker
Missouri

Kimberling City

Lake Ozark
Laurie
Springfield
Osage Beac
St. Louis

St. Louis
Nevada
Las Vegas
New Jersey
Brick

Brant Beact

Square Operated
Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2)
Retail, service, and
Company owne: 62,000 storage; 90 wet slig 197z
Retail and service; 4
Third-party leas¢ 8,80C wet slips 200z
Company owne: 13,50( Retail and servic 2001
Retail and service;
Third-party leas¢ 13,000 50 wet slips 1981
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas¢ 47,30( storage 197:
Retail and service;
Third-party leas¢ 8,00C 17 wet slips 200t
Company owne: 19,80( Retail and servic 195¢
Retail, service, and
storage; 294 wet
Company owne: 28,400 slips 196¢
Retail only; 10 wet
Third-party leas¢ 45C slips 199¢
Third-party leas¢ 18,50( Retail and servic 1997
Retail, service, and
Company ownei 70,00( storage 1991
Retail, service, and
Company ownel 76,40( storage 198¢
Retail and service;
Company owne: 6,80C 93 wet slips 1971
Retail only; 7 wet
Third-party leas¢ 50C slips 200(
Retail and service;
Company owne: 60,30C 300 wet slips 1987
Company owne: 70C Retail and servic 200¢
Company owne: 12,200 Retail and servic 1997
Company owne: 2,00C Retail and servic 199¢
Third-party leas¢ 12,00( Retail and servic 200z¢
Retail only; 6 wet
Third-party leas¢ 50C slips 200¢
Company owne: 21,60( Retail and servic 199(
Retail and service;
Company owne: 20,000 225 wet slips 1971
Retail and service;
Third-party leas¢ 3,80C 36 wet slips 196¢
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Waterfront

Intracoastal Waterwa

Lake Allatoone

Lake Lanier

Baltimore Inner Harba

Gunpowder Rive

St Croix River

Leech Lake

Table Rock Lake

Lake of the Ozark

Mississippi Rivel

Manasquan Rive

Barnegat Bay
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Location

Greenbrool
Jersey City

Lake Hopatcony
Ship Bottom

Somers Poin
New York
Copiague
Huntington

Manhattar

Lindenhurst (Delivery

Center)

Lindenhurst (Highway

Store)

Lindenhurst (Marina

North Carolina
Wilmington

Wrightsville Beacl
Ohio

Port Clinton

Port Clinton
Toledo
Oklahoma

Afton
Rhode Island

Wakefield
South Carolina
Myrtle Beach
Tennesset

Chattanoogi

Square Operated

Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2)

Third-party leas¢ 18,50( Retail and servic 199t

Retail only; 6 wet

Third-party leas¢ 50C slips 200(
Retail and service;

Third-party leas¢ 4,600 80 wet slips 199¢

Third-party lease 19,30( Retail and servic 1972
Retail and service;

Affiliate lease 31,000 33 wet slips 1987
Third-party leas¢ 15,00C Retail only 199:
Third-party leas¢ 1,20C Retail and servic 199t

Retail only; 75 wet
Third-party leas¢ 1,20C slips 199¢
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas¢ 54,000 dry storage 196¢
Third-party leas¢ 10,00C Retail and servic 200¢
Marina and service;
Third-party leas¢ 14,60C 370 wet slips 196¢
Third-party leas¢ 6,00C Retail and servic 200¢
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas¢ 34,50( storage 199¢
Retail, service, and
storage; 155 wet
Third-party leas¢ 63,70C slips 197¢
Retail, service, and
Third-party leas¢ 93,30( storage 1997
Third-party leas¢ 12,20( Retail and servic 198¢
Retail and service;
Third-party lease 3,50C 23 wet slips 200z
Retail only; 3 wet
Third-party leas¢ 1,80C slips 200¢
Third-party leas¢ 3,50C Retail only 199¢
Retail only; 12 wet
Third-party leas¢ 3,00C slips 200t
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Waterfront

Hudson Rivel

Lake Hopatcony

Little Egg Harbor Bay

Huntington Harbor and
Long Island Soun

Hudson Rivel

Neguntatogue Creek
Great South Ba

Neguntatogue Creek
Great South Ba

Intracoastal Waterwa

Lake Erie

Lake Erie

Grand Lake

Narragansett Ba

Coquina Harbo

Tennessee Rive
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Square Operated

Location Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Texas
Arlington Third-party leas¢ 31,00( Retail and servic 199¢ —
Houston Third-party leas¢ 10,00C Retail only (4) 1987 —
Houston Third-party leas¢ 10,00C Retail and servic 1981 —
League City (floating Retail and service;

facility)(5) Third-party lease 80C 20 wet slips 198¢ Clear Lake
Lewisville (Dallas) Company owne: 22,000 Retail and servic 200z —
Lewisville (Dallas) Retail only; 20 wet

(floating facility) Third-party leas¢ 50C slips (6) 199¢ Lake Lewisville

Retail and service;

Seabrool Company owne: 32,000 30 wet slips 200z Clear Lake
Utah
Salt Lake City Third-party leas¢ 21,20( Retail and servic 1978 —

(1) Square footage is approximate and does not incuti®de sales space or dock or marina facili

(2) Operated since date is the date the facility waseg by us or opened prior to its acquisition hy

(3) Joint venture entered into to with Brunswick to @icgg marina and service facilit

(4) Shares service facility located at the other Haus#tail locations

(5) We own the floating facility, however, the relaiack and marina space is leased by us from aniliaiz third party.
(6) Shares service facility located at the other Leillesvetail location.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are party to various legal actions arising mahdinary course of business. With the exceptfam single lawsuit
award that we are currently appealing, the ultiniatglity, if any, associated with the other mastevas not material at
September 30, 2006. However, based on informatiaiiable at September 30, 2006 surrounding thdesilagvsuit award,
our litigation accrual approximated $2.0 millionhiké it is not feasible to determine the actualkoute of these actions as of
September 30, 2006, we do not believe that thestersavill have a material adverse effect on oursodidated financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holds

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsblier Repurchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock has been traded on the New Ya&kIExchange under the symbol HZO since our injtiddlic
offering on June 3, 1998 at $12.50 per share. dt@wing table sets forth high and low sale prioéthe common stock for
each calendar quarter indicated as reported oNélmeYork Stock Exchange.

High Low

2004

First quartel $28.3:  $18.1(

Second quarte $32.0¢  $23.5¢

Third quartel $28.5¢  $18.0t

Fourth quarte $30.58  $21.5(
2005

First quarte $35.1¢  $27.51

Second quarte $31.77  $23.9¢

Third quartel $35.8¢  $21.5(

Fourth quarte $32.48  $22.3¢
2006

First quartel $34.2¢  $27.2Z

Second quarte $36.72  $25.3¢

Third quarte! $26.65  $19.2¢

Fourth quarter (through November 30, 20 $29.4¢  $24.41

On November 30, 2006, the closing sale price ofoamnmon stock was $26.86 per share. On Novembet(®®, there
were approximately 100 record holders and approtaéin®,300 beneficial owners of our common stock.

In November 2005, our Board of Directors approvethare repurchase plan allowing our company torofase up to
1,000,000 shares of our common stock. Under the pla may buy back common stock from time to timéhe open market
or in privately negotiated blocks, dependant uparous factors, including price and availabilitytbé shares, and general
market conditions. At September 30, 2006, we hawvehased an aggregate of 306,300 shares of comimchnder the
plan for an aggregate purchase price of approxisgn&&9 million.
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following table contains certain financial akrating data and is qualified by the more dedailensolidated
financial statements and notes thereto includegindisre in this report. The balance sheet and stateofi operations data
were derived from the consolidated financial staets and notes thereto that have been auditedrist &rYoung LLP, an
independent registered certified public accountimg. The financial data shown below should be raconjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and thee@labtes thereto and “Management’s Discussion aradyAis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsesg in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue $ 540,71« $ 607,50. $ 762,006 $ 947,34 $ 1,213,54
Cost of sale: 416,13 459,72! 573,61t 712,841 906,78:
Gross profit 124,57¢ 147,77. 188,39: 234,50: 306,76(
Selling, general, and administrative

expenses(1 95,56 113,29¢ 139,47( 169,97! 222,80¢
Income from operatior 29,01: 34,47: 48,92 64,52¢ 83,95
Interest expense, n 1,264 2,471 6,49¢ 9,291 18,61¢
Income before income tax provisi 27,74¢ 32,00z 42,42 55,23¢ 65,33¢
Income tax provisiol 10,68 12,32: 16,12¢ 21,41: 25,95¢
Net income $ 17,068 $ 1968 $ 2629¢ $ 33,82¢ $ 39,38
Net income per shar

Diluted $ 1.1C % 1.2¢ % 15¢ % 18 % 2.0¢
Weighted average number of shai

Diluted 15,540,97 15,671,47 16,666,10 18,032,53 18,928,73
Other Data: (as of year-end)
Number of retail locations(Z 59 65 67 71 87
Sales per store(3)(! $ 1227 $ 1190C $ 12,83: $ 16,38¢ $ 17,06«
Same-store sales growth(4)(! 3% 6% 21% 23% %

September 30,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Balance Sheet Data
Working capital $ 55,42¢ $ 67,000 $ 88,01! $163,43. $151,09°
Total asset 301,14¢ 329,15! 474,35¢ 539,49( 801,56:
Long-term debt (including current portion)( 21,76: 22,34 26,237 30,08t 37,18¢t
Total stockholder equity 145,19( 166,05¢ 196,82: 283,59¢ 349,88

(1) As aresult of our adoption of SFAS 123R, we reedrdompensation expense for stock options of afpeadizly
$3.5 million before tax, or $0.15 per diluted shafte-tax in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2

(2) Includes only those retail locations open at peend.
(3) Includes only those stores open for the entirequtieg)12-monthperiod.
(4) New and acquired stores are included in the conbpaimse at the end of the s’s thirteenth month of operatior
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(5) A store is one or more retail locations that afja@eht or operate as one entity. Sales per statsa@me-store sales
growth is intended only as supplemental informatiod is not a substitute for Revenue or Net Incpresented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples

(6) Amount excludes our shterm borrowings for working capital and inventonyancing.

Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

The following should be read in conjunction withrAaincluding the matters set forth in the “Ris&ctors”section of thi
Form 10-K, and our Consolidated Financial Statesmant notes thereto included elsewhere in this AdHK.

Overview

We are the largest recreational boat retailer énUhited States with fiscal 2006 revenue exceefling billion. Through
our current 88 retail locations in 22 states, wersav and used recreational boats and relatednmgmioducts, including
engines, trailers, parts, and accessories. Weaataage related boat financing, insurance, anchdetg warranty contracts;
provide boat repair and maintenance services; &adyacht and boat brokerage services, and wheaiadle, offer slip and
storage accommodations.

MarineMax was incorporated in January 1998. We cenmted operations with the acquisition of five inelegent
recreational boat dealers on March 1, 1998. Sineénitial acquisitions in March 1998, we have #figantly expanded our
operations through the acquisition of 20 recreatitnoat dealers, two boat brokerage operationspaodull-service yacht
repair facilities. As a part of our acquisitionatgy, we frequently engage in discussions witiouarrecreational boat
dealers regarding their potential acquisition byRmtential acquisition discussions frequently taleee over a long period of
time and involve difficult business integration asttier issues, including in some cases, managesnenéssion and related
matters. As a result of these and other factonsinaber of potential acquisitions that from timeitoe appear likely to occur
do not result in binding legal agreements and ateonsummated. The following are the acquisitimeshave completed
during the fiscal years ending September 30, 20@62804. No significant acquisitions were completadng the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2005.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006;amepleted the acquisition of two recreational hteslers. During
March 2006, we acquired substantially all of theeds and assumed certain liabilities of SurfsidéaBina, Inc. (Surfside), a
privately held boat dealership with eight locatiam®New York and Connecticut, for approximately $#illion in cash and
665,024 shares of common stock, plus $24.0 millioworking capital adjustments including acquisiticosts. The shares
were valued at $33.71 per share, which was theageerlosing market price of our common stock ferfthe-day period
beginning two days prior to and ending two dayssegoient to the acquisition date. Based on the giomg of the asset
purchase agreement, 100,000 shares of commonatedurrently held in escrow, subject to the satisbn of working
capital adjustments and other provisions in thauesitipn documents. We and Surfside are in curdéstussions to resolve
such matters. The acquisition expands our abilityerve consumers in the Northeast boating comsani allows us to
capitalize on Surfside’s market position and legeraur inventory management and inventory financasgurces over the
acquired locations. Based on our preliminary vadugtthe purchase price, including acquisition spist anticipated to result
in the recognition of approximately $37.0 milliantax deductible goodwill and approximately $14.iliam in tax deductibl
indefinite-lived intangible assets (dealer agreeisjeiVe are in the process of finalizing the pusehprice allocation and
determining the fair value of acquired intangilbdsets; accordingly, certain purchase price allonatare subject to change.
Surfside has been included in our consolidatechfiia statements since the date of acquisition.

During January 2006, we acquired substantiallpfihe assets, including certain real estate, asdraed certain
liabilities of the Port Arrowhead Group (Port Arrbead), a privately held boat dealership with lamaiin Missouri and
Oklahoma, for approximately $27.5 million in caphys $5.0 million in working capital adjustmentsliding acquisition
costs. Port Arrowhead operates six retail locatiomduding a large marina with more than 300 slifise acquisition expan
our ability to serve consumers in the Midwest bgatommunity, including neighboring boating dediimas in Illinois,
Kansas, and Arkansas. The acquisition also allaie @apitalize on Port Arrowhead’s market positioa leverage our
inventory management and inventory financing resesiover the acquired locations. Based on ounpirgdiry valuation, the
purchase price, including acquisition costs, iscgpdted to result in the recognition of approxietgt$6.1 million in tax
deductible goodwill and approximately
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$2.0 million in tax deductible indefinite-lived emgible assets (dealer agreements). We are inrtlcess of finalizing the
purchase price allocation and determining thevfaiue of acquired intangible assets; accordingdytain purchase price
allocations are subject to change. Port Arrowhesglifeen included in our consolidated financiakstants since the date of
acquisition.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 amepleted the acquisition of three recreationailtlo@alers. During
June 2004, we acquired substantially all of thetsssncluding real estate, and assumed certdiilities of Imperial Marine
(Imperial), a privately held boat dealership wibiedtions in Baltimore and the northern Chesapesda @ Maryland, for
approximately $9.3 million in cash, including acsjtion costs. Imperial operates a highway locatiod a marina on the
Gunpowder River. The acquisition expands our ahititserve consumers in the Mid-Atlantic Unitedt8saboating
community. Additionally, the acquisition allows tescapitalize on Imperial’s market position anddeage our inventory
management and inventory financing resources dveatquired locations. The acquisition resulteithénrecognition of
approximately $1.1 million in tax deductible gootinwincluding acquisition costs, and approximat$580,000 in tax
deductible indefinite-lived intangible assets (éealgreements). Imperial has been included in onsaidated financial
statements since the date of acquisition.

During June 2004, we purchased inventory and ceegiiipment and assumed certain liabilities froengtevious
Jacksonville, Florida-based Sea Ray dealer (Jagkbgrfor the sport boat and sport cruiser prodires for approximately
$900,000 in cash, including acquisition costs. phrehase enhanced our ability to serve custometeinortheast Florida
boating community by adding the sport boat andtsproiiser product lines to our existing Sea Raydpa offerings. The
acquisition resulted in the recognition of approatety $240,000 in tax deductible goodwill, inclugliacquisition costs, and
approximately $450,000 in tax deductible indefidited intangible assets (dealer agreements). dawilte has been
included in our consolidated financial statemeisesthe date of acquisition.

During October 2003, we acquired substantiallpfthe assets and assumed certain liabilities adifiira International,
Inc. and Steven Myers, Inc. (Emarine), a privateid boat dealership located in Fort Lauderdaleridi, for approximately
$305,000 in cash. The acquisition resulted in gdoegnition of approximately $300,000 in tax dechletgoodwill, including
acquisition costs. The acquisition provides us aithestablished retail location to sell the newifgred Ferretti Group
products in the southeast Florida boating commuiiitye assets purchase agreement contained anwggrowision based on
the future profits of the location, assuming cert@anditions and provisions were met. In August4£@Be earn out provisio
were modified withdrawing the requirements for &umyire earn out payments. Emarine has been inclirdedr consolidated
financial statements since the date of acquisition.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the policies below as criti@abtr business operations and the understandingrakesults of
operations. The impact and risks related to thefieies on our business operations is discussedifirout Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &w®bults of Operations when such policies affectreported and expect
financial results.

In the ordinary course of business, we make a nuwibestimates and assumptions relating to thertigggpof results of
operations and financial condition in the preparatf our financial statements in conformity witttaunting principles
generally accepted in the United States. We basestimates on historical experience and on varnher assumptions that
we believe are reasonable under the circumstambestesults form the basis for making judgmentuabiee carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily appafrom other sources. Actual results could difignificantly from those
estimates under different assumptions and conditidfe believe that the following discussion add¥essur most critical
accounting policies, which are those that are nmegortant to the portrayal of our financial conditiand results of
operations and require our most difficult, subjestiand complex judgments, often as a result ohdesl to make estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherentlyeutain.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and traddes, and parts and service operations at thethienkoat, motor,
trailer, or part is delivered to or accepted bychstomer or service is completed. We recognizengigsions
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earned from a brokerage sale at the time the telatekerage transaction closes. We recognize reveom slip and storage
services on a straight-line basis over the terth@flip or storage agreement. We recognize cononsgarned by us for
placing notes with financial institutions in contien with customer boat financing when the relatedt sales are recogniz
We also recognize marketing fees earned on ciiéglitlccident and disability, and hull insurancedarcts sold by third-party
insurance companies at the later of customer aageptof the insurance product as evidenced byadrdxecution, or when
the related boat sale is recognized. We also rezegommissions earned on extended warranty seceiggacts sold on
behalf of third-party insurance companies at therlaf customer acceptance of the service conteacts as evidenced by
contract execution, or recognition of the relatedttsale.

Certain finance and extended warranty commissiodsn@arketing fees on insurance products may begelddvack if a
customer terminates or defaults on the underlyorgract within a specified period of time. Basedmpur experience of
terminations and defaults, we maintain a chargel#olvance that was not material to our financiatements taken as a
whole as of September 30, 2005 or 2006. Shouldtsediffer materially from our historical experiess; we would need to
modify our estimate of future chargebacks, whichlddave a material adverse effect on our operatiaggins.

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our weadn accordance with Emerging Issues Task Faeel
No. 0z-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Resglfer Certain Consideration Received from a VefidBITF
02-16). EITF 02-16 requires us to classify integsstistance received from manufacturers as a ieduaftinventory cost and
related cost of sales. Pursuant to EITF 02-16, amtsow@ceived by us under our co-op assistance qmogyfrom our
manufacturers, are netted against related advegtesipenses.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aegthie inventory, net of vendor consideration anctipase discounts,
the cost of equipment added, reconditioning castd,transportation costs relating to acquiring moey for sale. New and
used boat, motor, and trailer inventories are dtatehe lower of cost, determined on a spedifasitification basis, or mark
Parts and accessories are stated at the lowestfdsiermined on the first-in, first-out basispmarket. If the carrying
amount of our inventory exceeds its fair value regduce the carrying amount to reflect fair values Wlize our historical
experience and current sales trends as the basisifétower of cost or market analysis. If eventsuwr and market conditions
change, causing the fair value to fall below cangyvalue, further reductions may be required.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We account for goodwill and identifiable intangilalesets in accordance with Statement of Finanaebénting
Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” (SFAB),1dnd Statement of Financial Accounting Standatuols142,
“Goodwill and other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 143FAS 141 requires that all business combinatioisied after June 30,
2001 be accounted for using the purchase methadawfunting and identifiable intangible assets aeguin a business
combination be recognized as assets and reponpedately from goodwill. We have determined that mast significant
acquired identifiable intangible assets are desgeeements, which are indefinite-lived intangitdeats. SFAS 142 requires
that goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible asseb longer be amortized, but instead tested fpairment at least annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstanceatedhat the carrying value may not be recoverdbthe carrying
amount of goodwill or an identifiable intangiblesas exceeds its fair value, we would recognizergairment loss. We
measure any potential impairment based on variaasess valuation methodologies, including a ptepciscounted cash
flow method. We completed our last annual impairhtest during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006sdxhon financial
information as of the third quarter of fiscal 2006ich resulted in no impairment of goodwill or idiéiable intangible asset
To date, we have not recognized any impairmenbofiwill or identifiable intangible assets in thephpation of SFAS 142.
We will continue to test goodwill and identifialilgangible assets for impairment at least annuailg whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carmya@hge may not be recoverable. Prior to the adoptfcSFAS 142, all
purchase price in excess of the net tangible assetsecorded as goodwill and no identifiable igthle assets were
recognized. Net goodwill and identifiable intangilalssets amounted to $94.1 million and $22.1 milliespectively, at
September 30, 2006.
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The most significant estimates used in our goodwailuation model include estimates of the futu@agh in
our cash flows and future working capital needsupport our projected growth. Should circumstamntesige
causing these assumptions to differ materially #vgrected, our goodwill may become impaired, resyin a
material adverse effect on our operating margins.

For a more comprehensive list of our accountingcped, including those which involve varying degged
judgment, see Note— “Significant Accounting Policies” of Notes to Cawlidated Financial Statements.
Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain financiatalas a percentage of revenue for the periodsdtetic

Fiscal Year Ended September 3C

2004 2005 2006
(Amount in thousands)
Revenue $762,00¢ 100.(% $947,34° 100.(% $1,213,54 100.%
Cost of sale: 573,61t 75.% 712,84 75.2% 906,78: 74.1%
Gross profit 188,39: 24.1% 234,50« 24.&% 306,76( 25.2%
Selling, general, and administrative Exper 139,47( 18.2% 169,97! 17.% 222,80t 18.4%
Income from operatior 48,92 6.4% 64,52¢ 6.9% 83,95¢ 6.9%
Interest expense, n 6,49¢ 0.9% 9,291 1.C% 18,61¢ 1.5%
Income before income tax provisi 42,42¢ 5.5% 55,23¢ 5.9% 65,33¢ 5.4%
Income tax provisiol 16,12¢ 2.C% 21,41 2.3% 25,95¢ 2.2%
Net income $ 26,29¢ 3.5% $ 33,82¢ 3.6 $ 39,38 3.2%

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 Compared Wwitital Year Ended September 30, 2005

Revenue. Revenue increased $266.2 million, or 28.1%, t@ $illion for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2006 from $947.3 million for the fiscal year endggptember 30, 2005. Of this increase, $204.9 milias
attributable to stores opened or acquired that weteligible for inclusion in the comparable-stbese and
$61.3 million was attributable to a 6.5% growttcamparable-store sales in fiscal 2006. The incremsemparable-
store sales in fiscal 2006 resulted primarily framincrease of approximately $45.2 million in baatl yacht sales.
This increase in boat and yacht sales on a comigasédire basis helped generate an increase inuevieom our
parts, service, finance, and insurance producaéppfoximately $16.1 million.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $72.3 million, or 30.8%$806.8 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 from $234.5 million for thedispear ended September 30, 2005. Gross profijp@scentage
of revenue increased to 25.3% in fiscal 2006 fren8% in fiscal 2005. This increase was primarilyilatitable to
an increase in service, finance, insurance, pamtbrokerage revenue, which generally yield higjness margins
than boat sales, and an increase in manufactusgrams in place for the year ended September 3B.2he
increase in gross profit was partially offset byegrease in gross margins on boat sales, coupthdawincrease in
yacht sales, which generally yield lower gross rimer¢han boat sale

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense&elling, general, and administrative expensesased
$52.8 million, or 31.1%, to $222.8 million for tffiscal year ended September 30, 2006 from $170l®mfor the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. Selling,@érend administrative expenses as a percentagverfue
increased approximately 50 basis points to 18.49tht® year ended September 30, 2006 from 17.9%é&year
ended September 30, 2005. In fiscal 2006, the &iser@s a percentage of revenue was attributabgproximately
$3.5 million of stock option compensation experesilting from the adoption of SFAS 123R and appnately
$1.2 million of hurricane related expenses to maweé repair inventory (net of related insurance beirmements)
and uninsured losses to our locations. Additionallyr selling, general and administrative expeases percentage
of revenue increased due to increased marketing@amenission expenses associated with achievindevet of
comparable-store sales growth, increased faciliied other costs associated with new and acgstozds.
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Interest Expense.Interest expense increased $9.3 million, or 190 # $18.6 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 from $9.3 million for the fisga&r ended September 30, 2005. Interest experspersentage of
revenue increased to 1.5% for fiscal 2006 from 1f6ffiscal 2005. The increase was primarily a hestiincreased
borrowings associated with our revolving creditiifgcand mortgages, which accounted for an incegasnterest expense of
approximately $5.7 million and a less favorableiast rate environment, which accounted for areae of approximately
$3.6 million in interest expense.

Income Tax Provision.Income taxes increased $4.5 million, or 21.2%%26.0 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006 from $21.4 million for the flsear ended September 30, 2005 as a result cfaged earnings. Our
effective tax rate increased to 39.7% for the figear ended September 30, 2006 from 38.8% fofisical year ended
September 30, 2005 as a result of the adoptiofr85S123R.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2005 Compared Wwislital Year Ended September 30, 2004

Revenue. Revenue increased $185.3 million, or 24.3%, @739 million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZiD5
from $762.0 million for the fiscal year ended Sepber 30, 2004. Of this increase, $11.9 million w#sbutable to stores
opened or acquired that were not eligible for is@n in the comparable-store base and $173.4 millias attributable to a
22.8% growth in comparable-store sales in fisc@B20 he increase in comparalsi®re sales in fiscal 2005 resulted prime
from an increase of approximately $160.2 milliorboat and yacht sales. This increase in boat acldt pales on a
comparable-store basis helped generate an indreaseenue from our parts, service, finance, asdrance products of
approximately $13.2 million.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased $46.1 million, or 24.5%$234.5 million for the fiscal year ended Septengte
2005 from $188.4 million for the fiscal year endgeptember 30, 2004. Gross profit as a percentagea/efue increased to
24.8% in fiscal 2005 from 24.7% in fiscal 2004. §imcrease was primarily attributable to an inoegasggross margins on
boat sales and improvements in service, finanserance, parts, and brokerage revenues, whichabngield higher gross
margins than boat sales. The increase in gros# pa$ partially offset by an increase in yachesalwhich generally yield
lower gross margins than boat sales.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense&elling, general, and administrative expensesased $30.5 million, or
21.9%, to $170.0 million for the fiscal year endgaptember 30, 2005 from $139.5 million for thedisgear ended
September 30, 2004. Selling, general, and admétiser expenses as a percentage of revenue decieggs@kimately
35 basis points to 17.9% for the year ended Semes 2005 from 18.3% for the year ended Septe@3®e2004. The
decrease as a percentage of revenue was attributah approximate 60 basis point decrease iec@uparable-stores
selling, general, and administrative expenses. déésease incurred by our comparable-store locatiesulted from the
leveraging of our operating expense structure, whésulted in decreases in personnel costs and éixpenses as a
percentage of revenue. These decreases were [gastfakt by an approximate $4.4 million increaseriarketing expenses
associated with achieving our level of comparaldeessales growth, the addition and expansion nbua product lines,
increases in inventory maintenance costs relatsdgporting our increase in comparable-store saldsthe addition and
expansion of various product lines, and an incr@aserr accrued litigation expense related to glsitawsuit award that we
are currently appealing. Additionally, the reduntimf the comparable-store expenses was partiditgbby an increase in
expenses associated with stores opened or acdhaedere not eligible for inclusion in the comgaeastore base. These
opened or acquired stores generally operate ateehexpense structure than our other locations.

Interest Expense.Interest expense increased $2.8 million, or 4310289.3 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005 from $6.5 million for the fispadr ended September 30, 2004. Interest experspasentage of
revenue increased to 1.0% for fiscal 2005 from Of@fdiscal 2004. The increase was primarily a lestia less favorable
interest rate environment, which accounted for apipnately $2.2 million of the increase, coupledhéin increase in the
average borrowings associated with our revolvirgglitifacility and mortgages, which accounted fopragimately $600,000.

Income Tax Provision.Income taxes increased $5.3 million, or 32.8%&2.4 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005 from $16.1 million for the flsesar ended September 30, 2004 as a result afased earnings. Our
effective tax rate increased to 38.8% for the figear ended September 30, 2005 from 38.0% fofisical year ended
September 30, 2004 as a result of a review of fiecteve tax rate calculation for the jurisdictiomswhich we currently
operate.
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Quarterly Data and Seasonality

Our business, as well as the entire recreatioratimpindustry, is highly seasonal, with seasopaditrying in different
geographic markets. With the exception of Florida,generally realize significantly lower sales &igher levels of
inventories, and related short-term borrowingghanquarterly periods ending December 31 and Maici he onset of the
public boat and recreation shows in January stiteslhoat sales and allows us to reduce our invelgwgels and related
short-term borrowings throughout the remaindeheffiscal year. Our business could become subatyntiore seasonal as
we acquire dealers that operate in colder regibtiseoUnited States.

Our business is also subject to weather patternishwmay adversely affect our results of operatiéis example,
drought conditions (or merely reduced rainfall lsy®r excessive rain, may close area boatingilmesior render boating
dangerous or inconvenient, thereby curtailing augtodemand for our products. In addition, unsedsgraool weather and
prolonged winter conditions may lead to a shorédlirgy season in certain locations. Hurricanes @her storms could result
in disruptions of our operations or damage to amatlinventories and facilities, as was the casanddiscal 2005 and 2006
when Florida and other markets were affected byeroos hurricanes. Although our geographic diveiisitikely to reduce
the overall impact to us of adverse weather camustin any one market area, these conditions wiltinue to represent
potential, material adverse risks to us and owré&financial performance.

The following table sets forth certain unauditedugerly financial data for each of our last eighaigers. The information
has been derived from unaudited financial statesnbatt we believe reflect all adjustments, consistinly of normal
recurring adjustments, necessary for the fair prtagion of such quarterly financial information.

The operating results for any quarter are not resgéyg indicative of the results to be expecteddoy future period.

December 31 March 31, June 30, September 3C December 31 March 31, June 30, September 3C

2004 2005 2005 2005 2005 2006 2006 2006
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share g

Revenue $ 184,18( $ 228,38 $ 306,14: $ 228,63: $ 181,18 $ 287,38° $ 421,34t $ 323,62
Cost of sale: 140,06¢ 173,36¢ 235,47t 163,93¢ 136,83t 218,81. 321,08¢ 230,04«
Gross profit 44,12« 55,01¢ 70,66¢ 64,69¢ 44,34¢ 68,57 100,25¢ 93,57¢
Selling, general, and administrative

expense: 37,14( 40,92 45,90: 46,01! 40,47: 50,08¢ 65,22¢ 67,017
Income from operation 6,98/ 14,09t 24,76% 18,68 3,87¢ 18,48 35,03( 26,561
Interest expens 2,38¢ 2,704 2,267 1,93¢ 2,761 4,294 5,90( 5,661
Income before income tax provisi 4,60( 11,39: 22,49¢ 16,751 1,11¢ 14,19: 29,13( 20,90
Income tax provisiol 1,771 4,38¢ 8,661 6,59 451 5,60¢ 11,60 8,29:
Net income $ 2,82¢ $ 7,006 $ 13,83t $ 10,15¢ $ 664 $ 858t $ 17,52! $ 12,607
Net income per shar

Diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.74 $ 054 $ 0.04 $ 0.4€ $ 0.9C $ 0.6€
Weighted average number of shai

Diluted 16,959,02 17,834,52 18,633,25 18,703,95 18,525,84 18,751,41 19,426,29 19,009,23

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash needs are primarily for working capitastipport operations, including new and used bodtelated parts
inventories, off-season liquidity, and growth thgbuacquisitions and new store openings. We regutadnitor the aging of
our inventories and current market trends to evaloar current and future inventory needs. We atsothis evaluation in
conjunction with our review of our current and exfeel operating performance and expected growtleterchine the
adequacy of our financing needs. These cash nesgshistorically been financed with cash gener&tad operations and
borrowings under our line of credit facility. Wercently depend upon dividends and other payments fsur consolidated
operating subsidiaries, and our line of
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credit facility to fund our current operations andet our cash needs. Currently, no agreementsteaistestrict this flow of
funds from our operating subsidiaries.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004 @d8, Zash used in operating activities was appratety $30.0 millior
and $13.8 million, respectively. For the fiscal yeaded September 30, 2006, cash provided by apgrattivities
approximated $9.3 million. For the fiscal year esh@eptember 30, 2004, cash used in operating @esivias due primarily
to an increase in inventories due to the additfomesv product lines, the continued expansion ot product lines, and to
ensure appropriate inventory levels, partially effisy net income, an increase in accounts payalddalthe timing of certain
payments to our manufacturers, and an increasesitoimer deposits. For the fiscal year ended Seme8®) 2005, cash used
in operating activities was due primarily to a é&se in accounts payable due to the timing of icepayments to our
manufacturers and an increase in inventories dtieetoontinued expansion of existing product liaed to ensure
appropriate inventory levels, partially offset bgtincome and an increase in customer depositsghEdiscal year ended
September 30, 2006, cash provided by operatingites was due primarily to net income, adjustedrfon-cash
depreciation, amortization, and stock based congimscharges, and increases in accounts payatllacmued expenses,
partially offset by an increase in accounts redaivaue to increased revenues, an increase intonies to ensure
appropriate inventory levels, and a decrease itomex deposits.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004,, 20062006, cash used in investing activities vgsaimately
$20.2 million, $17.9 million, and $95.4 million,ggectively. For the fiscal years ended Septembe2@M and 2006, cash
used in investing activities was primarily usedusiness acquisitions and to purchase propertyeqoighment associated
with opening new retail facilities or improving anelocating existing retail facilities. For theda year ended September 30,
2005 cash used in investing activities was prirgarded to purchase property and equipment assdaidte opening new
retail facilities or improving and relocating exigj retail facilities.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004,, 201062006, cash provided by financing activitiesepproximately
$54.7 million, $43.9 million, and $83.9 million,geectively. For the fiscal year ended Septembe2B04, cash provided by
financing activities was primarily attributablepooceeds from net borrowings on short-term borrgwias a result of
increased inventory levels and borrowings on largatdebt on equipment and real estate acquiredprangeds from
common shares issued upon the exercise of stodnspnd under the employee stock purchase platialpaoffset by
repayments of long-term debt. For the fiscal yeateel September 30, 2005, cash provided by finaragtigities was
primarily attributable to proceeds from common sisassued through the February 2005 public offeripgn the exercise of
stock options, and stock purchases under our eraplstock purchase plan, partially offset by neayepents on short-term
borrowings as a result of using the proceeds flmrigsuance of common shares through the Febr@&f ublic offering
and repayments of long-term debt. For the fiscal yaded September 30, 2006, cash provided bydingrmctivities was
primarily attributable to proceeds from net borrogs on short-term borrowings as a result of inadasventory levels and
borrowings on long-term debt on equipment and estdte acquired, and proceeds from common shatesdisipon the
exercise of stock options and under the employaek giurchase plan, partially offset by purchasesezfsury stock and
repayments of long-term debt.

As of September 30, 2006, our indebtedness totglpdoximately $358.7 million, of which approximat&i37.2 million
was associated with our real estate holdings a2d.$3nillion was associated with financing our intery and working
capital needs.

During June 2006, we entered into a second amesmtgtdestated credit and security agreement witht digancial
institutions. The credit facility provides us adinf credit with asset-based borrowing availabitityup to $500 million for
working capital and inventory financing, with th@aunt of permissible borrowings determined purstaiat borrowing base
formula. The credit facility also permits approveshdor floorplan borrowings of up to $20 milliorhd credit facility
accrues interest at LIBOR plus 150 to 260 basiatppivith the interest rate based upon the ratmuofnet outstanding
borrowings to our tangible net worth. The creddility is secured by our inventory, accounts reabie, equipment, furnitur
and fixtures. The credit facility requires us téisfg certain covenants, including maintaining eeege ratio tied to our
tangible net worth. The other terms and conditiminthe new credit facility are generally similartte previous credit facilit
The credit facility matures in
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May 2011, with two one-year renewal options remraniAs of September 30, 2006, we were in compliamitie all of the
credit facility covenants.

Prior to the June 2006 second amended and restateil and security agreement, our credit faciigs amended during
March 2006 and February 2006. The March 2006 amenttemporarily increased our asset-based borroawagability up
to $415 million through July 31, 2006. The Febru2@$6 amendment increased our asset-based borrewilgbility up to
$385 million, and extended the maturity of the dréatility to March 1, 2009, with two ongear renewal options. Prior to |
February 2006 amendment, our credit facility preddis with asset-based borrowing availability ota$340 million,
permitted up to $20 million in approved-vendor flplan borrowings, accrued interest at a rate of@MBplus 150 to
260 basis points, and was scheduled to mature neiV2008, with two one-year renewal options renmagjniThe other terms
and conditions of the credit facility were gengralimilar to the new credit facility.

During the fiscal years ended September 30, 200@5,2and 2006, we completed the acquisition of fixaine retail
operations. We acquired the net assets, relatgmbpyg and buildings and assumed or retired celi@ilities, including the
outstanding floorplan obligations related to nevatiaventories, for approximately $62.8 milliondash, including
acquisition costs and 665,024 shares of commork stlaed at $33.71 per share.

Except as specified in this “Management’s Discussiod Analysis of Financial Condition, and Resaft®©perations”
and in our consolidated financial statements, wes e material commitments for capital for the nEXtmonths. We believe
that our existing capital resources will be suéfittito finance our operations for at least the A@xnonths, except for
possible significant acquisitions.

Contractual Commitments and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of our eniai contractual obligations and commercial cormeitts as of
September 30, 2006:

Line of Long-Term Operating
Year Ending September 3( Credit Debt Leases Total
(Amounts in thousands)

2007 $321,50( $ 4,53 $10,36: $336,39:
2008 — 4,62¢ 8,30( 12,92¢
2009 — 4,72( 4,60 9,32:
2010 — 4,82¢ 3,532 8,35¢
2011 — 4,18¢ 2,42¢ 6,611
Thereafte — 14,29" 542 14,83¢
Total $321,50( $ 37,18¢ $29,76!  $388,45:

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

At September 30, 2006, approximately 98.0% of durts and longierm debt bore interest at variable rates, genetial
to a reference rate such as the LIBOR rate or tinegprate of interest of certain banks. Changeéstarest rates on loans frc
these financial institutions could affect our eags as a result of interest rates charged on nartalerlying obligations that
are variable. At September 30, 2006, a hypothetid@lbasis point increase in interest rates orvauable rate obligations
would have resulted in an increase of approxima8lp million in annual pre-tax interest expengdeisestimated increase is
based upon the outstanding balances of all of atiable rate obligations and assumes no mitigatiranges by us to reduce
the outstanding balances or additional interess@sse that would be received from vendors dubddypothetical interest
rate increase.

Products purchased from the Italy-based Ferretiu@and Azimut are subject to fluctuations in thedsto U.S. dollar
exchange rate, which ultimately may impact theilrptéice at which we can sell such products. Assuit, fluctuations in the
value of the Euro as compared with the U.S. daollay impact the price points at which we can sedfitably Ferretti Group
and Azimut products, and such price points maybeotompetitive with other product lines in the @ditStates. Accordingl
such fluctuations in exchange rates ultimately ingyact the
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amount of revenue, cost of goods sold, cash fland,earnings we recognize for the Ferretti GroupAzimut product lines
We also could incur losses from hedging transastiaesigned to reduce our risk to fluctuations ichexge rates. We cannot
predict the effects of exchange rate fluctuationsusrency rate hedges on our operating resultstefbre, in certain cases,
we have entered into foreign currency cash flonglesdo reduce the variability of cash flows asdediavith forecasted
purchases of boats and yachts from Ferretti Gragmf September 30, 2006, these outstanding cdsthawe a combined
notional amount of approximately $10.4 million andture at various times through December 2006.f/Aeptember 30,
2006 these outstanding contracts had unrealized gdiapproximately $571,000, which were recordedther current assets
on the condensed consolidated balance sheet witlbxdmately $453,000, net of tax, recorded in acelated other
comprehensive income. The forecasted purchasesetile in Euro dollars. We cannot assure thastrategies will
adequately protect our operating results from ffects of exchange rate fluctuations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Reference is made to the financial statementsyakes thereto, and the report thereon, commencingage F-1 of this
report, which financial statement, notes, and rea incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

We have evaluated, with the participation of oure€Executive Officer (CEQO) and Chief Financial ©&r (CFO), the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesias of September 30, 2006. Based on this gi@iuaur CEO and CF
have each concluded that our disclosure contralancedures are effective to ensure that we repoodess, summarize,
and report information required to be disclosedibyn our reports filed under the Securities ExgieaAct within the time
periods specified by the Securities and Exchanger@igsion’s rules and forms. During the fiscal yeavered by this report,
there have not been any changes in our internatalsrover financial reporting that have materiaffected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting. Subsequent to the datineifr evaluation, there have
not been any significant changes in our internatras or in other facts that could significantifegt these controls,
including any corrective action with regard to sfigant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

During January 2006, we acquired substantiallpfihe assets, including certain real estate, asdraed certain
liabilities of Port Arrowhead. During March 2006ewacquired substantially all of the assets andnasdicertain liabilities of
Surfside. As permitted by Securities and Exchangea@ission guidance, the scope of our Section 4@uation for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 does notdache internal controls over financial reportirighe acquired operations
of Port Arrowhead or Surfside. Port Arrowhead and€SSde are included in our consolidated finanstatements from the
date of acquisition. Port Arrowhead and Surfsigeesented approximately $201.8 million and $16.Toni of total assets
and net assets, respectively, as of Septembei0886, &hd approximately $192.3 million and $900,0Df:wenues and net
income, respectively, for the year then ended. Ritmmacquisition date to September 30, 2006, thegsses and systems of
the acquired operations were discrete and didigotficantly impact internal controls over finantraporting for our other
consolidated subsidiaries.

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaiimg adequate internal control over financiga®ing, as such
term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Securiteghange Act of 1934. Under the supervision artt thie participation of
the Company’s management, including its princip&loaitive officer and principal financial officehé Company conducted
an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Compaimgérnal control over financial reporting as op&mber 30, 2005 as
required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934eRi8a-15(c). In making this assessment, the Compseg the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe
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Treadway Commission (COSO) limternal Control — Integrated FrameworRased on its evaluation, management
concluded that its internal control over financgporting was effective as of September 30, 2006.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness @dhgany’s internal control over financial repogtias of
September 30, 2006 has been audited by Ernst & ¢y buP, an independent registered public accourfting, as stated in
their report which appears below.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodbd accompanying ManagemenReport on Internal Control ov
Financial Reporting, that MarineMax, Inc. maintalreffective internal control over financial repadias of September 30,
2006, based on criteria established in Internalt@br— Integrated Framework issued by the Committe8ponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the C@8@ria). MarineMax, Inc.’s management is respbiesfor
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effecidss of internal control
over financial reporting. Our responsibility isg¢rpress an opinion on management’s assessmenhariréon on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal controlrdirgancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q@nited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatiwether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an understandi
of internal control over financial reporting, evaling management’s assessment, testing and evejuheé design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, andgrening such other procedures as we considereessacy in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit providessagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesssuregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s intecoatrol over financial reporting includes thosdipies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thakasonable detail, accurately and fairly i@ftbe transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)ideweasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in adaace with generally accepted accounting princj@asd that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediagasrevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures meteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’'s Rempointernal Control over Financial Reporting, mgement’s
assessment of and conclusion on the effectiverféateonal control over financial reporting did riatlude the internal
controls of the Port Arrowhead Group or Surfsidegkina, Inc., which are included in the 2006 coigaiked financial
statements of MarineMax, Inc. and constituted axprately $201.8 million and $16.7 million of to@m$sets and net assets,
respectively, as of September 30, 2006 and appeiei;n$192.3 million and $900,000 of revenues agtdmcome,
respectively, for the year then ended. Our audibteinal control over financial reporting of MagiMax, Inc. also did not
include an evaluation of the internal control ofieancial reporting of the Port Arrowhead Group &hafside-3 Marina, Inc.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that MdameInc. maintained effective internal control o¥i@ancial
reporting as of September 30, 2006, is fairly staie all material respects, based on the COS@rait
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Also, in our opinion, MarineMax, Inc. maintained,all material respects, effective internal contreér financial reporting ¢
of September 30, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited
States), the consolidated balance sheets of MaameMc. as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, ancetated consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive incomekfsttders’ equity, and cash flows for each of teé¢ years in the period
ended September 30, 2006 of MarineMax, Inc. andeport dated December 14, 2006 expressed an ufiegi@pinion
thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Tampa, Florida
December 14, 2006

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART 1lI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registra

The information required by this Item relating tar @irectors is incorporated herein by referenciéodefinitive Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14#efExchange Act for our 2007 Annual Meeting aickholders. The
information required by this Item relating to oweeutive officers included in “Business — Executiicers.”

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item is incorp@étherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stegnt to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofiar 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this Item is incorp@ctherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stegnt to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofiar 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is incorp@étherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stegnt to be filed
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofar 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servici

The information required by this Item is incorp@dtherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stegnt to be filled
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Actofiar 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Scheths

(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Inde€dmsolidated Financial Statements on page F-Aisimended report.

(2) No financial statement schedules are includsgzhbse such schedules are not applicable, areaquated, or because
required information is included in the consolidafmancial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number Exhibit
31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Reagist, including all amendments to date

3.2
33
4.1
4.2

10.1(K)

10.1()

10.3(h)

10.3(i)

10.3())

10.4

105

10.11

10.12

10.17

10.17(a)

10.18
10.19

10.20

10.20(a)

10.20(b]

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registral

Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiating Preferred Stock(:

Specimen of Common Stock Certificate

Rights Agreement, dated August 28, 2001 betweersRagt and American Stock Transfer & Trust Compant
Rights Agent(2]

Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant, PartvAead Marina, Inc., Lake Port Marina, Inc., Port
Arrowhead, Inc., and Lakewood Resort Corporatio

Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant arfisidk-3 Marina, Inc.(11

Employment Agreement dated June 7, 2006 betweerstRag and William H. McGill, Jr.(12

Employment Agreement dated June 7, 2006 betweerstRag and Michael H. McLamb(1.

Employment Agreement dated June 7, 2006 betweerstRag and Edward A. Russell(1

1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Nbeerib, 2000(4

1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plai

Dealer Agreement dated December 7, 2005 betweeBdhdray Division of Brunswick Corporation and
MarineMax, Inc.(6]

Agreement Relating to Acquisitions dated Decembh@0D5 between the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick
Corporation and the Principal Operating SubsidgaofMarineMax, Inc.(6

Credit and Security Agreement dated as of Decerb®eP001 among the Registrant and its subsidiaaies,
Borrowers, and Banc of America Specialty Finanne, &nd various other lenders, as Lendel

Amendment No. 2 to Credit and Security Agreemetedidanuary 30, 2004 among the Registrant and its
subsidiaries as Borrowers, Keybank National AsgmriaN.A., Bank of America, N.A., and various othe
lenders, as Lenders (

Hatteras Sales and Service Agreement, dated J2QOB among the Registrant, MarineMax Motor Yachts3,
and Hatteras Yachts Division of Brunswick Corpara(b)

Dealer Agreement, effective September 30, 2003 gntiom Registrant, Ferretti Group USA, Inc., andtien
Yacht, Inc.(7)

Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreemerduted on February 15, 2005 effective as of Fabr8,
2005 among the Registrant and its subsidiarieBpamwers, Keybank National Association and Bank of
America, N.A., and various other lenders as Ler(8¢

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated CrediSandrity Agreement dated February 10, 2006 amaag th
Registrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, KaktNational Association, Bank of America, N.A.dararious
other lenders, as Lenders(’

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated CrediSaudrity Agreement dated March 10, 2006 among the
Registrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, akiNational Association, Bank of America, N.A.dararious
other lenders, as Lenders(’
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit

10.20(c; Amendment No. 4 to Amended and Restated CrediSandrity Agreement dated March 31, 2006 among the

10.21

21

231
311
31.2
321

32.2

Registrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, KakiNational Association, Bank of America, N.A.dararious
other lenders, as Lenders(’

Second Amended and Restated Credit and Securityetggnt dated June 19, 2006 among the Registraiitsand
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and Bank of Americéd.NKeyBank, N.A., General Electric Commercial
Distribution Finance Corporation, Wachovia BankAN Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., National City Bank, N,A
U.S. Bank, N.A., and Branch Banking and Trust Conypas Lenders(1:

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of Ernst & Young LL

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen

Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, dgpded pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof
2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarks+@ct
of 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterae Form £-1 (Registratior33:-47873).
(2) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report dated September 30, 1998, as filed on Oc&{hel 998

(3) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’'s Form 1fa#the year ended September 30, 2001, as filddemember 20,
2001.

(4) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 288Tiled on
February 14, 200:

(5) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 2883iled on
February 17, 200¢

(6) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report as filed on December 9, 20

(7) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’'s Form 1f®Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 2864iled on
February 9, 200t

(8) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report dated February 15, 2005, as filed on Febrii@y 2005

(9) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 2885iled on
February 9, 200¢

(10) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form ¢-K Report dated February 10, 2006, as filed on Febru@y 2006

(11) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1fo1Qhe quarterly period ended March 31, 2006jled on
May 10, 2006

(12) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report as filed on June 13, 20!

(13) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1fo1Qhe quarterly period ended June 30, 2006iled 6n
August 4, 2006

(c) Financial Statement Schedule

(1) See Item 15(a) above.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the SegrExchange Act of 1934, the registrant has dalysed this report
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmly authorized.

M ARINEMAX , INC .

/sl WiLLiaAm H. McGILL JR.

William H. McGill Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date: December 14, 2006

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Actd®41 the following persons on behalf of the registrand in the
capacities and on the date indicated have signedeport below.

Signature Capacity Date
/sl WILLIAM H. MCGILL JR. Chairman of the Board, President, and Chief December 14, 2006
William H. McGill Jr. ~ Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/ MICHAEL H. MCLAMB Executive Vice President, Chief Financial December 14, 2006
Michael H. McLamb Officer, Secretary, and Director

(Principal Accounting and
Financial Officer)

/s/ ROBERT D. BASHAM Director December 14, 2006
Robert D. Bashar

/s/ HILLIARD M. EURE Il Director December 14, 2006
Hilliard M. Eure Il
/s/ JOHN B. FURMAN Director December 14, 2006

John B. Furmau

/s/ ROBERT S. KANT Director December 14, 2006
Robert S. Kan

/s/ JOSEPH A. WATTER® Director December 14, 2006
Joseph A. Wattet

/sl DEAN S. WOODMAN Director December 14, 2006
Dean S. Woodma
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
MarineMax, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries &eptember 30,
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statsméoperations, comprehensive income, stockhgl@éguity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeeh8eptember 30, 2006. These financial statememntha responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility exjgress an opinion on these financial statemerstsdoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigham8aUnited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit mcludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. Antalsb includes assessing the accounting pringipted and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evalub@mgyerall financial statement presentation. \Bkekie that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial
position of MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries att8eaypber 30, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidatedisesitheir operations
and their cash flows for each of the three yeathamperiod ended September 30, 2006 in conforwiity U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the staads the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited
States), the effectiveness of MarineMax, Inc.’&iinal control over financial reporting as of Septem30, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrafgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgafizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated Decemhe206 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated findrst&ements, as of October 1, 2005, the Compaapgtad the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accountingr8i@rds No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Tampa, Florida
December 14, 2006
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share g

September 3C September 3C

2005 2006
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 2727 $ 2511
Accounts receivable, n 26,23t 57,58¢
Inventories, ne 317,70! 462,84
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 6,93¢ 8,44t
Deferred tax asse 4,95¢ 4,48¢
Total current asse 383,10: 558,48
Property and equipment, r 99,99 122,21!
Goodwill and other intangible assets, 56,18« 116,19!
Other lon¢-term asset 211 4,67:
Total asset $ 539,49( $ 801,56:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 18,14¢ $ 37,39¢
Customer deposi 25,79 17,17(
Accrued expense 21,09¢ 26,78
Shor-term borrowings 150,00( 321,50(
Current maturities of lor-term debt 4,63¢ 4,532
Total current liabilities 219,67( 407,38:
Deferred tax liabilities 10,77: 11,63¢
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 25,45( 32,65¢
Total liabilities 255,89: 451,67¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 1,000,000 starderized, none issued or outstanding at
September 30, 2005 and 2C — —
Common stock, $.001 par value; 24,000,000 sharteazed, 17,678,087 and
18,529,524 shares issued and outstanding at Segte88b2005 and 2006, respectiv 18 19
Additional paic-in capital 125,67. 156,61¢
Retained earning 160,92 200,30¢
Deferred stock compensati (2,399 —
Accumulated other comprehensive inca — 507
Treasury stock, at cost, 30,000 and 336,300 slneldsat September 30, 2005 and 2006,
respectively (61€) (7,569
Total stockholder' equity 283,59¢ 349,88
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 539,49( $ 801,56:

See accompanying notes.

F-3




Table of Contents

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share &g

For the Year Ended September 30,

2004 2005 2006
Revenue $ 762,00¢ $ 947,34 $ 1,213,54.
Cost of sale: 573,61t 712,84 906,78:
Gross profit 188,39: 234,50: 306,76(
Selling, general, and administrative exper 139,47( 169,97! 222,80¢
Income from operation 48,92¢ 64,52¢ 83,95¢
Interest expens 6,49¢ 9,291 18,61¢
Income before income tax provisi 42,424 55,23¢ 65,33¢
Income tax provisiol 16,12¢ 21,41: 25,95¢
Net income $  26,29¢ $  33,82¢ $ 39,380
Basic net income per common sh $ 1.6¢ $ 2.01 $ 2.1¢
Diluted net income per common shi $ 1.5¢ $ 1.8¢ $ 2.0¢
Weighted average number of common shares usedriputing net
income per common shail
Basic 15,585,31 16,815,44 18,028,56
Diluted 16,666,10 18,032,53 18,928,73

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income
Other comprehensive incorr

(Amounts in thousands)

Change in fair market value of interest rate svnegb,of tax of $3¢
Change in fair market value of foreign currencydes] net of tax of $2¢€

Comprehensive incorr

See accompanying notes.
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For the Year Ended September 30,
2004 2005 2006

$26,29¢  $33,82¢  $39,38:

_ — 54
— — 452

$26,29¢  $33,82¢  $39,88¢
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

BALANCE, September 30, 20(
Net income

Purchase of treasury sto
Issuance of treasury sto

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Amounts in thousands except share data)

Accumulated

Shares issued under employee stock purcl

plan

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Stock-based compensatic
Tax benefits of options exercis

BALANCE, September 30, 20(
Net income

Shares issued under employee stock purcl

plan

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Shares issued through public offer
Stocl-based compensatic

Amortization of deferred stock compensat — — — —

Tax benefits of options exercis
BALANCE, September 30, 20(

Net income
Purchase of treasury sto

Reclassification resulting from adoption of

SFAS 123F

Shares issued under employee stock purcl

plan

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Stock-based compensatic
Shares issued upon business acquis
Tax benefits of options exercis

Change in fair market value of derivative

instruments, net of ta
BALANCE, September 30, 20(

Additional Deferred Total
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Stock Comprehensive Treasury Stockholder¢

Shares Amount _ Capital Earnings Compensatior Income Stock Equity
15,401,68 $ 15 $ 65,23 $100,80¢ $ — $ —$ — $ 166,05t
— — —  26,29¢ — — — 26,29¢
(32,000 — — — — — (679 (67¢)
2,000 — — (6) — — 60 54
64,42¢ — 63€ — — — — 63€
271,33t 1 2,96/ — — — — 2,96¢
3,55¢ — 80 — — — — 80
— — 1,41(C — — — — 1,41(C
15,711,01 16 70,32t 127,09¢ — — (61€) 196,82:
- — —  33,82¢ — — — 33,82¢
51,72, — 1,01¢ — — — — 1,01¢
379,56 — 4,26¢ — — — — 4,26¢
1,429,001 2 44,20 — — — — 44,20:
106,78. —  3,13: — (3,027) — — 10t
63C — — 63C
— — 2,72¢ — — — — 2,72¢
17,678,08 18 125,67. 160,92 (2,399 — (61€)  283,59¢
- — — 39,38 — — — 39,38
(306,300 — — — — — (6,949 (6,945
— —  (2,39) — 2,397 — — —
59,19 — 1,28: — — — — 1,28:
253,35¢ — 2,581 — — — — 2,581
180,16 — 5,567 — — — — 5,567
665,02- 1 22417 — — — — 22,41¢
—  — 149 — — — — 1,49t
- — — — — 507 — 507
18,529,52 $ 19 $156,61¢ $200,30¢ $ — 3 507 $(7,569) $ 349,88

See accompanying notes.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashduis) provided by operating

activities:

Depreciation and amortizatic

Deferred income tax provisic

Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipn

Stocl-based compensation expel

Tax benefits of options exercis

Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic
(Increase) decrease—

Accounts receivable, n

Inventories, ne

Prepaid expenses and other as
Increase (decrease)—

Accounts payabl

Customer deposi

Accrued expense

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipm
Net cash invested in joint ventL
Net cash used in acquisitions of businesses, setasand intangible ass:
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Net cash used in investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings of lon-term debt
Repayments of lor-term debt
Net borrowings (repayments) on st-term borrowings
Purchases of treasury stc
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock thrquutic offering
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock und#ropnd employee purchase

plans
Net cash provided by financing activiti

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio
Supplemental Disclosures of N-Cash Financing Activities

Long-term debt assumed for property and equipment pees
Supplemental Disclosure of N-Cash Investing Activities

Common stock issued in connection with businessiaitipn

See accompanying notes.
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For the Year Ended September 30,

2004 2005 2006
$ 26,29¢ $33,82¢ $39,38:
5,27% 6,11¢ 8,607

18C 36 1,33¢

1 (136€) (42)

80 73t 5,567

1,41( 2,72¢ 1,49t

— — (1,127
(3,220 (1,25¢ (21,38
(110,369 (31,149 (25,339
(1,640 (65¢) (1,419
43.43¢ (37,720  20,19¢
5,98¢ 9,87¢ (21,989
2,60¢ 3,471 4,104
(29,95) (13,799 9,40
(10,179 (17,79 (10,169
— (4,007

(10,237 (650) (81,369
23t 571 10t
(20,17) (17,879 (95,43
3,20( 3,271 12,24(
(2,426 (3,467) (5,140
50,93¢ (5,429  78,72¢
(67€) — (6,945

— 44.20: —

— — 1,127

3,65¢ 5,28¢ 3,86¢
54,69( 43 ,86¢ 83,87¢
4,56¢ 12,19t (2,15¢)
10,50¢ 15,07¢ 27,27:

$ 1507¢ $27.27. $25,11
$ 312 $ 404 $ —
$ — 8 —  $2241¢
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

We were incorporated in Delaware in January 199Baaa the largest recreational boat retailer in the
United States. We engage primarily in the retd#é darokerage, and service of new and used boatsre trailers,
marine parts, and accessories and offer slip ardgt accommodations in certain locations. In &ditve arrange
related boat financing, insurance, and extendedcgecontracts. As of September 30, 2006, we opdritrough 87
retail locations in 22 states, consisting of Alalarizona, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Dredaie, Florida,
Georgia, Maryland, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, Neersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, OklahoiRhpde
Island, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Utah.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Ragt@oWhaler, Meridian, and Hatteras Yachts, alwbich are
manufactured by Brunswick Corporation (Brunswidkk world’s largest manufacturer of marine produStdes of
new Brunswick boats accounted for approximately 56086, and 59% of our revenue in fiscal 2004, 2@,
2006, respectively. We believe we represented appadely 10%, 10%, and 13% of all Brunswick marpreduct
sales during fiscal 2004, 2005, and 2006, respelgtiv

We have dealership agreements with Sea Ray, B¥8taler, Meridian, Hatteras Yachts, Mercury Mariard
Baja Marine Corporation, all subsidiaries or dieigs of Brunswick. We also have dealer agreemeritsarretti
Group, Bertram and Azimut. These agreements al®¥o ypurchase, stock, sell, and service these raatwiérs’
boats and products. These agreements also alltovuse these manufacturers’ names, trade symbmls, a
intellectual properties in our operations.

Each of our operating dealership subsidiariesdhaty the Sea Ray product line is party to a mydtr dealer
agreement with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prodantkis the exclusive dealer of Sea Ray boats ieitgraphic
markets. Our subsidiary, MarineMax Motor Yachts(,lis a party to a dealer agreement with Hattel@sh¥. The
agreement gives us the right to sell Hatteras Ysattitbughout the state of Florida (excluding theriela Panhandle)
and the state of Texas, as well as the U.S. digiaib rights for Hatteras products over 82 feetr Subsidiary,
MarineMax International, LLC, is a party to a dealgreement with Ferretti Group and Bertram Yachie
agreement appoints us as the exclusive dealerivefi Yachts, Pershing, Riva, Apreamare, and M@chft mega-
yachts, yachts and other recreational boats foUttited States, Canada, and the Bahamas. The agme¢eafac
appoints us as the exclusive dealer for Bertratherinited States (excluding the Florida peninsuld certain
portions of New England), Canada, and the Bahamas.

Upon the completion of the Surfside-3 acquisitior,became the exclusive dealer for Azimut-Benettiup’s
product lines Azimut and Atlantis. The Azimut deadgreement provides a geographic territory to mienthe
product line and to network with the appropriaiertiele through various independent locations daedép for
Azimut retail sales.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with manutaers, other than the Sea Ray division of Brunkwimder
renewable annual dealer agreements, each of whiek gs the right to sell various makes and moadetmoats
within a given geographic region. Any change omt@ation of these agreements for any reason, imguchanges
in competitive, regulatory, or marketing practicesjuding rebate or incentive programs, could asely affect our
results of operations. Although there are a limitadhber of manufacturers of the type of boats andyxcts that we
sell, we believe that adequate alternative sousmesd be available to replace any manufacturerratien
Brunswick as a product source. These alternatiueces may not be available at the time of any inf#ion, and
alternative products may not be available at coaigarterms, which could affect operating resultgeaskly.
Additionally, a change in suppliers could causess lof revenue, which would affect operating rassadiversely.

The consolidated financial statements include eapants and the accounts of our subsidiaries f alhich are
wholly owned. All significant intercompany transiacis and accounts have been eliminated.
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2. ACQUISITIONS:

We commenced operations with the acquisition af fndependent recreational boat dealers on MartB98. Since the
initial acquisitions, we have acquired 20 recraaidoat dealers, two boat brokerage operatiortstvaa full-service yacht
repair facilities. As a part of our acquisitionaggy, we frequently engage in discussions witiouarrecreational boat
dealers regarding their potential acquisition byRmtential acquisition discussions frequently taleee over a long period of
time and involve difficult business integration asttier issues, including, in some cases, managesuenéssion and related
matters. As a result of these and other factonsinaber of potential acquisitions that from timeitoe appear likely to occur
do not result in binding legal agreements and ateonsummated. The following describes the actjpiis we completed
during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2068428086. No significant acquisitions were complededng the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2005.

During October 2003, we acquired substantiallpfthe assets and assumed certain liabilities adifiira International,
Inc. and Steven Myers, Inc. (Emarine), a privatedid boat dealership located in Fort Lauderdaleridi, for approximately
$305,000 in cash. The acquisition resulted in doagnition of approximately $300,000 in tax dedaletigoodwill, including
acquisition costs. The acquisition provided us aithestablished retail location to sell the nevifgred Ferretti Group
products in the southeast Florida boating commuiiitye asset purchase agreement contained an dgprogision based on
the future profits of the location, assuming cert@inditions and provisions were met. In August4£0Be earn out provisio
were modified withdrawing the requirements for &umyire earn out payments. Emarine has been inclirdedr consolidated
financial statements since the date of acquisition.

During June 2004, we acquired substantially athefassets, including real estate, and assumeaircéatbilities of
Imperial Marine (Imperial), a privately held boatadership with locations in Baltimore and the nerthChesapeake area of
Maryland, for approximately $9.3 million in cashciuding acquisition costs. Imperial operates dWwiay location and a
marina on the Gunpowder River. The acquisition exea our ability to serve consumers in the Mid-Atila United States
boating community. Additionally, the acquisitioncaled us to capitalize on Imperial’s market positand leverage our
inventory management and inventory financing resesiover the acquired locations. The acquisitisalted in the
recognition of approximately $1.1 million in taxdiectible goodwill, including acquisition costs, amgproximately $580,0C
in tax deductible indefinite-lived intangible assédealer agreements). Imperial has been includedr consolidated
financial statements since the date of acquisition.

During June 2004, we purchased inventory, certginpenent and assumed certain liabilities from trevipus
Jacksonville, Florida-based Sea Ray dealer (Jagkb®rfor the sport boat and sport cruiser prodires for approximately
$900,000 in cash, including acquisition costs. phehase enhanced our ability to serve custometeinortheast Florida
boating community by adding the sport boat andtsproiiser product lines to our existing Sea Raydpa offerings. The
acquisition resulted in the recognition of approately $240,000 in tax deductible goodwill, inclugiacquisition costs, and
approximately $450,000 in tax deductible indefidited intangible assets (dealer agreements). dawilte has been
included in our consolidated financial statemeisesthe date of acquisition.

During January 2006, we acquired substantiallp@tihe assets, including certain real estate, asdraed certain
liabilities of the Port Arrowhead Group (Port Arrbaad), a privately held boat dealership with lawaiin Missouri and
Oklahoma, for approximately $27.5 million in caphys $5.0 million in working capital adjustmentsliding acquisition
costs. Port Arrowhead operates six retail locatiomduding a large marina with more than 300 sliise acquisition expan
our ability to serve consumers in the Midwest bzatommunity, including neighboring boating dediimas in Illinois,
Kansas, and Arkansas. The acquisition also all@te @apitalize on Port Arrowhead’s market positiol leverage our
inventory management and inventory financing resesiover the acquired locations. Based on oumpirgdiry valuation, the
purchase price, including acquisition costs, iscgmated to result in the recognition of approxietai$6.1 million in tax
deductible goodwill and approximately
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$2.0 million in tax deductible indefinite-lived emgible assets (dealer agreements). We are inrtlcess of finalizing the
purchase price allocation and determining thevfaiue of acquired intangible assets; accordingdytain purchase price
allocations are subject to change. Port Arrowheeglifeen included in our consolidated financiakstants since the date of
acquisition.

Pro forma results of operations have not been ptedewith respect to any of the above acquisitiasshe effects of
those acquisitions were not significant on eithemalividual or an aggregate basis in the relatzflisition year.

During March 2006, we acquired substantially altref assets and assumed certain liabilities ofs&l&+3 Marina, Inc.
(Surfside), a privately held boat dealership withelocations in New York and Connecticut, for eppgmately $24.8 millioi
in cash and 665,024 shares of common stock, pld®3$gillion in working capital adjustments includiacquisition costs.
The shares were valued at $33.71 per share, wrasttlve average closing market price of our comnmekdor the five day-
period beginning two days prior to and ending taggisubsequent to the acquisition date. Basedeoprtvisions of the
asset purchase agreement, 100,000 shares of costauknare currently held in escrow, subject togtisfaction of working
capital adjustments and other provisions in theuesitipn documents. We and Surfside are in curdésdussions to resolve
such matters. The acquisition expands our abilityerve consumers in the Northeast boating comsani allows us to
capitalize on Surfside’s market position and legeraur inventory management and inventory financasgurces over the
acquired locations. Based on our preliminary vaduatthe purchase price, including acquisition spist anticipated to result
in the recognition of approximately $37.0 milliantax deductible goodwill and approximately $14.ifliom in tax deductibls
indefinite-lived intangible assets (dealer agreeisjeiVe are in the process of finalizing the pusehprice allocation and
determining the fair value of acquired intangibdsets and determining the ultimate resolution afoe matters related to
purchase price adjustments with the owners of &l&faccordingly, certain purchase price allocatiare subject to change.
Surfside has been included in our consolidatechfiiz statements since the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asdumthe acquisitions
of Port Arrowhead and Surfside during 2006 (amoiumtlousands):

Receivable: $ 9,96¢
Inventories 119,80
Other current asse 392
Property and equipme 20,38:
Goodwill 43,07
Other identifiable intangible ass¢ 16,81¢

Total assets acquire $ 210,44:
Short term borrowing $ (92,770
Other current liabilitie (14,009

Total current liabilities assume (106,779

Net assets acquire $ 103,66

F-10




Table of Contents

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)
The following unaudited pro forma financial infortizan presents the combined results of operatiomotompany with

the operations of Surfside as if the acquisitiod becurred as of the beginning of fiscal 2005 ad@&2(amounts in
thousands, except per share data):

For the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30

2005 2006
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenue $1,095,41! $1,264,85.
Net income $ 36,45¢ $ 37,67¢
Net income per common she
Basic $ 2.0¢ $ 2.08
Dilutive $ 1.9t $ 1.9¢

This unaudited pro forma financial information i®gented for informational purposes only. The uitaddgro forma
financial information includes an adjustment toarekincome taxes as if Surfside were taxed as arfocation, interest for
cash paid to acquire the business and depreciatidramortization as if we acquired them from thgifo@ing of the periods
presented until its acquisition date. The unaudi@dforma financial information does not includfustments to remove
certain private company expenses, which may natdered in future periods. Similarly, the unaudifgo forma financial
information from the beginning of the periods prasd until Surfside’s acquisition date does notluide adjustments for
additional expenses, such as rent, insurance &ed expenses that would have been incurred subsetjuihe acquisition
date. The unaudited pro forma financial informatioay not necessarily reflect our future resulteérations or what the
results of operations would have been had we ownedoperated Surfside as of the beginning of thiege presented.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the consolidated statements offtash, we consider all highly liquid investment#twan original
maturity of three months or less to be cash egental

We made interest payments of approximately $6.5anjl$9.0 million, and $17.2 million for the fiscgears ended
September 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectiveliyding interest on debt to finance our real estaidings and new boat
inventory. We made income tax payments of approtéin&16.2 million, $15.3 million, and $8.9 millidor the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006, resplgctiv

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our weadn accordance with Emerging Issues Task Faseel
No. 0z-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a Resglfer Certain Consideration Received from a VefidBiTF
02-16). EITF 02-16 most significantly requires aslassify interest assistance received from mantuifars as a reduction of
inventory cost and related cost of sales as oppisedtting the assistance against our interestresgoincurred with our
lenders. Pursuant to EITF 02-16, amounts receiyaashunder our co-op assistance programs from amufacturers, are
netted against related advertising expenses.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aegthie inventory, net of vendor consideration anctipase discounts,
the cost of equipment added, reconditioning castd,transportation costs relating to acquiring imoey for sale. New and
used boat, motor, and trailer inventories are dtatehe lower of cost, determined on a spedifasitification basis, or mark
Parts and accessories are stated at the lowestfdsiermined on the first-in, first-out basispmarket. Based on the agings
of the inventories and our consideration of curraatket
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trends, we maintain a lower of cost or market viiuaallowance, which was not material to the cdidsded financial
statements taken as a whole as of September 38,2@®D06.

Property and Equipment

We record property and equipment at cost, net cfimclated depreciation, and depreciate over tistimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. We capitalipel amortize leasehold improvements over theleddbe life of the lease
or the estimated useful life of the asset. Usefals for purposes of computing depreciation arfobews:

Years
Buildings and improvemen 5-40
Machinery and equipme 3-10
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Vehicles 35

We remove the cost of property and equipment sotétired and the related accumulated deprecidtan the accounts
at the time of disposition, and include any resgltjain or loss in the consolidated statementgefaiions. We charge
maintenance, repairs, and minor replacements tabpes as incurred; we capitalize and amortizeomgplacements and
improvements over their useful lives.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We account for goodwill and identifiable intangilalesets in accordance with Statement of Finanaebénting
Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations” (SFAB),1dnd Statement of Financial Accounting Standatuols142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsSFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires that all business gmatibns initiated after June =
2001 be accounted for using the purchase methadawfunting and identifiable intangible assets aeguin a business
combination be recognized as assets and reponpedately from goodwill. We have determined that mast significant
acquired identifiable intangible assets are thdedegreements, which are indefinite-lived intamhgigdssets. SFAS 142
requires that goodwill and indefinite-lived intablgi assets no longer be amortized, but insteadddst impairment at least
annually and whenever events or changes in ciramiss indicate that the carrying value may notebewverable. If the
carrying amount of goodwill or an identifiable intzible asset exceeds its fair value, we would reizegan impairment loss.
We measure any potential impairment based on vahosiness valuation methodologies, including gepted discounted
cash flow method. We completed the annual impaitrtest during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006sd@ on financial
information as of the third quarter of fiscal 2006ich resulted in no impairment of goodwill or idiiable intangible asset
To date, we have not recognized any impairmenbofiwill or identifiable intangible assets in thephpation of SFAS 142.

There was no goodwill amortization expense forftbeal years ended September 30, 2004, 2005, ab@l 2Z&cumulated
amortization of goodwill was approximately $2.6 lioih at September 30, 2005 and 2006.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1Adcounting for Impairment or Disposal of Longveid
Assets” (SFAS 144), requires that long-lived assmitsh as property and equipment and purchaseatpibtas subject to
amortization, be reviewed for impairment whenewarts or changes in circumstances indicate thatahging amount of ¢
asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability oh#set is measured by comparison of its carryinguaimto undiscounted
future net cash flows the asset is expected torgemdf such assets are considered to be impdahedmpairment to be
recognized is measured as the amount by whichatrgicg amount of the asset exceeds its fair markkete. Estimates of
expected future cash flows represent managemesstsastimate based on currently available inforonagind reasonable and
supportable assumptions.

F-12




Table of Contents

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Any impairment recognized in accordance with SFA8 ik permanent and may not be restored. To datdawe not
recognized any impairment of long-lived assetsonnection with SFAS 144.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits primarily include amounts reakivem customers toward the purchase of boats.abegnize these
deposits as revenue upon delivery or acceptantteeatlated boats to customers.

Insurance

We retain varying levels of risk relating to theimance policies we maintain, most significantlykess’ compensation
insurance and employee medical benefits. We appnsible for the claims and losses incurred urliesd programs, limited
by per occurrence deductibles and paid claimsssds up to pre-determined maximum exposure likitg.losses above the
pre-determined exposure limits are paid by oudtpiarty insurance carriers. We estimate our ligbftir incurred but not
reported losses using our historical loss expeégaar judgment, and industry information.

Derivative Instruments

We account for derivative instruments in accordamitlk Statement of Financial Accounting Standards N33,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Certédadging Activities” (SFAS 133), as amended by Stest of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 138¢counting for Certain Derivative Instruments aner@in Hedging Activity, an Amendme
of SFAS 133" (SFAS 138) and Statement of Finang@dounting Standards No. 149, “Amendment of Stat#m8&3 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SEA49), (collectively SFAS 133). Under these stattslaall derivative
instruments are recorded on the balance sheetiaréspective fair values.

We utilize certain derivative instruments, from &iffo time, including interest rate swaps and foda@mtracts to manage
variability in cash flows associated with interesties and forecasted purchases of boats and yeaimgertain of our foreign
suppliers in Euro dollars.

The accounting for changes in the fair value (gains or losses) of a derivative instrument dep@mdwhether it has
been designated and qualifies as part of a hedglagonship based on its effectiveness in hedggajnst the exposure and
further, on the type of hedging relationship. Fayde derivative instruments that are designatedjaalify as hedging
instruments, we designate the hedging instrumesied upon the exposure being hedged, as a fae taallge or a cash flow
hedge.

Our forward contracts and interest rate swap as@ydated and accounted for as cash flow hedgeshedging the
exposure to variability in expected future cashvBdhat is attributable to a particular risk). SFN8. 133 provides that the
effective portion of the gain or loss on a derivatinstrument designated and qualifying as a dashledging instrument be
reported as a component of other comprehensivenia@nd be reclassified into earnings in the sangeitem in the income
statement as the hedged item in the same peripdrimds during which the transaction affects ea®iThe ineffective
portion of the gain or loss on these derivativérimaents, if any, is recognized in other incomeénge in current earnings
during the period of change.

For derivative instruments not designated as hedigistruments, the gain or loss is recognized lieioincome/expense
current earnings during the period of change. Wiheash flow hedge is terminated, if the forecakttyed transaction is
still probable of occurrence, amounts previoustrded in other comprehensive
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income remain in other comprehensive income andes@gnized in earnings in the period in whichhkdged transaction
affects earnings.

Additional information with regard to accountinglipges associated with derivative instruments istamed in Note 9,
“Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity.”

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and tragdées and parts and service operations at thethienkeoat, motor,
trailer, or part is delivered to or accepted bydhstomer or service is completed. We recognizentissions earned from a
brokerage sale at the time the related brokeragesaction closes. We recognize revenue from stipstorage services on a
straight-line basis over the term of the slip arage agreement. We recognize commissions earnad toy placing notes
with financial institutions in connection with coster boat financing when we recognize the related bales. We also
recognize marketing fees earned on credit lifeideett and disability, and hull insurance producisl $y third-party
insurance companies at the later of customer aageptof the insurance product as evidenced byadrgxecution or when
we recognize the related boat sale. Pursuant totia¢gd agreements with financial and insurancttin®ns, we are charged
back for a portion of these fees should the custdereninate or default on the related finance sumnce contract before i
outstanding for a stipulated minimal period of timiée chargeback allowance, which was not mattwitiie consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole as of Sege8{) 2005 or 2006, is based on our experiende refiayments or
defaults on the related finance or insurance cotdra

We also recognize commissions earned on extendedmnta service contracts sold on behalf of thirdgpasurance
companies at the later of customer acceptanceefdtvice contract terms as evidenced by contraciugion, or recognition
of the related boat sale. We are charged back fartgon of these commissions should the custoeranihate or default on
the service contract prior to its scheduled matufiihe chargeback allowance, which was not matesitie consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole as of Seme8() 2005 or 2006, is based upon our experiefitterapayments or
defaults on the service contracts.

Stock-Based Compensation

Prior to October 1, 2005 we accounted for our shaseed compensation plans under the recognitiomeadurement
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion.Ne5, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employee&PB 25) and
related interpretations and disclosure requiremestiablished by Statement of Financial Accountitep&ards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS)]123 amended by Statement of Financial AccourStagdards
No. 148,“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Traositand Disclosure” (SFAS 148). Under APB 25, beedhs
grant price was equal to or greater than the fainesrno compensation expense was recorded in garfunour stock options
and awards granted under our employee stock pwrgiias (ESPP). The pro forma effects on net incantkearnings per
share for stock options and ESPP awards were distlm a footnote to the financial statements. Garegation expense was
recorded in earnings for non-vested common stockdsv(restricted stock awards) and Board of Direfetes.

Effective October 1, 2005, we adopted the provisiohStatement of Financial Accounting Standards 28R, “Share-
Based Payment” (SFAS 123R) for our share-based ensapion plans. We adopted SFAS 123R using thefiaddi
prospective transition method. Under this transitivethod, compensation cost recognized in fisc@b20cludes (a) the
compensation cost for all share-based awards grqmier to, but not yet vested as of October 1, 22@@sed on the grant-
date fair value estimated in accordance with thgiral provisions of SFAS 123 and (b) the compeinsatost for all share-
based awards granted subsequent to September(),l#¥ed on the grant-date fair value estimateddordance with the
provisions of SFAS 123R. Results for prior peribdse not been restated. As a result of our adopti®&FAS 123R, we
recorded compensation expense for stock optioapfoximately $3.5 million before tax, or $0.15 pgéduted share aftetax
in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006.
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The following table illustrates the effect on netdme and earnings per share as if we had appléetair-value
recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to all of ouasdtbased compensation awards for periods prittret@doption of
SFAS 123R, and the actual effect on net incomeeandings per share for periods subsequent to thatiad of SFAS 123R
(amounts in thousands, except per share data):

For the Fiscal Year Ended

September 30,
2004 2005 2006
Net income as reporte $26,29¢  $33,82¢  $39,38:

Add: Stock-based employee compensation expendadattin reported net income, net

of related tax effects of $31, $283, and $1,464Herfiscal year ended September 30,

2004, 2005, and 2006, respectiv 49 452 4,10z
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgpdetermined under the fair

value based method for all awards, net of relaagdffects of $339, $663, and $1,4

for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, 28052006, respective (2,21%) (2,957%) (4,109)

Pro forma net incom $24,12¢  $31,32¢  $39,38:
Basic earnings per shal

As reportec $ 16 $ 201 $ 2.1¢

Pro forma $ 158 $ 1.8 $ 2.1¢
Diluted earnings per shar

As reportec $ 158 $ 1.8 $ 2.0¢

Pro forma $ 148 $ 171 0§ 20¢

Advertising and Promotional Costs

We expense advertising and promotional costs asred and include them in selling, general, andiathtnative
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statsroénperations. Pursuant to EITF 02-16, amourgsived by us under
our co-op assistance programs from our manufactuaee netted against the related advertising esgeei otal advertising
and promotional expenses approximated $10.0 mjldA4.5 million and $16.5 million, net of relatedtop assistance of
approximately $1.8 million, $1.6 million and $1.3llion, for the fiscal years ended September 3@£®005, and 2006,
respectively.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance witheStant of Financial Accounting Standards No. 10%;¢@unting for
Income Taxes” (SFAS 109). Under SFAS 109, we rezegdeferred tax assets and liabilities for thefeittax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between thanitial statement carrying amounts of existingtssand liabilities and
their respective tax basis. We measure deferreddseats and liabilities using enacted tax ratesagd to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary diffiees are expected to be recovered or settled.

We operate in multiple states with varying tax lamsl are subject to both federal and state auflidaraax filings. We
make estimates to determine that our tax resemgeadequate to cover audit adjustments, if anyu@lcudit results could
vary from the estimates recorded by us. As the murobyears that are open for tax audits vary déimgnon tax jurisdiction,
a number of years may elapse before a particulttenia audited and finally resolved. While it igem difficult to predict the
final outcome or timing of resolution of a partiautax matter, we believe that our consolidatedrfiial statements reflect
appropriate outcome of known tax contingencies.

New Accounting Pronouncements

During March 2005, the Financial Accounting StandaBoard (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 47, “Aaating for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — an Iptetation of FASB Statement No. 143"
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(FIN 47), which clarifies the timing of liabilitygcognition for legal obligations associated witheaset retirement when the
timing and (or) method of settling obligations amnditional on a future event that may or may rewlithin the control of
the entity. FIN 47 is effective no later than tmel @f fiscal years ending after December 15, 200%. adoption of FIN 47 di
not have an effect on our consolidated financiteshents.

During May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of FiredrAccounting Standard No. 154A¢counting Changes and Er
Corrections” (SFAS 154) which replaces Accountimign&ples Board Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Chand€aPB 20) and
SFAS No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in ImteRinancial Statements-An Amendment of APB Opinion
No. 2€” (SFAS 3). SFAS 154 provides guidance on the acting for and reporting of accounting changes anore
corrections. SFAS 154 is effective for accountihgriges and correction of errors made in fiscals/baginning after
December 15, 2005. SFAS 154 is effective for tha fjuarter of our fiscal year 2007 and we areemnily assessing the
implications of this standard and the impact it Wdve on our consolidated financial statements.

During June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Forid@-jof the Financial Accounting Standards Board$B) reached
consensus on Issue No. 06-3, “How Taxes Collectad Customers and Remitted to Governmental AutiesrBhould Be
Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Graisug Net Presentation)” (EITF 06-3). The consedstesrmined that the
scope of EITF 06-3 includes any tax assessed lmyaergmental authority that is imposed concurreatiya specific revenue-
producing transaction between a seller and a custcend may include, but is not limited to, salese, value added, and
some excise taxes. EITF 06-3 also determined iggprtesentation of taxes on either a gross basiset basis within the
scope of EITF 06-3 is an accounting policy decigtmat should be disclosed pursuant to APB Opinion 22, “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” (APB 22). EITF 06-3 does netjuire a company to reevaluate its existing pdicédated to taxes
assessed by a governmental authority that aretlgiiegposed on a revenue-producing transaction eetwa seller and a
customer. EITF 06-3 is effective for interim andhaal financial statements beginning after Decenmbe2006, with early
adoption permitted. We will adopt EITF 06-3 in first quarter of fiscal year 2007 and do not expketimplementation of
this standard to have a material impact on ouraaieged financial statements as taxes collectach frustomers and remit
to governmental authorities are presented netiirconsolidated statements of operations.

During June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation48p “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tax&&IN 48), an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, “Accouagtfor Income Taxes” (SFAS 109). FIN 48 clarifibe taccounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enigg|s financial statements in accordance with SEAS. FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measureattiitute for the financial statement recognitionl aneasurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmet-IN 48 also provides guidance on derecognititassification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disete, and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fibgears beginning after
December 15, 2006. FIN 48 is effective for thetfipgarter of our 2008 fiscal year, and we are aulyeassessing the
implications of this standard and the impact if Wdve on our consolidated financial statements.

During September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. "Fadr Value MeasurementsSEAS 157). SFAS 157 defines f
value, applies to other accounting pronounceméuatsrequire or permit fair value measurements aparmeds disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effedtivfiscal years beginning after November 15,7280d interim periods
within those fiscal years. We are currently assgstiie implications of this standard and the imjitastll have on our
consolidated financial statements.

During September 2006, the SEC issued Staff AcéogiBulletin No. 108 “Considering the Effects ofidtrYear
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements inr€htrYear Financial Statements” (SAB 108), to adsldiversity in
practice in quantifying financial statement misstaénts and the potential for the build up of imgrogmounts on the balar
sheet. SAB 108 identifies the approach that reayisérshould take when evaluating the effects ofljusted misstatements
each financial statement, the circumstances untd@&tweorrections of misstatements should resudt iavision to financial
statements, and disclosures related to the caoreofi
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misstatements. SAB 108 is effective for any refaren interim period of the first fiscal year engliafter November 16,
2006. We are currently assessing the implicatidrikis standard and the impact it will have on consolidated financial
statements.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subjectaigoncentrations of credit risk, consist prindipaf cash and cash
equivalents and accounts receivable. Concentratibasedit risk with respect to our cash and caghivalents are limited
primarily to amounts held with financial institutis. Concentrations of credit risk arising from oegeivables are limited
primarily to amounts due from manufacturers andritial institutions.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of our financial instrumentpragimates fair value due either to length to miatwor existence of
interest rates that approximate prevailing mar&tgs unless otherwise disclosed in these consedldatancial statements.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial stateséntonformity with accounting principles geneyalccepted in the
United States requires us to make estimates andnasi®ns that affect the reported amounts of agseddiabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the consolidated financial statememdstiae reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting pergigsificant estimates made by us in the accompangimsolidated
financial statements relate to valuation allowaneabiation of goodwill and intangible assets, @dilon of long-lived assets,
and valuation of accruals. Actual results couldedifrom those estimates.

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Trade receivables consist primarily of receivalitem financial institutions, which provide fundirigr customer boat
financing, and amounts due from financial instdns earned from arranging financing with our cugmsnmWe normally
collect these receivables within 30 days of the.shtade receivables also include amounts due &ustomers on the sale of
boats, parts, service, and storage. Amounts due finanufacturers represent receivables for varicasufiacturer programs
and parts and service work performed pursuantdartAnufacturers’ warranties. At September 30, 200&r receivables
consists primarily of amounts we believe are dilegted to certain unresolved matters associateaetoerms and conditions
of the asset purchase agreement with Surfsidef@¢sgmote 2. Acquisitions). We do not believe theénuate resolution of the
matters will have a material adverse effect onamnsolidated financial condition, results of oprenag or cash flows.

The allowance for uncollectible receivables, whigs not material to the consolidated financialestents taken as a
whole as of September 30, 2005 or 2006, was basedoconsideration of customer payment practigast transaction
history with customers, and economic conditions.&gew the allowance for uncollectible receivabldgen an event or
other change in circumstances results in a changeeiestimate of the ultimate collectibility o§pecific account.

The accounts receivable balances consisted obtluaing at September 30,

2005 2006
(Amounts in thousands)
Trade receivable $14,57( $22,12¢
Amounts due from manufacture 10,37« 26,08’
Other receivable 1,291 9,371

$26,23: $57,58¢
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5. INVENTORIES:

Inventories, net consisted of the following at @epber 30,

2005 2006

(Amounts in thousands)

New boats, motors and traile $265,95:- $382,07"
Used boats, motors and trailt 43,19: 69,72¢
Parts, accessories and ot 8,55¢ 11,041

$317,70¢  $462,84°

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Property and equipment consisted of the followin§eptember 30,

2005 2006

(Amounts in thousands)
Land $ 33,227  $ 43,14
Buildings and improvemen 58,08: 71,99
Machinery and equipme 27,52« 32,311
Furniture and fixture 6,311 7,09¢
Vehicles 5,51 6,20¢

130,65: 160,74¢
Less— Accumulated depreciatic (30,659 (38,537)

$ 99,99«  $122,21!

Depreciation expense totaled approximately $5.8anil $5.9 million, and $8.3 million for the fiscgears ended
September 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively.
7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

The changes in the carrying amounts of net goodwill identifiable intangible assets for the fisezdrs ended
September 30, were as follows:

Identifiable
Intangible
Goodwill Assets Total
(Amounts in thousands)

Balance, September 30, 2C $50,32: $ 5,54C $ 55,86
Changes during the peri 19¢ 12: 322
Balance, September 30, 2C 50,52: 5,66: 56,18
Changes during the peri 43,54¢ 16,46¢ 60,01:
Balance, September 30, 2C $94,06¢ $ 22,127  $116,19!

8. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS:

During February 2006, we became party to a joimtwes with Brunswick that acquired certain reabtstand assets of
Great American Marina for an aggregate purchase mf approximately $11.0 million, of which we cobtited
approximately $4.0 million and Brunswick contribdit@pproximately $7.0 million. The terms of the agnent specify that
we operate and maintain the service business, ams®&ick operates and maintains the marina busiisésailtaneously wit
the closing, the acquired entity became Gulfportiveg LLC (Gulfport). We account for our investmeémtGulfport in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinimn 18, “The
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Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in CommiStock”. Accordingly, we adjust the carrying ambaf our
investment in Gulfport to recognize our share ahgays or losses.

9. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITY:

We have entered into foreign currency cash flowglesdo reduce the variability of cash flows asgediavith forecasted
purchases of boats and yachts from certain ofaaign suppliers in Euro dollars. These cash fleddes are designed to
offset changes in expected cash flows due to faicios in the Euro dollar from the time the contsaare entered into until
actual delivery of the inventory and correspondgiagments are made. At September 30, 2006, ther autstanding
contracts, which had a combined notional amouipproximately $10.4 million and mature at varidogess through
December 2006. These contracts are designatedladloa hedges since they are expected to be higffdgtive in offsettin
changes in the cash flows attributable to forechgtechases of yachts and boats from certain ofayaign suppliers in Euro
dollars. Because the critical terms of the forwewdtracts and the forecasted transactions coirfc@ethe currency, notional
amount, and timing), changes in cash flows atteblg to the risks being hedged are expected totmpletely offset by the
forward contract. However, if we become aware fifracasted purchase that will not occur as plarametithere are no
extenuating circumstances, we will write-off théated amount in other comprehensive income in otilgarnings.
Outstanding contracts at September 30, 2006 hahlired gains of approximately $571,000, which wemmrded in other
current assets on the consolidated balance sheefuatify as highly effective for reporting purpssé&ffectiveness of yacht
and boat forward contracts is determined by compggétie change in the fair value of the forward caxttto the change in t
expected cash to be paid for the hedged item. Duhie year ended September 30, 2006, the ineféeptivtion of the
hedging instruments was not significant. For closaatracts related to inventory on hand at Septe®®g2006, we recorde
approximately $92,000 of unrealized gains as arednventory on the consolidated balance sheets@ harealized gains w
be recognized as a reduction to the cost of satesnhe related boat is sold. At September 30, 20@6net unrealized gains
related to open and closed contracts recordedcnnaglated other comprehensive income were apprdgign$453,000, net
of tax. All of the existing gains are expected ¢orbclassified into earnings within the next 12 theras the related boats are
sold. We had no significant foreign currency cdsetwvthedges outstanding at September 30, 2005.

We have entered into an interest rate swap agreesigna notional amount of $4.0 million, that mags in June 2015,
and is designated as a cash flow hedge to conyanttan of the floating rate debt to a fixed rafes.67%. Since all of the
critical terms of the swap exactly match thoseheftiedged debt, no ineffectiveness has been ightif the hedging
relationship. Consequently, all changes in faiueadre recorded as a component of other compreafecinsiome. We
periodically determine the effectiveness of theslg determining that the critical terms still nfatdetermining that the
future interest payments are still probable of o@nce, and evaluating the likelihood of the corpaety’s compliance with
the terms of the swap. At September 30, 2006, @ sigreement had a fair value of approximately,GB88 which was
recorded in other long-term assets on the congelidaalance sheet. We had no significant inteeg¢stswap agreements
outstanding at September 30, 2005.

10. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:

During June 2006, we entered into a second ameasmtdestated credit and security agreement witht digancial
institutions. The credit facility provides us adiof credit with asset-based borrowing availabifityup to $500 million for
working capital and inventory financing, with th@aunt of permissible borrowings determined purstaiat borrowing base
formula. The credit facility also permits approvweshdor floorplan borrowings of up to $20 milliorhd credit facility
accrues interest at the London Interbank Offerete RABOR) plus 150 to 260 basis points, with thterest rate based upon
the ratio of our net outstanding borrowings to tangible net worth. The credit facility is secut®dour inventory, accounts
receivable, equipment, furniture, and fixtures. Thedit facility requires us to satisfy certain eoants, including maintainit
a leverage ratio tied to our tangible net worthe Bther terms and conditions of the new credififg@re generally similar to
the previous credit facility.

F-19




Table of Contents

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The credit facility matures in May 2011, with twoesyear renewal options remaining. At Septembef806, we were in
compliance with all of the credit facility covenant

Prior to the June 2006 second amended and restateil and security agreement, our credit faciigs amended during
March 2006 and February 2006. The March 2006 amenttemporarily increased our asset-based borroawagability up
to $415 million through July 31, 2006. The Febru2@p6 amendment increased our asset-based borrewilgbility up to
$385 million, and extended the maturity of the dréatility to March 1, 2009, with two one-year emal options.

Prior to the February 2006 amendment, our credilifiaprovided us with asset-based borrowing aafaility of up to
$340 million, permitted up to $20 million in appexi-vendor floorplan borrowings, accrued interest mite of LIBOR plus
150 to 260 basis points, and was scheduled to maiuvarch 2008, with two one-year renewal optigreaining. The other
terms and conditions of the credit facility werengrally similar to the new credit facility.

Short-term borrowings as of September 30, 20052806 were $150.0 million and $321.5 million, regpety. The
additional available borrowings under the crediilfey at September 30, 2005 and 2006 were $18Glidbmand
$130.0 million, respectively. At September 30, 2608 2006, the interest rate on the outstanding-¢&on borrowings was
5.2% and 6.8%, respectively.

As is common in our industry, we receive interestistance directly from boat manufacturers, inclgddrunswick. The
interest assistance programs vary by manufactmetganerally include periods of free financing educed interest rate
programs. The interest assistance may be paidtigiteaus or our lender depending on the arrangésrttie manufacturer h
established. We classify interest assistance reddrom manufacturers as a reduction of inventost and related cost of
sales as opposed to netting the assistance againisiterest expense incurred with our lenders.

11. LONG-TERM DEBT:
Long-term debt consisted of the following at Segiens0,

2005 2006
(Amounts in thousands)

Various mortgage notes payable to financial instins, due in monthly installments ranging fron

$16,924 to $37,500, bearing interest at rates raniygom 6.82% to 7.18%, maturing Septembe

2012 through July 2014, collateralized by machirearg equipmer 12,59 9,66¢
Various mortgage notes payable to financial ingtins, due in monthly installments ranging from

$22,605 to $102,000, bearing interest at ratesimgrfgom 5.67% to 7.75%, maturing September

2010 through June 2016, collateralized by machiaexyequipmer 17,49: 27,517
30,08t 37,18¢
Less— Current maturitie! (4,635 (4,537)

$25,45( $32,65¢
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The aggregate maturities of long-term debt wer®kmswvs at September 30, 2006:

(Amounts in thousands)

2007 $ 4,532
2008 4,62
2009 4,72
2010 4,82¢
2011 4,18t
Thereaftel 14,29¢

Total $ 37,18¢

12. INCOME TAXES:
The components of our provision for income taxessizied of the following for the fiscal years en@aptember 30,

2004 2005 2006
(Amounts in thousands)

Current provision

Federa $14,31(  $18,87.  $22,09:

State 1,63¢ 2,17¢ 2,84t
Total current provisiol 15,94¢ 21,04¢ 24,93¢
Deferred provision

Federa 164 33C 927

State 16 33 93
Total deferred provisio 18C 363 1,02(
Total income tax provisio $16,12¢  $21,41.  $25,95¢

Below is a reconciliation of the statutory federedlome tax rate to our effective tax rate for tisedl years ended
September 30,

2004 2005 2006

Federal tax provisio 35.(% 35.(% 35.%
State tax provision, net of federal ben 2.8% 3.6% 3.6%
Other 0.2% 0.2% 1.1%

Effective tax rate 38.(% 38.% 39.7%

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of tempoditferences between the amount of assets ahilities recognized
for financial reporting purposes and such amoustegnized for income tax purposes. The tax effects
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of these temporary differences representing thepommnts of deferred tax assets (liabilities) at&waper 30 were as follow

2005 2006
(Amounts in thousands)

Current deferred tax assets (liabilitie

Inventories $ 2,75¢ $ 2,312
Accrued expense 2,19 2,45¢
Foreign currency hedg: — (284)

Net current deferred tax ass $ 4,95¢ $ 4,48¢

Long-term deferred tax (liabilities) asse

Depreciation and amortizatic $(11,127))  $(13,35%
Stock based compensati 243 1,65(C
Other 107 66

Net lon¢-term deferred tax liabilitie $(10,777)  $(11,639

At September 30, 2005 and 2006, we estimatedttigtriore likely than not that we will recognizeethenefit of our
deferred tax assets and, accordingly, no valuailomvance has been recorded.

13. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

In November 2005, our Board of Directors approvethare repurchase plan allowing our company torofase up to
1,000,000 shares of our common stock. Under the pla may buy back common stock from time to timéhe open market
or in privately negotiated blocks, dependant uparous factors, including price and availabilitytbé shares, and general
market conditions. At September 30, 2006, we havel@ased an aggregate of 306,300 shares of contochunder the
plan for an aggregate purchase price of approxisgn&&9 million.

14. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

Upon adoption of SFAS 123R, we continued to useBlaek-Scholes valuation model for valuing all #@ptions and
shares granted under the ESPP. Compensation fdctes stock awards is measured at fair valuenergrant date based on
the number of shares expected to vest and the djuwdeket price of our common stock. Compensaticat fay all awards is
recognized in earnings, net of estimated forfegpom a straighline basis over the requisite service period faheseparatel
vesting portion of the award.

Cash received from option exercises under all shased payment arrangements for the fiscal yeagdeB8eptember 30,
2004, 2005, and 2006 was approximately $3.7 millgh3 million, and $3.9 million, respectively. Thgnefits realized for
tax deductions from option exercises for the fiser ended September 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006 ppesximately
$1.4 million, $2.7 million, and $1.5 million, resg&vely. We currently expect to satisfy share-basedrds with registered
shares available to be issued.

15. 1998 INCENTIVE STOCK PLAN (THE INCENTIVE STOC K PLAN):

Our 1998 Incentive Stock Plan, provides for thengd incentive and non-qualified stock optionsatmuire our common
stock, the grant of common stock, the grant oflstgapreciation rights, and the grant of other aashrds to key personnel,
directors, consultants, independent contractows aimers providing valuable services to us. Theimam number of shares
of common stock that may be issued pursuant ténidentive Stock Plan is the lesser of 4,000,000eshar the sum of
(1) 20% of the then-outstanding shares of our comatock plus (2) the number of shares exerciseld igipect to any
awards granted under the Incentive Stock Plan.Ii¢entive Stock Plan terminates in April 2008, aptions may be grant
at any time during the life of the Incentive Stdtan.
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The date on which options vest and the exercisepf options are determined by the Board of Darscor the Plan
Administrator. The Incentive Stock Plan also in€sén Automatic Grant Program providing for theomatic grant of
options (Automatic Options) to our non-employeediors.

The exercise price of options granted under theritice Stock Plan is to be at least equal to threnfarket value of
shares of common stock on the date of grant. Tine & options under the Incentive Stock Plan malyexceed ten years.
The options granted have varying vesting periodsgknerally become fully vested at either the efngkar five or the end «
year seven, depending on the specific gt

The following table summarizes option activity fr@eptember 30, 2005 through September 30, 2006:

Weighted
Average
Shares Aggregate Remaining
Available Options Intrinsic Weighted Average Contractual
for Grant Outstanding Value Exercise Price Life
(In thousands)
Balance at September 30, 2( 929,48¢{ 2,258,13 $ 13.5% 6.C
Options authorize
Options expirec
Options grante: (483,549 483,54! $ 29.1¢
Options cancelle 123,78! (123,78Y $ 17.9¢
Restricted stock awart (175,000
Options exercise (253,35 $ 10.1¢
Balance at September 30, 2( 394,72¢ 2,364,531 $ 22,58: $ 16.8( 5.6
Exercisable at September 30, 2( — 868,07¢« $ 1181 $ 12.0¢ 3.5

The weightedaverage grant date fair value of options grantethduhe fiscal years ended September 30, 2004,241x
2006 was $9.39, $12.35, and $12.53, respectivédilg.tdtal intrinsic value of options exercised dgrihe fiscal years ended
September 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006 was approxiyr®ded million, $7.5 million, and $5.2 million, nesctively.

As of September 30, 2006, there was approximal§ fillion of unrecognized compensation coststeelao non-
vested options that is expected to be recognized @weighted average period of 3.9 years. Théfaitavalue of options
vested during the fiscal years ended Septembe2@®®,, 2005, and 2006 was approximately $1.1 mill&in5 million, and
$1.4 million, respectively.

We continued using the Blackeholes model to estimate the fair value of optgmasmted during fiscal 2006. The expet
term of options granted is derived from the outpfiithe option pricing model and represents theqakeoiff time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding. Volat#ityased on the historical volatility of our comnginck. The risk-free rate
for periods within the contractual term of the op# is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvefeceét the time of grant.

The following are the weighted-average assumptiesl for the fiscal years ended September 30:

2004 2005 2006
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rat 5.0% 5.0% 4.6%
Volatility 41.9% 42.1% 44.5%
Expected life 5.4years 5.4years 4.6 year:
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During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004yatants issued in conjunction with the fiscaB2®Boating World
acquisition were exercised. The warrants enabledhtider to purchase 40,000 shares of our comnozk st $15.00 per
share.

16. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN (THE STOCK PURCHASE PL AN):

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan, provides fopoufb0,000 shares of common stock to be availablpdchase by
our regular employees who have completed at lessyear of continuous service. The Stock Purchisegovides for
implementation of up to 10 annual offerings begignon the first day of October in the years 1998ugh 2007, with each
offering terminating on September 30 of the follogsiyear. Each annual offering may be divided into six-month
offerings. For each offering, the purchase pricegbare will be the lower of (i) 85% of the closipdce of the common stor
on the first day of the offering or (ii) 85% of thtsing price of the common stock on the last afathe offering. The
purchase price is paid through periodic payrollwdins not to exceed 10% of the participamarnings during each offeri
period. However, no participant may purchase mioae $25,000 worth of common stock annually.

We continued using the Blackeholes model to estimate the fair value of optignasmted during fiscal 2006. The expet
term of options granted is derived from the outgfithe option pricing model and represents thegukeof time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding. Volat#ityased on the historical volatility of our comnsionck. The risk-free rate
for periods within the contractual term of the op# is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvefeceét the time of grant.

The following are the weighted-average assumptiesl for the fiscal years ended September 30:

2004 2005 2006
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rat 1.3% 3.0% 4.8%
Volatility 50.3% 41.5% 37.1%
Expected life six-months six-months six-months

As of September 30, 2006, we had issued 446,684e0f50,000 shares of common stock reserved foaigs under our
1998 employee stock purchase plan.

17. RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS:

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005 and 200@, granted non-vested (restricted) stock awardsitaio key employees
pursuant to the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan. Theiotstl stock awards have varying vesting periods generally become
fully vested at either the end of year four or ¢inel of year five, depending on the specific award.

We accounted for the restricted stock awards gdaintéiscal 2005 using the measurement and recognitrovisions of
APB 25. Accordingly, we measured compensation ab#tie grant date using the intrinsic value mettod will recognize
compensation cost in earnings over the requisitecgeperiod. We accounted for the restricted stmelrds granted
subsequent to September 30, 2005 using the measniramd recognition provisions of SFAS 123R. Acawgty, the fair
value of the restricted stock awards is measuretth@grant date and recognized in earnings overeiipgisite service period
for each separately vesting portion of the award.
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The following table summarizes restricted stochvitgtfrom September 30, 2005 through Septembei2806:

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Non-vested balance at September 30, 2 103,00( $ 29.3¢
Changes during the peri

Shares grante 175,000 $ 27.4%

Shares veste — % —

Shares forfeite: — % —

Non-vested balance at September 30, 2 278,00( $ 28.1¢

As of September 30, 2006, we had approximately 88li®n of total unrecognized compensation costesl to
restricted stock awards granted under the PlaneXgect to recognize that cost over a weighted-aeepariod of 3.5 years.
Pursuant to SFAS 123R, the approximate $2.4 mitibdeferred stock compensation recorded as a tieduo stockholders’
equity as of September 30, 2005 is no longer redaat a separate component of stockholders’ egnodyis instead recorded
in additional paid-in capital.

18. NET INCOME PER SHARE:

The following is a reconciliation of the sharesdigethe denominator for calculating basic andtdilearnings per share
for the fiscal years ended September 30,

2004 2005 2006
Weighted average common shares outstanding useddulating basic net
income per shar 15,585,31. 16,815,44 18,028,56
Effect of dilutive options 1,080,79. 1,217,08 900,17:
Weighted average common and common equivalentshiges in calculatir
diluted net income per sha 16,666,10 18,032,53 18,928,73

Options to purchase 17,460, 53,000 and 699,50@stdicommon stock were outstanding at Septemhet(®et, 2005,
and 2006, respectively, but were not included enabmputation of diluted earnings per share bectgseptions’ exercise
prices were greater than the average market pfioaraccommon stock, and therefore, their effect idae anti-dilutive.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Lease Commitments

We lease certain land, buildings, machinery, egeiptnand vehicles related to our dealerships unde+cancelable third-
party operating leases. Rental expense, includioigtimto-month rentals, were approximately $8.9ioml] $9.4 million, and
$10.9 million for the fiscal years ended Septen@f:r2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively. Rental sg@éo related parties
under both cancelable and non-cancelable opersasgs approximated $385,000 for each of the fiseals ended
September 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006.

The rental payments to related parties, under taticelable and nocancelable operating leases during fiscal 20045,
and 2006, represent rental payments for buildingmtentity partially owned by an officer of ounggany. We believe the
terms of the transaction are consistent with thbaewe would obtain from third parties.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetgigeating leases at September 30, 2006, werelawol

(Amounts in thousands)

2007 $ 10,36:
2008 8,30(
2009 4,60z
2010 3,532
2011 2,42¢
Thereaftel 542

Total $ 29,76"

Other Commitments and Contingencies

We are party to various legal actions arising eahdinary course of business. With the exceptfan gingle lawsuit
award that we are currently appealing, the ultiniatglity, if any, associated with the other mastevas not material at
September 30, 2006. However, based on informatiaiiable at September 30, 2006 surrounding thdesilagvsuit award,
our litigation accrual approximated $2.0 millionhi¢ it is not feasible to determine the actualcoute of these actions as of
September 30, 2006, we do not believe that theseersavill have a material adverse effect on oursoiidated financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

We are subject to federal and state environmeetpllations, including rules relating to air and evgtollution and the
storage and disposal of gasoline, oil, other chalwiand waste. We believe that we are in complianttesuch regulations.

20. EMPLOYEE 401(k) PROFIT SHARING PLANS:

Employees are eligible to participate in our 40 Rkdfit Sharing Plan (the Plan) following their 88y introductory
period starting either April 1 or October 1, praadtthat they are 21 years of age. Under the Plamatch 50% of
participants’ contributions, up to a maximum of 8¥each participant’'s compensation. We contributedier the Plan, or
pursuant to previous similar plans, approximatdlyl$nillion , $1.3 million, and $1.7 million for ¢hfiscal years ended
September 30, 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively.

21. PREFERRED SHARE PURCHASE RIGHTS:

During September 2001, we adopted a StockholdegsitR Plan (the Rights Plan) that may have thecefiédeterring,
delaying, or preventing a change in control thaghmhbtherwise be in the best interests of our dtolders. Under the Rights
Plan, a dividend of one Preferred Share Purchagiet Rias issued for each share of common stockbhette stockholders
record as of the close of business on Septemi®2004,. Each right entitles stockholders to purchasan exercise price of
$50 per share, one-thousandth of a share of a r@edted Series A Junior Participating PreferrediSt
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In general, subject to certain limited exceptidhs, stock purchase rights become exercisable wipensan or group
acquires 15% or more of our common stock or a teaffer or exchange offer for 15% or more of oungnon stock is
announced or commenced. After any such event, stbekholders may purchase additional shares o€@mmon stock at
50% of the then-current market price. The right @giuse substantial dilution to a person or grthgt attempts to acquire us
on terms not approved by our Board of Directorse Tights should not interfere with any merger dreotbusiness
combination approved by the Board of Directors. Tigbts may be redeemed by us at $0.01 per stoahpsae right at any
time before any person or group acquires 15% oernbthe outstanding common stock. The rights expir August 28,
2011.

The Rights Plan adoption and Rights Distributioa ison-taxable event with no impact on our finaheaults.
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Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registral
Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiating Preferred Stock(.
Specimen of Common Stock Certificate
Rights Agreement, dated August 28, 2001 betweerisRagt and American Stock Transfer & Trust Compaat
Rights Agent(2
Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant, PartvAead Marina, Inc., Lake Port Marina, Inc., Port
Arrowhead, Inc., and Lakewood Resort Corporatio
Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant arfisidk-3 Marina, Inc.(11
Employment Agreement dated June 7, 2006 betweerstRag and William H. McGill, Jr.(12
Employment Agreement dated June 7, 2006 betweerstRag and Michael H. McLamb(1.
Employment Agreement dated June 7, 2006 betweerstRag and Edward A. Russell(1
1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Nbeertb, 2000(4
1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plai
Dealer Agreement dated December 7, 2005 betweeBdahdray Division of Brunswick Corporation and
MarineMax, Inc.(6]
Agreement Relating to Acquisitions dated Decembh@0D5 between the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick
Corporation and the Principal Operating SubsidéaofMarineMax, Inc.(6
Credit and Security Agreement dated as of Decerh®e?001 among the Registrant and its subsidiaaies,
Borrowers, and Banc of America Specialty Finanoe, &nd various other lenders, as Lender
Amendment No. 2 to Credit and Security Agreemetedidanuary 30, 2004 among the Registrant and its
subsidiaries as Borrowers, Keybank National AsgmriaN.A., Bank of America, N.A., and various othe
lenders, as Lenders(
Hatteras Sales and Service Agreement, dated J2QOB among the Registrant, MarineMax Motor Yachtsz,
and Hatteras Yachts Division of Brunswick Corpara(b)
Dealer Agreement, effective September 30, 2003 gntioe Registrant, Ferretti Group USA, Inc., andtien
Yacht, Inc.(7)
Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreemeattuted on February 15, 2005 effective as of FRepr8,
2005 among the Registrant and its subsidiarieBpamwers, Keybank National Association and Bank of
America, N.A., and various other lenders, as Les(@
Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated CrediSandrity Agreement dated February 10, 2006 amaag th
Registrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, KaktNational Association, Bank of America, N.A.dararious
other lenders, as Lenders(’
Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated CrediSandrity Agreement dated March 10, 2006 among the
Registrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, KaktNational Association, Bank of America, N.A.dararious
other lenders, as Lenders(’
Amendment No. 4 to Amended and Restated CrediSardrity Agreement dated March 31, 2006 among the
Registrant and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, akiNational Association, Bank of America, N.A.dararious
other lenders, as Lenders(’
Second Amended and Restated Credit and Securityetggnt dated June 19, 2006 among the Registraiitsand
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and Bank of Americéd.NKeyBank, N.A., General Electric Commercial
Distribution Finance Corporation, Wachovia BankAN Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., National City Bank, N,A
U.S. Bank, N.A., and Branch Banking and Trust Conypas Lenders(1:
List of Subsidiarie:
Consent of Ernst & Young LL
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen
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Number Exhibit
32.1 Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, dgpded pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof
2002.
32.2  Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanrks+@ct of
2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterae Form £-1 (Registratior33:-47873).
(2) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report dated September 30, 1998, as filed on Ochel 998

(3) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’'s Form 1fa#the year ended September 30, 2001, as filddemember 20,
2001.

(4) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’'s Form 1f®Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 286Tiled on
February 14, 200:

(5) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form lf@Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 2883iled on
February 17, 200¢

(6) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report as filed on December 9, 20

(7) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’'s Form 1f®Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 2864iled on
February 9, 200t

(8) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report dated February 15, 2005, as filed on Felrii@y 2005

(9) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1lf@Qhe quarterly period ended December 31, 2885iled on
February 9, 200¢

(10) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form ¢-K Report dated February 10, 2006, as filed on Februéy 2006

(11) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 1foQhe quarterly period ended March 31, 2006jled on
May 10, 2006

(12) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K Report as filed on June 13, 20!

(13) Incorporated by reference to Registrant’'s Form 1f@Qhe quarterly period ended June 30, 2006iled 6n
August 4, 2006






Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference infelewing Registration Statements:
1) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-83332) pertaining to the 1998 Incentive Stock RIiNlarineMax, Inc.

2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-63307gpeng to the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan and th@81Bmployee Stock Purchase Plan
of MarineMax, Inc.

3) Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-122091) of MarineMax, Inc

of our reports dated December 14, 2006, with radpete consolidated financial statements of Mallax, Inc., MarineMax, Inc.
management’s assessment of the effectivenessephaitcontrol over financial reporting, and theeefiveness of internal control over
financial reporting of MarineMax, Inc., includedtime Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year endegt8mber 30, 2006.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Tampa, Florida
December 14, 2006






Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
[, William H. McGill Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&f¥K of MarineMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdal are responsible for establishing and maintgjrdisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsm@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprnoegdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal corvelr financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thésteant’s disclosure controls and procedures ardgnted in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andeguiures as of the end of the period covered kyrdipiort based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changthmregistrant’s internal control over financiaporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotdigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maareaknesses in the design or operation of ialezantrol over financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refasancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materiahttmvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/WiLLiam H. McGILL, (R.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Date: December 14, 2006






Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
[, Michael H. McLamb, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on F&f¥K of MarineMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescantain any untrue statement of a material facoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdal are responsible for establishing and maintgjrdisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsm@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprnoegdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal corvelr financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thésteant’s disclosure controls and procedures ardgnted in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andeguiures as of the end of the period covered kyrdipiort based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changthmregistrant’s internal control over financiaporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotdigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officardal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maareaknesses in the design or operation of ialezantrol over financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refasancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materiahttmvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ MicHAEL H. McLAwmB
Michael H. McLamb
Chief Financial Officel

Date: December 14, 2006






Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKlLof MarineMayx, Inc. (the “Company”) for the yeanded September 30, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, William H. McGill JiChief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and bepefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&hp06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementt$ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchafigeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiad@mn and results of operations of the
Company

/s/WiLLiam H. McGILL JR.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Officer

December 14, 2006






Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on For@aKlLof MarineMayx, Inc. (the “Company”) for the yeanded September 30, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael H. McLambhi€f Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, to my best knowledge and bepefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&hp06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(3) The Report fully complies with the requirementt$ection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchafigeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); anc

(4) The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiad@mn and results of operations of the
Company

/s MicHAEL H. McLAwMB
Michael H. McLamb
Chief Financial Officer

December 14, 2006



